
           

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC
WILLIAMSON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT

May 25, 2021 
9:30 A.M.

           

The Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas will meet in regular session
in the Commissioners Courtroom, 710 Main Street, in Georgetown, Texas to
consider the following items:

  

 

1. Review and approval of minutes.   

 

2. Hear County Auditor concerning invoices, bills, Quick Check Report, wire transfers and electronic
payments submitted for payment and take appropriate action including, but not limited to approval for
payment provided said items are found by the County Auditor to be legal obligations of the county.

  

 

CONSENT AGENDA 
The Consent Agenda includes non-controversial and routine items that the Court may act on with one
single vote. The Judge or a Commissioner may pull any item from the consent agenda in order that
the court discuss and act upon it individually as part of the Regular Agenda.
( Items 3 – 26 )

  

 

3. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Facilities.
 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100.0509.004962 Janitorial Contract Services $21,000.00
To 0100.0509.004510 Facility Maint & Repair $21,000.00
 

4. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Facilities.
 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100.0509.005003 Equipment > $5,000 $91,818.50
To 0100.0509.005700 Vehicles > $5,000 $91,818.50
 

5. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Justice of the
Peace, Precinct #2.

 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
FROM 0100-0409-004998 Non Departmental/Contingencies $152,000
TO 0100-0452-004190 JP#2/Autopsies $152,000



 

6. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving property tax refunds over
$2,500.00 thru 05/20/2021 for the Williamson County Tax Assessor/Collector.

 

7. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving compensation changes,
position titles changes, position grade changes and any corresponding line item
transfers.

 

8. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action to approve Justice of the Peace, Pct. 4, April 2021
Monthly Report in compliance with Code of Crim. Proc. § 103.005.

 

9. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action to approve the County Attorney April
2021 Monthly Report in compliance with Code of Criminal Procedure 103.005.

 

10. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on accepting a bite suit donated to the
Williamson County Sheriff's Office from Vested Interest in K9.

 

11. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the purchase of
two (2) replacement Chevrolet Tahoes from Lake Country Chevrolet Inc. in the amount
of $77,457.00, pursuant to GoodBuy contract #21 8F000.

 

12. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the donation of surplus equipment from the
Williamson County Fire Marshall’s Office for use by volunteer fire departments in the communities of
Bartlett, Coupland, Florence, Granger, Thrall, Weir and the Avery Pickett VFD pursuant to Tex. Loc.
Gov. Code § 263.152 to promote public health and safety.

 

13. Discuss, consdier and take appropriate action on approving an Extension until
December 31, 2021 with Baylor Scott & White Health for the purposes of providing
medical testing for the Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19) for Williamson County
Emergency Services Personnel.

 

14. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the Purchasing Agent to
advertise and receive sealed bids for Animal Shelter Pharmaceuticals and Clinic
Supplies under IFB #T4302.

 

15. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving the contract between Williamson County
and Facilities Resource, Inc. for the purchase of office furniture in the amount of $11,319.60 pursuant to
OMNIA National cooperative contract #2019.001896 and authorizing the contract.

 

16. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving the service agreement
between Texas Ranch Enhancements, LLC and Williamson County for boundary
fencing at River Ranch Park and authorizing the execution of the agreement.

 

17. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving the addendum form to the
service agreement between Texas Disposal Services and Williamson County for
commercial trash service at River Ranch Park and authorizing the execution of the
addendum.

 



18. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving the amendment to the
contract between BenefitFocus.com and Williamson County for Web-Based Employee
Benefit Enrollment and authorizing the execution of the amendment.

 

19. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on Work Authorization No 5 in the
amount of $92,605.00 to expire on September 1, 2023 under Williamson County
Contract for Engineering Services between KC Engineering, Inc. and Williamson
County dated March 24, 2020 for Engineering Design Services for CR 307
Reconstruction. Funding source: P394.

 

20. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on Work Authorization No 3 in the
amount of $194,370.00 to expire on December 31, 2022 under Williamson County
Contract for Surveying Services between Walker Texas Surveyors, Inc. and
Williamson County dated May 19, 2020 for CR 255 Topo and ROW Parcel Exhibit
Acquisition. Funding source: P546.

 

21. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on Work Authorization No 4 in the
amount of $110,460.00 to expire on May 31, 2022 under Williamson County Contract
for Surveying Services between Diamond Surveying and Williamson County dated May
19, 2020 for CR 201 from CR 200 to Approximate 1,100 Feet North of Umbrella Sky.
Funding source: P499.

 

22. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the Purchasing Agent to
advertise and receive sealed bids for IFB County Road Paving (CR 401, 402, 404)
under IFB #T4320. Funding Source will be P389 (CR 402) and P390 (CR 401/CR 404
Improvements).

 

23. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the Purchasing Agent to
advertise and receive sealed bids for qualified contractors for the replacement of the
existing Great Oaks Drive Bridge and improvements to the Great Oaks Drive/Brushy
Creek Road/Hairy Man Road Intersection under IFB #T4327. Funding source is Road
Bond P270.

 

24. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for the Dove
Meadows Estates on 406 subdivision – Precinct 4.

 

25. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for the
Boggy Creek Acres subdivision – Precinct 4.

 

26. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for the Star
Ranch Parcel 32 subdivision – Precinct 4.

 

REGULAR AGENDA   

 

27. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a resolution recognizing the
Georgetown High School Golf Team.

 



28. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on the process to begin a Request for Qualifications for
Strategic Plan Consulting Services.

 

29. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on funding matters relating to
Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act and the American
Rescue Plan Act of 2021 to include, but not be limited to hearing an update on the
Wilco Forward grant program, setting budget priorities in relation to remaining
CARES Act funds and American Rescue Plan funding, as well as possible future
funding and allocation plans in relation to CARES Act and American Rescue Plan
funds.

  

 

30. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a proposed Regional PM2.5
(particulate matter 2.5 microns) Emission Reduction and Planning Measures for
Williamson County as part of the Austin-Round Rock-Georgetown MSA Regional Air
Quality Plan from the Clean Air Coalition (CAC) of the Capital Areas Council of
Governments (CAPCOG)

 

31. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action to approve the Tax Collection
Agreement between the Williamson County Municipal Utility District No. 19C and the
County of Williamson, Texas.

 

32. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action to approve the Tax Collection
Agreement between the Williamson County Municipal Utility District No. 19E and the
County of Williamson, Texas.

 

33. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency
and a grave necessity due to unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget
amendment to acknowledge additional revenue for a Sheriff’s Office donation.

 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0100.0000.367400 Donations $56.00

 

34. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency
and a grave necessity due to unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget
amendment to acknowledge additional expenditures for a Sheriff’s Office donation.

 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0100.0560.003670 Use of Donations $56.00

 

35. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a policy exception regarding moving
surplus salary dollars within the County Attorney's Office.

 

36. Discuss and take appropriate action on increasing the homestead property tax exemptions for persons



36. Discuss and take appropriate action on increasing the homestead property tax exemptions for persons
sixty-five (65) years of age or older from $30,000 to {NOT TO EXCEED $100,000} as authorized by
Section 11.13(d) of the Property Tax Code, to be effective for the tax year beginning on January 1, 2021.

 

37. Discuss and take appropriate action on increasing the homestead property tax exemptions for disabled
persons from $20,000 to {NOT TO EXCEED $50,000} dollars as authorized by Section 11.13(d) of the
Property Tax Code, to be effective for the tax year beginning on January 1, 2021.

 

38. Discuss and take appropriate action on authorizing a percentage-based exemption from ad valorem
taxes on the appraised value of the residence homestead in the amount of {NOT TO EXCEED 2
percent} of the appraised value of the individual’s residence homestead or a minimum of $5,000 as
authorized by Section 11.13(n) of the Property Tax Code, to be effective for the tax year beginning on
January 1, 2021.

 

39. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on the funding needs for the Williamson
County Child Advocacy Center (P530) new building construction project.

 

40. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on authorizing the Service Contract
between Public Restroom Company, Inc. and Williamson County for restroom building
delivery and installation at Southwest Regional Park, pursuant to Buyboard contract
#592 and authorize the execution of the agreement.

 

41. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving a 2019 Park Bond Budget
Transfer from P550 (2019 Park Non-Departmental) in the amount of $181,433 to P560
(SW Regional Park Restrooms).

 

42. Receive updates on the Department of Infrastructure projects and issues.
 

43. Receive the May 2021 Construction Summary Report and PowerPoint Presentation.
 

44. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action regarding a letter agreement, dated 5/10/2021 from Atmos
Energy for road construction activities in the vicinity of an existing 12-inch diameter steel gas pipeline on
CR 111 (Westinghouse Road) in Precinct 3. Project: P292  Fund Source: Road Bonds

 

45. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on Contract Amendment No. 7 to the SH
29 at DB Wood Road Improvements contract between Williamson County and
Unintech Consulting Engineers, Inc. relating to the 2013 Road Bond Program.
Project: P237  Funding Source: Road Bonds

 

46. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a resolution determining the
necessity and authorizing the use of eminent domain to condemn (0.304 acres)
required for the construction of Sam Bass Road, and take appropriate action. (John W.
Speck III and Glenda Neans-Speck)

 

47. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a resolution determining the
necessity and authorizing the use of eminent domain to condemn (0.030 acres)
required for the construction of Sam Bass Road, and take appropriate action. (Jason
Hatfield and Kasey Hatfield as Co-Trustees of the JHK Trust)

 



48. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a real estate contract with Daryl R.
Neans for right of way needed on the CR 366 project (Parcel 6). Funding Source: Road
Bonds P296

 

49. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an Interlocal Agreement Regarding
Design and Installation of Temporary Traffic Signal with the Liberty Hill ISD.

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION
"The Commissioners Court for Williamson County reserves the right to
adjourn into executive session at any time during the course of this meeting
to discuss any of the matters listed above, as authorized by Texas
Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultations with Attorney), 551.072
(Deliberations regarding Real Property), 551.073 (Deliberations regarding Gifts
and Donations), 551.074 (Personnel Matters), 551.076 (Deliberations regarding
Security Devices) and 551.087 (Deliberations regarding Economic
Development Negotiations)." 

  

 

50. Discuss real estate matters (EXECUTIVE SESSION as per VTCA Govt. Code sec.
551.072 Deliberation Regarding Real Estate Property if deliberation in an open
meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in
negotiations with third person.)

A.    Real Estate Owned by Third Parties
   Preliminary discussions relating to proposed or potential purchase or lease of
property owned by third parties
    a)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for SW 183 and SH 29 Loop. 
    b)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 176 at RM 2243
    c)    Discuss the acquisition of real property: CR 278
    d)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for County Facilities.
    e)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for Seward Junction SE and SW Loop. 
    f)     Discuss the acquisition of real property for SH 29 @ DB Wood.
    g)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 366. 
    h)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for N. Mays.
    i)     Discuss Somerset Road Districts No. 3 & 4 reimbursements for acquisition &
construction of Reagan Blvd.
    j)     Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 111.
    k)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for Corridor H
    l)     Discuss the acquisition of real property for future SH 29 corridor. 
    m)   Discuss the acquisition of real property for the expansion of Ronald Reagan at
IH 35.
    n)    Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor C.
    o)    Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor F.
    p)    Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor D.
    q)    Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for SE Loop/Corridor A. 
    r)     Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Reagan extension.
    s)    Discuss the acquisition of real property near Justice Center. 
    t)     Discuss the acquisition of drainage/detention easements for real property North
of WMCO Juvenile Detention Center
    u)    Discuss the acquisition of the MKT Right of Way
    v)    Discuss acquisition of drainage easement in relation to County Road 176



B.   Property or Real Estate owned by Williamson County
      Preliminary discussions relating to proposed or potential sale or lease of property
owned by the County
    a)    Discuss County owned real estate containing underground water rights and
interests.
    b)    Discuss possible uses of property owned by Williamson County on Main St.
between 3rd and 4th Streets. (formerly occupied by WCCHD)
    c)    Discuss property usage at Longhorn Junction
    d)    Discuss the sale of excess ROW at San Gabriel Parkway and Mel Mathis Ave. 
    e)    Discuss county owned property located at Ed Schmidt Boulevard Hutto, Texas
    f)     Discuss the sale of property located at 900 S Main St., Taylor, 76574
C.   Discuss the Williamson County Reimbursement Agreement for Construction of San
Gabriel Blvd. and New Hope Road with the City of Leander and TIRZ #1
D.   Discuss the Cobb Cavern Conservation Easement Amendment

 

51. Discussion regarding economic development negotiations pursuant to Texas
Government Code, Section 551.087:
    a)    Business prospect(s) that may locate or expand within Williamson County.
    b)    Project Crystal
    c)    Project Winston
    d)    Project Solo
    e)    Project Stamp
    f)     Project Cutting Edge

 

52. Discuss pending or contemplated litigation, settlement matters and other confidential
attorney-client legal matters (EXECUTIVE SESSION as per VTCA Govt. Code sec.
551.071 consultation with attorney.), including the following:

a)  Litigation or claims or potential litigation or claims against the County or by the
County
b)  Status Update-Pending Cases or Claims;
c)  Employee/personnel related matters
d)  Other confidential attorney-client matters, including contracts and certain matters
related to county defense issues in which the duty of the attorney to the
governmental body within the attorney/client relationship clearly conflicts with
Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.
e)  Civil Action No. 1:18-CV-49, Troy Mansfield v. Williamson County, In The United
States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.
f) Cause No. 19-0850-C368; County of Williamson vs. Purdue Pharma, LP et al., In
the District Court of Williamson County, Texas.
g)  Civil Action No. 1:17-cv-01114-LY, Elizabeth Saucedo and Tettus Davis v.
Jonathon Hodgkiss, In The United States District Court for the Western District of
Texas, Austin Division.
h)  Cause No. 1:18-CV-0198; Officer Mary Teague v. Williamson County, Travis
County and City of Giddings, In the United States District Court for the Western
District of Texas, Austin Division
i) Claim of Regina Wright.
j) Cause No. 19-0406-C368; Anthony Garcia and Victoria Garcia et al. v. Stephen
Wade Freeman et al. v. Wayne Finch et al.; In the 368th District Court of Williamson
County, Texas.
k) Case: 1:20-CV-255-LY; Jay Kreper v. Williamson County et al.; In the United

  



k) Case: 1:20-CV-255-LY; Jay Kreper v. Williamson County et al.; In the United
States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.
l) Case Number 1:20-cv-01068-LY; Javier Ambler, Sr., et al. v. Williamson County, Texas, , In
the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.
m) Case 1:20-cv-00927-LY; Heather Vargas v. Williamson County, Texas; In The
United States District Court for the Western District Of Texas Austin Division.
n) Case No. 1:20-CV-00842; SonWest Co. v. J. TERRON EVERSTON, in his official
capacity as Williamson County Engineer, et al.;   In the United States District Court
for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.
o)  Civil Action No. 1:20-cv-836; Elizabeth Firey v. Williamson County, In The United
States District Court for the Western District Of Texas Austin Division.
p) Potential legal claims, demands and/or litigation against The Travelers Indemnity
Company (Travelers).
q) Case 1:21-cv-00388-RP; Ramsey Mitchell vs. Williamson County, Robert Chody,
Zachary Camden, Mark Luera, et al.; In the United States District Court for the
Western District Of Texas, Austin Division.
r) Civil Action No. 1:21-CV-74; Scott Phillip Lewis v. Williamson County, Texas; In
the United States District Court for the Western District Of Texas, Austin Division.
s) Shamona Harris - EEOC Charge #451-2021-00812.
t) Legal matters and claims relating to the City of Austin purchasing property in
Williamson County for purposes of operating temporary or permanent housing of
homeless in Williamson County.
u) Notice of Charge of Discrimination - Bhavani Madisetti-Vemireddy TWCCRD
Charge No.: 1A21443/EEOC Charge No.: 31C-2021-00348C.
v) Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-00172-LY; Charles William Thornburg v. Williamson
County, Texas; Robert Chody, et al.; In the United States District Court for the
Western District Of Texas, Austin Division.
w) Cause No. D-1-Gn-21-000215; Mohammad Mahmood v. Williamson County
Constable Office; In the 353rd Judicial District of Travis County, Texas.
x) Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-00275; Big Fish Entertainment LLC v. Williamson County
Sheriff’s Office et al.; In the United States District Court for the Western District Of
Texas, Austin Division.
y) Cause No. 20-1964-C395; Robert Chody v. Michael Gleason, In the 395th Judicial
District Court of Williamson County, Texas.
z) EEOC Charge of Discrimination #451-2021-01357 – Jesse Gomez.
aa) Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-00350; Imani Nembhard v. Williamson County, Robert
Chody and Christopher Pisa; In the United States District Court for the Western
District Of Texas, Austin Division.
bb) Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-00350; Gary Watsky v. Williamson County, Robert
Chody, Mark Luera, Steve Deaton, et al.; In the United States District Court for the
Western District Of Texas, Austin Division.
cc) Kelli Bomer - EEOC Charge #451-2021-00920.
dd) Jesse J Gomez - EEOC Charge #451-2021-01357.

 

53. Discuss security assessments or deployments relating to information resources
technology; network security information as described by Texas Gov’t Code Section
2059.055(b); and/or (3)  the deployment, or specific occasions for implementation, of
security personnel, critical infrastructure, or security devices. (Executive Session as
per Texas Gov’t. Code § 551.089).

  

 

54. Deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties,   



54. Deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties,
discipline and/or dismissal of Williamson County officers, directors, employees
and/or positions, including but not limited to conducting deliberation and discussion
pertaining to annual reviews of department heads and appointed officials (Executive
Session as per Tex. Gov. Code Section 551.074 – Personnel Matters).

  

 

REGULAR AGENDA (continued)   

 

55. Discuss and take appropriate action concerning economic development.   

 

56. Discuss and take appropriate action concerning real estate.   

 

57. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on pending or contemplated litigation,
settlement matters and other legal matters, including the following:

a)  Litigation or claims or potential litigation or claims against the County or by the
County
b)  Status Update-Pending Cases or Claims;
c)  Employee/personnel related matters
d)  Other confidential attorney-client matters, including contracts and certain matters
related to county defense issues in which the duty of the attorney to the
governmental body within the attorney/client relationship clearly conflicts with
Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.
e)  Civil Action No. 1:18-CV-49, Troy Mansfield v. Williamson County, In The United
States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.
f) Cause No. 19-0850-C368; County of Williamson vs. Purdue Pharma, LP et al., In
the District Court of Williamson County, Texas.
g)  Civil Action No. 1:17-cv-01114-LY, Elizabeth Saucedo and Tettus Davis v.
Jonathon Hodgkiss, In The United States District Court for the Western District of
Texas, Austin Division.
h)  Cause No. 1:18-CV-0198; Officer Mary Teague v. Williamson County, Travis
County and City of Giddings, In the United States District Court for the Western
District of Texas, Austin Division
i) Claim of Regina Wright.
j) Cause No. 19-0406-C368; Anthony Garcia and Victoria Garcia et al. v. Stephen
Wade Freeman et al. v. Wayne Finch et al.; In the 368th District Court of Williamson
County, Texas.
k) Case: 1:20-CV-255-LY; Jay Kreper v. Williamson County et al.; In the United
States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.
l) Case Number 1:20-cv-01068-LY; Javier Ambler, Sr., et al. v. Williamson County, Texas, , In
the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.
m) Case 1:20-cv-00927-LY; Heather Vargas v. Williamson County, Texas; In The
United States District Court for the Western District Of Texas Austin Division.
n) Case No. 1:20-CV-00842; SonWest Co. v. J. TERRON EVERSTON, in his official
capacity as Williamson County Engineer, et al.;   In the United States District Court
for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.
o)  Civil Action No. 1:20-cv-836; Elizabeth Firey v. Williamson County, In The United
States District Court for the Western District Of Texas Austin Division.
p) Potential legal claims, demands and/or litigation against The Travelers Indemnity
Company (Travelers).

  



q) Case 1:21-cv-00388-RP; Ramsey Mitchell vs. Williamson County, Robert Chody,
Zachary Camden, Mark Luera, et al.; In the United States District Court for the
Western District Of Texas, Austin Division.
r) Civil Action No. 1:21-CV-74; Scott Phillip Lewis v. Williamson County, Texas; In
the United States District Court for the Western District Of Texas, Austin Division.
s) Shamona Harris - EEOC Charge #451-2021-00812.
t) Legal matters and claims relating to the City of Austin purchasing property in
Williamson County for purposes of operating temporary or permanent housing of
homeless in Williamson County.
u) Notice of Charge of Discrimination - Bhavani Madisetti-Vemireddy TWCCRD
Charge No.: 1A21443/EEOC Charge No.: 31C-2021-00348C.
v) Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-00172-LY; Charles William Thornburg v. Williamson
County, Texas; Robert Chody, et al.; In the United States District Court for the
Western District Of Texas, Austin Division.
w) Cause No. D-1-Gn-21-000215; Mohammad Mahmood v. Williamson County
Constable Office; In the 353rd Judicial District of Travis County, Texas.
x) Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-00275; Big Fish Entertainment LLC v. Williamson County
Sheriff’s Office et al.; In the United States District Court for the Western District Of
Texas, Austin Division.
y) Cause No. 20-1964-C395; Robert Chody v. Michael Gleason, In the 395th Judicial
District Court of Williamson County, Texas.
z) EEOC Charge of Discrimination #451-2021-01357 – Jesse Gomez.
aa) Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-00350; Imani Nembhard v. Williamson County, Robert
Chody and Christopher Pisa; In the United States District Court for the Western
District Of Texas, Austin Division.
bb) Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-00350; Gary Watsky v. Williamson County, Robert
Chody, Mark Luera, Steve Deaton, et al.; In the United States District Court for the
Western District Of Texas, Austin Division.
cc) Kelli Bomer - EEOC Charge #451-2021-00920.
dd) Jesse J Gomez - EEOC Charge #451-2021-01357.

 

58. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action regarding the appointment, employment, evaluation,
reassignment, duties, discipline and/or dismissal of Williamson County officers, directors or
employees, including but not limited to any necessary action pertaining to conducting annual reviews
of department heads and appointed officials.

  

 

59. Comments from Commissioners.   

 

60. Public Comment Period. The Commissioners Court will conduct a Public Comment Period to allow
members of the public to address the Court regarding matters pertaining to or affecting Williamson
County but that do not appear as an Agenda Item on a meeting’s Agenda.  During such Public
Comment Period, speakers shall be limited to a maximum of two (2) minutes to make his/her remarks
and the maximum overall discussion time allowed for the Public Comment Period, regardless of the
number of members of the public wishing to address the Court during such period, shall be limited to
ten (10) minutes.  Speaking time, to the extent possible, will be evenly allocated among speakers
should more than five (5) speakers desire to speak during the Public Comment Period.  Please note
that the members of the Court may not comment at the meeting about matters that are not on the
agenda.

  

 

_________________________
Bill Gravell, Jr., County Judge



This notice of meeting was posted in the locked box located on the south side of the Williamson
County Courthouse, a place readily accessible to the general public at all times, on the 20th day
of May 2021 at 5:00 PM and remained posted for at least 72 continuous hours preceding the
scheduled time of said meeting.



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 3.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

Line Item Transfer
Submitted For: Dale Butler  Submitted By: Gina Wrehsnig, Building

Maintenance
Department: Building Maintenance
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Facilities.

Background
Need additional funds for the Jail Lock Repair contract, RFP T3711.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100.0509.004962 Janitorial Contract Services $21,000.00
To 0100.0509.004510 Facility Maint & Repair $21,000.00

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/13/2021 03:48 PM
Budget Office Ashlie Holladay 05/14/2021 09:00 AM
Form Started By: Gina Wrehsnig Started On: 05/13/2021 02:24 PM
Final Approval Date: 05/14/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 4.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

Line Item Transfer
Submitted For: Dale Butler  Submitted By: Gina Wrehsnig, Building

Maintenance
Department: Building Maintenance
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Facilities.

Background
Need to move funds to correct budget line coding of bucket truck from equipment to vehicles.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100.0509.005003 Equipment > $5,000 $91,818.50
To 0100.0509.005700 Vehicles > $5,000 $91,818.50

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/14/2021 03:31 PM
Budget Office Ashlie Holladay 05/14/2021 04:07 PM
Form Started By: Gina Wrehsnig Started On: 05/14/2021 01:46 PM
Final Approval Date: 05/14/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 5.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

Line Item Transfer
Submitted For: Ashlie Holladay  Submitted By: Ashlie Holladay, Budget

Office
Department: Budget Office
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Justice of the Peace,
Precinct #2.

Background
Increased population as well as an increase in death inquests has caused us to deplete our
funding in the autopsy line.  This transfer will provide funding through September 30th, 2021.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
FROM 0100-0409-004998 Non Departmental/Contingencies $152,000
TO 0100-0452-004190 JP#2/Autopsies $152,000

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/18/2021 02:01 PM
Form Started By: Ashlie Holladay Started On: 05/18/2021 10:25 AM
Final Approval Date: 05/18/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 6.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

Property Tax Refunds – Over 2500 – Thru 05/20/2021
Submitted For: Larry Gaddes  Submitted By: Renee Clark, County Tax

Assessor Collector
Department: County Tax Assessor Collector
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving property tax refunds over
$2,500.00 thru 05/20/2021 for the Williamson County Tax Assessor/Collector.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
050621-052021 Refunds Over 2500 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 09:21 AM
Form Started By: Renee Clark Started On: 05/19/2021 03:23 PM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 



Larry Gaddes PCAC, C T A 
Tax Assessor/Collector 

904 South Main  Street 

Georgetown, Texas 78626 

Motor Vehicle Telephone: 512.943.1602 

Property Tax Telephone: 512.943.1603 

www.wi l co . o rg / t a x    
 
 

1801 E. Old Settler’s Blvd., Ste  115

Round Rock, Texas 78664 

Telephone:  512.244.8644 

350 Discovery Blvd., Ste. 101 

Cedar Park,  Texas 78613 

Telephone:  512.260.4290 

412 Vance St., Ste. 1

Taylor, Texas 76574 

Telephone:  512.352.4140

Annex Locations: Main  Office  and Mailing Address:  

Date: May 20, 2021 

To: Members of the Commissioners Court 

From: Larry Gaddes PCAC, CTA 

Subject: Property Tax Refunds 

In accordance with Section 31.11 of the Property Tax Code, the court needs 

to approve all refunds in excess of $2,500.00. We are presenting the 

attached list which includes these property tax refunds for your approval. 

Please contact me at (512) 943-1954, if you have any questions. 

Thank you. 



Type Date Num Name Memo Amount

Refunds Payable - Taxpayers
Check 05/19/2021 80340 WILLIAMSON COUNTY TAX OFFICE R414467 - Double payment - Pay back -5,111.55
Check 05/19/2021 80343 CORELOGIC R341255 - Erroneous Payment -5,405.71

Total Refunds Payable - Taxpayers -10,517.26

TOTAL -10,517.26

2:46 PM Property Tax

05/19/21 Account QuickReport
As of May 19, 2021

Page 1



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 7.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

Compensation Items
Submitted By: Kayla Marek, Human Resources
Department: Human Resources
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving compensation changes, position
titles changes, position grade changes and any corresponding line item transfers.

Background
See attached documentation for details.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Merit Report 
Merit LIT 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Human Resources (Originator) Rebecca Clemons 05/19/2021 05:04 PM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 09:27 AM
Form Started By: Kayla Marek Started On: 05/19/2021 04:58 PM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 



Department Position Emp Num

Current Annual 

Salary Merit%

Lumpsum 

Merit

Pay Proposal 

Reason

Effective Date 

of Change

Benefits Wellness Coordinator.1951.001100. 15575 $58,823.44 1.00% $588.23 MERIT 28-May-21

Building Maintenance Jail Maint Tech I.0241.001100. 14675 $37,805.64 1.00% $378.05 MERIT 28-May-21



(TO) (FROM)

entity fund dept object dr cr

01 0100 0509 001100 378.05

01 0100 0509 001130 378.05

01 0885 0886 001100 588.23

01 0885 0886 001130 588.23



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 8.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

Justice of the Peace 4 April 2021 Monthly Report
Submitted By: Veronica Bolander, J.P. Pct. #4
Department: J.P. Pct. #4
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action to approve Justice of the Peace, Pct. 4, April 2021 Monthly Report in
compliance with Code of Crim. Proc. § 103.005.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
JP4 EOM APRIL 2021 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 11:10 AM
Form Started By: Veronica Bolander Started On: 05/20/2021 10:20 AM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 



IN COMPLIANCE WITH ARTICLE 103 
CODE OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON 

I, Stacy Hackenberg, Justice of the Peace, Precinct 4, Williamson County, 
on my oath, state that the attached report of money collected is a true and 
correct report for the month of April 2021. 

Signed on this the 19th day of May, 2021. 

STACY HACKENBERG 
JUSTICE OF THE PEACE 
PRECINCT FOUR 

adref
Seal



Payment Report -Transaction/Adjustment Detail 
Transaction Date: 04/01/2021 - 04/30/2021 
Locations: JP4 

Final Totals 

Total Payments 

Total Adjustments Impacting Payments 

Final Fee Code Totals 

Tender Method Summary 

Cashier's Check 

Case Categories: All 

Certified Payments Credit Card 

Tender Types Check 

E-File Credit Card 

Money Order 

Printed on 05/07/2021 at 05:00:14 PM 

TXWILLIAMSONPROD 

Fee Totals Transaction Totals 

26,671.65 26,671.65 

0.00 0.00 

26,671.65 26,671 .65 

260.00 260.00 

8,397.55 8,397.55 

2,129.00 2,129.00 

13,403.00 13,403.00 

2,482.10 2,482.10 

Page 14 

Detailed report is available through the Auditor’s Office.



Payment Report - G/L and Fund Summary TXWILLIAMSONPROD 

Transaction Date: 04/01/2021 - 04/30/2021 
Locations: JP4 

G/L Account 

0100 - General Fund 

Case Categories: All 

01-0100-0000-207017 - Collections Agency Fee 

01-0100-0000-209700 - JP COURTS-REFUNDS 

01 -0100-0000-341804 - FEES OF OFFICE, JP PCT-4 

01-0100-0000-341904 - CIVIL FEES/OFFICE, CONST 4 

01-0100-0000-341914- CRIMINAL FEES/OFFICE, CONST 4 

01-0100-0000-342860 -Time Payment Fee County 2.50 

01-0100-0000-351304 - FINES, JP PCT-4 

01-0100-0000-370500 - Miscellaneous Revenue 

01-0399-0000-208354 - Judicial/Court Train Fee Due to State 

99-9999-9999-000003 - LOCAL Consolidated CC-Misd C 

0361 - JP Security Fund 

/01-0361-0000-341154- JP 4 SECURITY FEES 

0369 - JP-4 Truancy Program Fund 

/01-0369-0000-370000 - JP-4 Truancy Program Fees 

0372 - Justice Court Technology Fund 

/01-0372-0000-3411 44 - JP 4 TECHNOLOGY FEES 

Printed on 05/07/2021 at 05:00:14 PM 

G/L Account Number Fee Totals 

L-004-4-01-0100-0000-207017: 01-0100-0000-207017 - Collections Agency Fee 236.50 

L-004-4-01-0100-0000-209700: 01-0100-0000-209700 - JP Courts Refunds 71 .00 

L-004-4-01-0100-0000-341804: 01 -0100-0000-341804 - Fees of Office, JP Pct. #4 6,246.08 

L-004-4-01-0100-0000-341904: 01-0100-0000-341904 - Fees of Office, Const. PCT #4 3,940.00 

L-004-4-01-0100-0000-341914: 01-0100-0000-341914 - Fees of Office, Crim. Const PCT #4 85.04 

L-004-4-01-0100-0000-342860: 01-0100-0000-342860 - Time Payment Fee County 2.50 8.04 

L-004-4-01 -0100-0000-351304: 01 -0100-0000-351304 - FINES, JP PCT #4 5,457.70 

L-004-4-01-0100-0000-370500: 01-0100-0000-370500 - Miscellaneous Revenue 1.00 

L-004-4-01-0399-0000-208354: 01-0399-0000-208354 - Judicial/Court Train Fee Due to State 1,180.00 

L-004-4-99-9999-9999-000003: 99-9999-9999-000003 - LOCAL Consol idated CC-MISD C 553.52 

0100 - General Fund Total: 17,778.88 

jL-004-4-01 -0361-0000-341154: 01-0361 -0000-341154 - JP 4 SECURITY FEES 

0361 - JP Security Fund Total : 6.57 

jL-004-4-01 -0369-0000-370000: 01 -0369-0000-370000 - JP-4 Truancy Program Fee 8.20 / 
0369 - JP-4 Truancy Program Fund Total: 8.20 

I L-004-4-01-0372-0000-341144: 01-0372-0000-341144 - JP #4 TECHNOLOGY FEES 6.56 1 

0372 - Justice Court Technology Fund Total: 6.56 

Page 15 



Payment Report - G/L and Fund Summary TXWILLIAMSONPROD 

Transaction Date: 04/01/2021 - 04/30/2021 
Locations: JP4 

G/L Account 

0399 - State Agency Fund 

Case Categories: All 

01-0399-0000-208022 - Justice Courts Civil Electronic Filing 

01-0399-0000-208034 - JP 4 Truancy Prev/Diversion - State 

01 -0399-0000-208160 - CCC FEES DUE TO STATE COMP 

01-0399-0000-208165 - CCC 01 .2020 Fee's Due to State 

01 -0399-0000-208235- JURY SERVICE FEES DUE TO STATE 

01 -0399-0000-208352 - CRIMINAL JUDICIAL SUPPORT DUE 

01 -0399-0000-208400 - DPS ARREST FEES DUE TO STATE 

01 -0399-0000-208415- MOVING VIOLATION FEE DUE TO ST 

01 -0399-0000-208425- ST TRAFFIC FEES DUE TO STATE 

01 -0399-0000-208426 - State Traffic Fine Due To State 

01-0399-0000-208703 - INDIGENT DEF FEES - DUE TO ST 

01-0399-0000-208822 - JP CIVIL LEGAL FEE FOR INDIGEN 

01-0399-0000-208860 - TIME PYMT FEES DUE TO STATE 

JP BOND 

!01-0100-0000-207008- JP4 Bond Liability Account 

Printed on 05/07/2021 at 05:00:1 4 PM 

G/L Account Number 

L-004-4-01-0399-0000-208022: 01-0399-0000-208022 - JP Ct. Civil Electronic Filing Fee 

L-004-4-01-0399-0000-208034: 01 -0399-0000-208034 - JP 4 Truancy Prev/Diversion - State 

L-004-3-01 -0399-0000-208160: 01-0399-0000-208160 - Consol idated Court Costs 

L-004-4-01-0399-0000-208165: 01-0399-0000-208165- State Con Court Cost LGC 133.102(a)(3 

L-004-4-01-0399-0000-208235: 01-0399-0000-208235 - Jury Service Fee 

L-004-4-01 -0399-0000-208352: 01-0399-0000-208352 - Support of the Judiciary Fund 

L-004-4-01-0399-0000-208400: 01 -0399-0000-208400 - Texas Highway Patrol Arrest Fees 

L-004-4-01 -0399-0000-208415: 01 -0399-0000-208415 - Moving Violation Fee Due to State 

L-004-4-01-0399-0000-208425: 01-0399-0000-208425 - State Traffic Fee 

L-004-4-01 -0399-0000-208426: 01 -0399-0000-208426 - State Traffic Fine Due To State 

L-004-4-01 -0399-0000-208703: 01-0399-0000-208703 - Indigent Defense Fee 

L-004-4-01-0399-0000-208822: 01 -0399-0000-208822 - JP Civil Legal Fee for Indigent 

L-004-4-01-0399-0000-208860: 01-0399-0000-208860 - Time Payment 

0399 - State Agency Fund Total : 

IL-004-4-01 -02-00002: JP4 Registry Bond Account Liability 

JP BOND Total : 

Fee Totals for All Funds: 

Fee Totals 

2,360.00 

2.68 

65.75 

2,389.30 

6.56 

9.84 

134.19 

0.04 

10.23 

1,426.84 

3.29 

1,416.00 

46.72 

7,871.44 

1,000.00 1 

1,000.00 

26,671 .65 

Page 16 



Payment Report - Fee Code Summary 
Transaction Date: 04/01/2021 - 04/30/2021 
Locations: JP4 

Case Categories: All 

Fee Code Summary 

Code Word Description 

2020AFC4 Arrest Fee - Constable 4 CCP 102.011 (a)(1 ), 
102.011(e) 

2020AFDPS Arrest Fee - DPS CCP 102.011 .(a)(1), 102.011(e; 

2020AFSO Arrest Fee - Sheriffs Office 102.011 (a)(1 ), 
102.011(e) 

2020CCC State Cons Court Cost LGC 133.102(a)(3) 

2020DSCM Driving Safety Course Mandatory CCP 45. 
0511 (f)(1) 

2020LCCC-C LOCAL Consolidated Court Cost LGC 134.103(a) 

2020LTF Local Traffic Fine (TC 542.403) 

2020STF State Traffic Fine (TC 542.4031) 

2020TPF Time Payment Fee CCP 102.030 

AFDPS Arrest Fee - DPS (CCP 102.011) 

AFSO Arrest Fee - Sheriffs Office (CCP 102.011) 

CB Cash Bond 

CCC Consolidated Court Costs (Loe. Gov't Code, 
133.102) 

CCFF Counter/Cross Claim Filing Fee 

CCOP Civil Copies 

CERT Certified Copy 

CFINE County Fine 

CHS Courthouse Security Fee (CCP 102.017) 

CHSJC JP Security Fee (CCP 102.017) 

CJS Criminal Judicial Support Fee (LGC 103.105) 

COLLFEE Collection Agency Fee 

CONT4 Constable Service Fee Pct #4 

CVFEEOVER Civil Overpayment Fee 

DDF Deferred Disposition Fee 

EFF Electronic Filing Fee 

IDF Indigent Defense Fee (LGC 133.107) 

ISF Indigent Legal Services Fee 

JCF Civil Filing Fee 

JCTF Judicial/Court Training Fee Due to State 

Printed on 05/07/2021 at 05:00:14 PM 

Gross 

Amount 

15.00 

127.69 

45.00 

2,389.30 

60.00 

553.52 

85.61 

1,426.84 

8.04 

6.50 

1.70 

1,000.00 

65.75 

25.00 

1.00 

24.75 

5,457.70 

4.94 

1.63 

9.84 

236.50 

2,590.00 

71.00 

5.00 

2,360.00 

3.29 

1,416.00 

5,850.00 

1,180.00 

TXWILLIAMSONPROD 

Positive Adjustments Negative Adjustments Net 

Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount Number 

3 0.00 0 0.00 0 15.00 3 

26 0.00 0 0.00 0 127.69 26 

9 0.00 0 0.00 0 45.00 9 

40 0.00 0 0.00 0 2,389.30 40 

7 0.00 0 0.00 0 60 .00 7 

41 0.00 0 0.00 0 553.52 41 

30 0.00 0 0.00 0 85.61 30 

30 0.00 0 0.00 0 1,426.84 30 

1 0.00 0 0.00 0 8.04 1 

2 0.00 0 0.00 0 6.50 2 

1 0.00 0 0.00 0 1.70 1 

2 0.00 0 0.00 0 1,000.00 2 

3 0.00 0 0.00 0 65.75 3 

1 0.00 0 0.00 0 25.00 1 

1 0.00 0 0.00 0 1.00 1 

4 0.00 0 0.00 0 24.75 4 

35 0.00 0 0.00 0 5,457.70 35 

3 0.00 0 0.00 0 4.94 3 

3 0.00 0 0.00 0 1.63 3 

3 0.00 0 0.00 0 9.84 3 

2 0.00 0 0.00 0 236.50 2 

25 0.00 0 0.00 0 2,590.00 25 

1 0.00 0 0.00 0 71 .00 1 

1 0.00 0 0.00 0 5.00 1 

236 0.00 0 0.00 0 2,360.00 236 

3 0.00 0 0.00 0 3.29 3 

236 0.00 0 0.00 0 1,416.00 236 

234 0.00 0 0.00 0 5,850.00 234 

236 0.00 0 0.00 0 1,180.00 236 

Page 17 



Payment Report - Fee Code Summary 
Transaction Date: 04/01/2021 - 04/30/2021 
Locations: JP4 

Case Categories: All 

Fee Code Summary 

Code Word Description 

JCTF 

JFR 

JTP 

JURY 

LT10 

MVF 

SCFF 

SFC4 

STF 

TFC 

TP 

TPDF 

WARC4 

WEXEC 

WF 

WPOSS 

WSF4 

Justice Court Technology Fee (CCP 102.0173) 

Jury Reimbursement Fee (CCP 102.0045) 

Juvenile Truancy Program (CCP 102.0174) 

Jury Fee 

Overpayments < $10 

Moving Violation Fee (CCP 102.022) 

Small Claims Filing Fee 

Service/Arrest Fee - Const. 4 

State Traffic Fee (TC 542.4031) 

Traffic 

Time Payment Fee 

Truancy Prevention and Diversion Fund - JP4 
eDoc Conversion 

Warrant Fee - Constable Pct. 4 

Writ of Execution 

Warrant Fee 

Writ of Possession 

JP4 - Writ Service Fee 

Fee Code Summary Totals 

Printed on 05/07/2021 at 05:00:14 PM 

Gross 

Amount 

6.56 

6.56 

8.20 

22.00 

1.00 

0.04 

25.00 

5.00 

10.23 

1.02 

46.72 

2.68 

65.04 

35.00 

50.00 

15.00 

1,350.00 

Gross 

Amount 

26,671 .65 

TXWILLIAMSONPROD 

Positive Adjustments Negative Adjustments Net 

Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount Number 

3 0.00 0 0.00 0 6.56 3 

3 0.00 0 0.00 0 6.56 3 

3 0.00 0 0.00 0 8.20 3 

0.00 0 0.00 0 22.00 

0.00 0 0.00 0 1.00 

0.00 0 0.00 0 0.04 

0.00 0 0.00 0 25.00 

0.00 0 0.00 0 5.00 

0.00 0 0.00 0 10.23 

0.00 0 0.00 0 1.02 1 

3 0.00 0 0.00 0 46.72 3 

2 0.00 0 0.00 0 2.68 2 

2 0.00 0 0.00 0 65.04 2 

8 0.00 0 0.00 0 35.00 8 

0.00 0 0.00 0 50.00 1 

3 0.00 0 0.00 0 15.00 3 

10 0.00 0 0.00 0 1,350.00 10 

Positive Adjustments Negative Adjustments Net 

Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount Number 

1,264 0.00 0 0.00 0 26,671 .65 1,264 

Page 18 



Deposit Date: 04/01/2021-04/30/2021 

Local CCC-Class C 

Court Security Fee 

Local Truancy Prevention & Diversion Fund Fee 

Justice Court Technology Fund 

County Jury Fund Fee 

Percentage Distribution Total: 

Collected 

DR 

$193.73 

$197.69 
$158.15 

$3.95 
$553.52 

$553.52 

Justice of the Peace 4 

Consolidated Court Cost Calculation Sheet 

CR GLCode 

$553.52 99-9999-9999-000003 

01.0361.0000.341154 
01.0369.0000.370000 
01.0372.0000.341144 

01.0100.0000.342853 

$553.52 

GL Description ALLOCATION % 

Local CCC-Class C Due to County 

COURTHOUSE SECURITY FEES 35.000000% 

Local Truancy Prevention & Diversion Fund Fee 35.714300% 

Justice Court Technology Fund 28.571400% 

County Jury Fund Fee 0.714300% 
100.000000% 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 9.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

County Attorney April 2021 Monthly Report
Submitted For: D. Hobbs  Submitted By: Stephanie Lloyd, County

Attorney
Department: County Attorney
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action to approve the County Attorney April 2021
Monthly Report in compliance with Code of Criminal Procedure 103.005.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
April report 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 09:20 AM
Form Started By: Stephanie Lloyd Started On: 05/19/2021 02:15 PM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 





CA - AR Receipts

GL Revenue
Object

GL Revenue Fund Receipt Source Receipt Date Receipt Number Receipt Comment

207015 0100 CO ATTY 06-Apr-2021 29924 2019-6753 2019-5707 2016-7815

07-Apr-2021 29930 2020-2824

09-Apr-2021 29941 2020-0493

13-Apr-2021 29956 2020-0580 2020-0596

20-Apr-2021 29980 2020-0405 2020-1136 2020-3033 2020-3860

22-Apr-2021 29990 2021-0125

29-Apr-2021 30021 2019-5518

CO ATTY 1 15-Apr-2021 29965 2019-3736 2020-0028 2020-1450

CO ATTY 2 15-Apr-2021 29965 2019-6671 2020-3326

207015 Total

341300 0406 CO ATTY HC FEES 06-Apr-2021 29924 HOT CHECK RESTITUTION

341300 Total

351000 0364 CO ATTY INTERVENTION 01-Apr-2021 29921 2020-1035 2019-6753 2019-5707

09-Apr-2021 29941 2020-1856 2020-3620 2020-0762

12-Apr-2021 29949 2020-1230 2020-1450

13-Apr-2021 29956 2019-4104 2020-3345

14-Apr-2021 29962 2019-2511 2019-6671 2020-0028 2021-0069

19-Apr-2021 29976 2019-4153 2019-6798 2020-0062 2020-1136 2020-1160 2020-
3017 2020-3033

22-Apr-2021 29990 2020-0405 2020-0774 2020-1769

23-Apr-2021 29994 2019-4153 2020-1781 2020-3326

27-Apr-2021 30008 2019-4949 2020-1563 2020-1847 2020-1883

30-Apr-2021 30027 2019-5023 2019-5518 2020-3860

CO ATTY INTERVENTION 1 07-Apr-2021 29930 2020-2824

29-Apr-2021 30021 2020-0135

CO ATTY INTERVENTION 2 07-Apr-2021 29930 2019-5707 2020-0493 2020-2405 2020-2521 2020-3019

351000 Total

370500 0406 CO ATTY HC FEES 06-Apr-2021 29924 OVERPAYMENTS

370500 Total

Grand Total

Receipt Amount

$ 1,714.96

$ 60.00

$ 60.00

$ 120.00

$ 240.00

$ 530.00

$ 60.00

$ 700.00

$ 120.00

$ 3,604.96

$ 275.00

$ 275.00

$ 1,060.00

$ 1,360.00

$ 1,000.00

$ 1,000.00

$ 1,580.00

$ 2,930.00

$ 1,360.00

$ 1,150.00

$ 2,000.00

$ 1,360.00

$ 500.00

$ 360.00

$ 2,160.00

$ 17,820.00

$ .04

$ .04

$ 21,700.00

Page 2 of 4



Date Payor Amount Case # Deposit Date

3/18/2021 Daria Kelley 60.00$  2020-0580 3/23/2021 **Report sent to Treasurer on 04/13/2021**

3/18/2021 Damaris Thongsavanh 60.00$  2020-0596 3/23/2021 **Report sent to Treasurer on 04/13/2021**

120.00$  

Date Payor Amount Case # Deposit Date

3/30/2021 Martin Bernal-Gonzales 60.00$  2019-6753 4/1/2021

3/30/2021 Patrick Cole Ciampi 60.00$  2019-5707 4/1/2021

3/31/2021 Tondra Kay Davis 1,594.96$              2016-7815 4/1/2021

1,714.96$              

Date Payor Amount Case # Deposit Date

4/2/2021 Michael Patrick McCarthy 60.00$  2020-2824 4/6/2021

Date Payor Amount Case # Deposit Date

4/6/2021 Kristine Fuentes 60.00$  20-00663-1 4/8/2021

60.00$  

Date Payor Amount Case # Deposit Date

4/8/2021 Pete Anthony Lucio 400.00$  2019-3736 4/13/2021

4/9/2021 Nickloas Clint DeShazo 60.00$  2020-1450 4/13/2021

4/12/2021 Keith Murray 240.00$  2020-0028 4/13/2021

700.00$  

Date Payor Amount Case # Deposit Date

4/13/2021 Joseph Cole Couey 60.00$  2019-6671 4/15/2021

4/14/2021 Jack Allen Carroll 60.00$  2020-3326 4/15/2021

120.00$  

Date Payor Amount Case # Deposit Date

4/15/2021 Alberto Almanza Aviles 60.00$  2020-3033 4/20/2021

4/19/2021 Benjamin Charles Tijerina 60.00$  2020-0405 4/20/2021

4/19/2021 Harley Isaac Scanlan 60.00$  2020-1136 4/20/2021

4/19/2021 Chad M Lindsey 60.00$  2020-3860 4/20/2021

240.00$  

Date Payor Amount Case # Deposit Date

4/20/2021 Kendall Alyse Meredith 530.00$  2021-0125 4/22/2021

530.00$  

Date Payor Amount Case # Deposit Date

4/28/2021 Aubrey Christine Adams 60.00$  2019-5518 4/29/2021

60.00$  

Criminal Restitution April 2021



Disbursement Summary

Code Word Description
(+) Collection
Amount

(+) Previous
Escrow

(-) Escrow
Deductions

(-) Escrow
Held

Disbursement
Amount

CHKFEE Check Fee 275.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 275.00

CHKRETOVER Overpayment (Retained by County) 0.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.04

Disbursement Summary Totals 275.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 275.04

(+) Collection
Amount

(+) Previous
Escrow

(-) Escrow
Deductions

(-) Escrow
Held

Disbursement
Amount

Check ID Number Defendant Code

Disbursement Detail
(+) Collection
Amount

(+) Previous
Escrow

(-) Escrow
Deductions

(-) Escrow
Held

Disbursement
Amount

CHKFEE 30.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 30.0013-01982 HERRIN, CHRISTINA CHARMAINE
(PID #: 559744)

CHKFEE 50.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 50.0013-02184 HERRIN, CHRISTINA CHARMAINE
(PID #: 559744)

CHKFEE 30.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 30.00
CHKRETOVER 0.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.04

19-00200 Beechum, Angela D (PID #: 519949)

CHKFEE 30.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 30.0019-00208 Beechum, Angela D (PID #: 519949)
CHKFEE 30.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 30.0019-00343 Nacol, Megan K (PID #: 1630848)
CHKFEE 30.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 30.0019-00375 Parish, Cynthia R (PID #: 1636901)
CHKFEE 75.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 75.0021-00005 LUNA, MIGUEL A (PID #: 1059545)

Totals: 275.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 275.04

Disbursement Summary

Collection Date Range:

TXWILLIAMSONP
ROD

03/01/2021 - 03/31/2021

County Attorney

Williamson County Treasurer - HC

County Attorney Bank

Final CopyIgnore Tender Holds: No

Printed on 04/01/2021 at 12:20 pm Page 8 of 10

Hot Check Fees April 2021



3/29/2021 Corey Allen Collier 500.00$     2020-1035 3/31/2021

3/30/2021 Martin Bernal-Gonzales 500.00$     2019-6753 3/31/2021

3/30/2021 Patrick Cole Ciampi 60.00$       2019-5707 3/31/2021 Partial amount only - will monitor for receipt of full payment

1,060.00$  

3/31/2021 Homer Wilson 500.00$     2019-4104 4/2/2021 **Report sent to Treasurer on 04/12/2021**

3/31/2021 Jordan Baird 500.00$     2020-3345 4/2/2021 **Report sent to Treasurer on 04/12/2021**

1,000.00$  

4/2/2021 Michael Patrick McCarthy 500.00$     2020-2824 4/5/2021

500.00$     

4/5/2021 Patrick Cole Ciampi 300.00$     2019-5707 4/7/2021

4/5/2021 Karigan T Pericoli 360.00$     2020-2405 4/7/2021

4/5/2021 Miguel Angel Gussoni 500.00$     2020-2521 4/7/2021

4/6/2021 Kristine Margaret Fuentes 500.00$     2020-0493 4/7/2021

4/6/2021 Kassandra Jeanne Hahn 500.00$     2020-3019 4/7/2021

2,160.00$  

4/7/2021 Zachary Pleasant 360.00$     2020-1856 4/9/2021

4/7/2021 Taofeek Alagbada 500.00$     2020-0672 4/9/2021

4/8/2021 Jodi Ciezak 500.00$     2020-3620 4/9/2021

1,360.00$  

4/9/2021 Maximino Lopez-Perez 500.00$     2020-1230 4/12/2021

4/9/2021 Nickolas Clint DeShazo 500.00$     2020-1450 4/12/2021

1,000.00$  

4/12/2021 Arian Ayala 360.00$     2019-2511 4/14/2021

4/12/2021 Keith Murray 360.00$     2020-0028 4/14/2021

4/13/2021 Joseph Cole Couey 360.00$     2019-6671 4/14/2021

4/13/2021 Clyde Viktor Hill 500.00$     2021-0069 4/14/2021

1,580.00$  

4/14/2021 Jeremy Dybala 360.00$     2019-6798 4/16/2021

4/14/2021 Brian Todd Cowley 500.00$     2020-0062 4/16/2021

4/14/2021 Jaiden Rai Serna 360.00$     2020-1160 4/16/2021

4/14/2021 Rodney James Forehlich, II 500.00$     2020-3017 4/16/2021

4/15/2021 Joseph Jermaine Jordan 350.00$     2019-4153 4/16/2021

4/15/2021 Harley Isaac Scanlan 360.00$     2020-1136 4/16/2021

4/15/2021 Alberto Almanza Aviles 500.00$     2020-3033 4/16/2021

2,930.00$  

4/19/2021 Benjamin Charles Tijerina 500.00$     2020-0405 4/21/2021

4/19/2021 Elizabeth Ann Barkalow 360.00$     2020-0774 4/21/2021

4/19/2021 Jose Antonio Villatoro 500.00$     2020-1769 4/21/2021

1,360.00$  

4/21/2021 Joseph Jermaine Jordan 150.00$     2019-4153 4/23/2021

4/21/2021 Ryan Hait-Campbell 500.00$     2020-1781 4/23/2021

4/21/2021 Jack Allen Carroll 500.00$     2020-3326 4/23/2021

4/21/2021 Jack Allen Carroll 60.00$       2020-3326 4/23/2021 Duplicate payment made in error

4/21/2021 Jack Allen Carroll (60.00)$      2020-3326 4/23/2021 refund of above noted duplicate payment

1,150.00$  

4/23/2021 Colemand Jones 500.00$     2019-4949 4/26/2021

4/23/2021 Leonel Ramos 500.00$     2020-1563 4/26/2021

4/23/2021 Christopher Marcus Showels 500.00$     2020-1847 4/26/2021

4/23/2021 Molly Marie Lovitt 500.00$     2020-1883 4/26/2021

2,000.00$  

4/26/2021 Tania Elevera Felan 360.00$     2020-0135 4/28/2021

360.00$     

4/28/2021 Jasper Talieson Walker 500.00$     2019-5023 4/30/2021

4/28/2021 Aubrey Christine Adams 360.00$     2019-5518 4/30/2021

4/29/2021 Chad M Lindsey 500.00$     2020-3860 4/30/2021

1,360.00$  

PTI Fees April 2021



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 10.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

Donation from Vested Interest in K9's
Submitted For: Mike Gleason  Submitted By: Peggy Braun, Sheriff
Department: Sheriff
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on accepting a bite suit donated to the
Williamson County Sheriff's Office from Vested Interest in K9.

Background
The bite suit is being donated as a thank you for participation in the Vested Interest in K9s, Inc.
2021 Calendar event fundraiser. The estimated value of the bite suit is $1,800.00.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 09:04 AM
Form Started By: Peggy Braun Started On: 05/19/2021 12:04 PM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 11.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

SO Vehicle Purchase
Submitted For: Joy Simonton  Submitted By: Laura Zavala, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the purchase of
two (2) replacement Chevrolet Tahoes from Lake Country Chevrolet Inc. in the amount of
$77,457.00, pursuant to GoodBuy contract #21 8F000.

Background
Approval of this item will support the operations of the Williamson County Sheriff's Department.
These vehicles are replacement for SB1738 & SB1865. The purchase of these vehicles have
been approved by Budget and Fleet. Department contact is Chief Pat Erickson. This
expenditure will be charged to 01.0100.0560.005700.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Lake Country Chevrolet Inc 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 05/19/2021 04:51 PM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 08:46 AM
Form Started By: Laura Zavala Started On: 05/18/2021 02:14 PM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 





   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 12.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

Knox Box Donations 5.25.21
Submitted For: Joy Simonton  Submitted By: Mary Watson, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the donation of surplus equipment from the Williamson
County Fire Marshall’s Office for use by volunteer fire departments in the communities of Bartlett, Coupland,
Florence, Granger, Thrall, Weir and the Avery Pickett VFD pursuant to Tex. Loc. Gov. Code § 263.152 to promote
public health and safety.

Background
The surplus equipment is not for use in a Fire Marshal's Office.  It's intended use is for First
Responder's agencies such as Fire Departments.  The Fair Market Value attachment was
provided by Hank Jones, Fire Marshal.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Knox Box Fair Market Value 
Asset Status Change Form 5.17.21 
Asset Status Change Form (2) 5.17.21 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 05/19/2021 04:50 PM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 08:46 AM
Form Started By: Mary Watson Started On: 05/17/2021 04:03 PM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 



Knox Product Description
Number of 

Items
List Price 20 %Restocking Fee Re-Keying Cost

Market Value                  
Per Item

Total Market Value of 
Knox Items 

KeySecure KSM-200 (Mechanical key only) 5 $1,321.00 $264.20 $75.00 $981.80 $4,909.00
KeySecure 6 (eKey & Mechanical key) 4 $1,423.00 $284.60 $75.00 $1,063.40 $4,253.60
Knox Box Home (Mechanical key) 2 $170.00 $34.00 $75.00 $61.00 $122.00
Knox Box 3200 (eKey) 1 $407.00 $81.40 $75.00 $250.60 $250.60
eKey 4 $519.00 $103.80 $0.00 $415.20 $1,660.80
Knox Dock (KLS-8600D) 4 $216.00 $43.20 $0.00 $172.80 $691.20
45 degree mounting bracket for KeySecure 3 $86.00 $17.20 $0.00 $68.80 $206.40
Flat mounting bracket for KeySecure 5 $86.00 $17.20 $0.00 $68.80 $344.00
90 degree mounting bracket for KeySecure 1 $86.00 $17.20 $0.00 $68.80 $68.80

Total Number of Items 29
Total Market Value 

of Knox Items $12,506.40

Knox Item APVFD BVFD CVFD GVFD TVFD Weir VFD
KeySecure KSM-200 (Mechanical key only) 1 1 1 1 0 1
KeySecure 6 (eKey & Mechanical key) 1 0 1 0 1 1
Knox Box Home (Mechanical key) 0 0 0 1 1 0
Knox Box 3200 (eKey) 0 0 1 0 0 0
eKey 1 0 1 0 1 1
Knox Dock (KLS-8600D) 1 0 1 0 1 1
45 degree mounting bracket for KeySecure 0 1 0 1 0 1
Flat mounting bracket for KeySecure 1 0 1 1 1 1
90 degree mounting bracket for KeySecure 0 0 1 0 0 0
Total Value Given to each Department $2,702.00 $1,050.60 $3,021.40 $1,180.40 $1,781.20 $2,770.80

Avery Pickett Volunteer Fire Department (APVFD) Total Value $12,506.40
Bartlett Volunteer Fire Department (BVFD)
Coupland Volunteer Fire Department (CVFD)
Granger Volunteer Fire Department (GVFD)
Thrall Volunteer Fire Department (TVFD)
Weir Volunteer Fire Department (Weir VFD)



Title: Hank Jones,2021-05-17T20:25:24Z

Disposal Method: SALE at the earliest auction

Item(s) Category: Other

1. Quantity (Mandatory): 5

1. Description: Knox KeySecure KSM-200 (Mechanical Key)

1. Manufacturer ID #: SN#s 20001625, 20001623, 20001460, 20001461, 20001624

1. Oracle Asset #: NOT IN ORACLE, NOT IN ORACLE, 203685, 203686, NOT IN
ORACLE

1. Condition of Assets: Working

2. Quantity (Mandatory):: 4

2. Description: Knox KeySecure 6 (eKey & Mechanical Key)

2. Manufacturer ID #: SN#s 40002090, 40002087, 40002089, 40002088

2. Oracle Asset #: NOT IN ORACLE

2. Condition of Assets: Working

3. Quantity (Mandatory): 2

3. Description: Knox Box Home (Mechanical Key)

3. Manufacturer ID #: 15-01457

3. Oracle Asset #: NOT IN ORACLE

3. Condition of Assets: Working

4. Quantity (Mandatory): 1

4. Description: Knox Box 3200 (eKey)

4. Manufacturer ID #: SN# 32-870646

4. Oracle Asset #: NOT IN ORACLE

4. Condition of Assets: Working

5. Quantity (Mandatory): 4

5. Description Knox eKey

5. Manufacturer ID # SN#s 87010772, 87010769, 87010771, 87010770

5. Oracle Asset # NOT IN ORACLE

5. Condition of Assets Working

Transferring Dept.: HazMat

Transferring Dept. Contact Person Hank Jones

 Asset Status Change

 Asset Status Change



Transferring Dept. Contact Ph#: HazMat

Transferring Dept. - Elected Offic./Dept.
Head/AuthStaff Signature:

Hank Jones 5/17/2021 3:25 PM

Transferring Dept. - Elected Offic./Dept.
Head/Auth Staff Signature.:

Receiving Depart. - Elected Offic./Dept.
Head/Auth Staff Signature:

Purchasing Final Determination Other

Court Date: 5/25/2021

 Asset Status Change

 Asset Status Change



Title: Hank Jones,2021-05-17T20:30:19Z

Disposal Method: SALE at the earliest auction

Item(s) Category: Other

1. Quantity (Mandatory): 4

1. Description: Knox Dock (KLS-8600D)

1. Manufacturer ID #: SN#s 86000713, 86000714, 86000712, 86000711

1. Oracle Asset #: NOT IN ORACLE

1. Condition of Assets: Working

2. Quantity (Mandatory):: 3

2. Description: 45 degree mounting bracket fro KeySecure

2. Manufacturer ID #: NA

2. Oracle Asset #: NOT IN ORACLE

2. Condition of Assets: Working

3. Quantity (Mandatory): 5

3. Description: Flat mounting bracket for KeySecure

3. Manufacturer ID #: NA

3. Oracle Asset #: NOT IN ORACLE

3. Condition of Assets: Working

4. Quantity (Mandatory): 1

4. Description: 90 degree mounting bracket for KeySecure

4. Manufacturer ID #: NA

4. Oracle Asset #: NOT IN ORACLE

4. Condition of Assets: Working

Transferring Dept.: HazMat

Transferring Dept. Contact Person Hank Jones

Transferring Dept. Contact Ph#: HazMat

Transferring Dept. - Elected Offic./Dept.
Head/AuthStaff Signature:

Hank Jones 5/17/2021 3:30 PM

Transferring Dept. - Elected Offic./Dept.
Head/Auth Staff Signature.:

Receiving Depart. - Elected Offic./Dept.
Head/Auth Staff Signature:

 Asset Status Change

 Asset Status Change



Purchasing Final Determination Other

Court Date: 5/25/2021

 Asset Status Change

 Asset Status Change



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 13.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

Scott & White Extension CARES Funding
Submitted By: Julie Kiley, County Auditor
Department: County Auditor
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consdier and take appropriate action on approving an Extension until December 31,
2021 with Baylor Scott & White Health for the purposes of providing medical testing for the
Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19) for Williamson County Emergency Services Personnel.

Background
The current agreement expires July 28, 2021.  We would like to keep this contract in place until
December 31, 2021.  CARES Funding is due to expire at that time and we will reevaluate if this
is still needed.  This agreement facilitates testing for EMS, Jail and other critical Emergency
Services personnel.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Baylor Scott & White Extension CARES Funds 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 09:31 AM
Form Started By: Julie Kiley Started On: 05/20/2021 09:00 AM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 







   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 14.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

Advertisement T4302 Animal Shelter Pharm & Supplies
Submitted For: Joy Simonton  Submitted By: Erica Smith, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the Purchasing Agent to advertise
and receive sealed bids for Animal Shelter Pharmaceuticals and Clinic Supplies under
IFB #T4302.

Background
Approval of this item will support the operations of the Williamson County Regional Animal
Shelter.  This IFB will compile a variety of pharmaceutical and clinic supplies needed for the
animal shelter.  This expenditure will be charged to 01.0545.0545.004975.  Department contact
is Misty Valenta.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 05/19/2021 04:53 PM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 08:50 AM
Form Started By: Erica Smith Started On: 05/19/2021 09:51 AM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 15.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

Facilities Resource - Pre-Trial office furniture
Submitted For: Joy Simonton  Submitted By: Mary Watson, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving the contract between Williamson County and Facilities
Resource, Inc. for the purchase of office furniture in the amount of $11,319.60 pursuant to OMNIA National
cooperative contract #2019.001896 and authorizing the contract.

Background
Approval of this item will support the operations of the Williamson County Pre-Trial Office.  The attached agreement
outlines the pieces of furniture, service, and delivery costs.  The funding source line item is 0100-0591-003005 and
the department point of contact is Jamie Carrillo.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Facilities Resource - Pre-Trial 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 05/19/2021 04:49 PM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 08:45 AM
Form Started By: Mary Watson Started On: 05/17/2021 01:44 PM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 



 
 
 

11100 Metric Blvd., Building 7, Suite 450 ▪ Austin, TX 78758 ▪ p 512.371.1232 ▪ f 512.371.9155 ▪ www.fri-texas.com 
 

 

May 5, 2021 
 
Mr. Tom Stanfield 
Williamson County 
405 Martin Luther King Jr. Street 
Georgetown, TX 78626 
 
Re: 21097A - Williamson County Pre-Trial Office 
 Kimball OMNIA Partners Contract #2019.001896 
 
Dear Tom:  
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
Facilities Resource, Inc. is pleased to respond to your request for a fee proposal for furniture and services for the 
Williamson Pre-Trial Office located in Williamson County, Texas. 
 

SCOPE OF WORK 
FRI will provide furniture and services as outlined below. 

 
- (1) Managers Office         $3,447.10 

• “L” Shaped Desk, Bookcase, 2-Drawer Lateral File, Box/Box/File, 
File/File, Task Chair 
Finishes per Final Finish Selections 
 

- Conference Room         $6,435.88 

• 48” x 120” Arc-End Table w/Beam Base, (1) Power/Data Unit, 
8 Task Chairs 
Finishes per Final Finish Selections 

 
- Storage Room          $1,436.62 

• 30” x 60” desk with Box/Box/File, Task Chair 
Finishes per Final Finish Selections 
 

Receipt, Delivery and Installation Included.  Installation to be completed during regular business hours 
 
 

 
 

➢ Subtotal:            $11,319.60  
➢ State of Texas Sales Tax          $    N/A 
 

➢ Total for Furniture           $11,319.60  

 

 

If this proposal is acceptable, please indicate by signing below and returning to me. This fee proposal is valid for 60 days from the 
date of this letter. We appreciate the opportunity to work with you and anticipate a successful project. If there is any further 
information we can provide, please contact me.  

Agreed:  
 
          Date:      
Williamson County 
 
 
          Date:      
Facilities Resource, Inc. 

swilliams
Typewritten Text

swilliams
Typewritten Text
05/06/2021



Facilities Resource Inc.
11100 Metric Blvd
Suite 450
Austin, TX 78758
PH: 512-371-1232
FX: 512-371-9155

QUOTATION & CONTRACT
DATE QUOTE #

SALES REP PAYMENT TERMS

05/05/21 21097A

General Sales Per Contract

BILL TO:

Williamson County
710 S. Main Street
Georgetown, TX 78626-5703

PH: 512.943.1611
FX: 512.930.3313

CUSTOMER PURCHASE ORDER FINAL LOCATION:

Pre-Trial Office
Williamson County
405 Martin Luther King Jr. Street
Georgetown, TX 78626-4901

PH: 512.943.1611
FX: 512.930.3313

SUMMARY INFORMATION

Kimball OMNIA Partners Contract #2019.001896

ITEM # QTY PRODUCT UNIT PRICE EXT. PRICE

Managers Office
Managers Office

-- ITEM LIST PRICE: $6,949.00

1

1.00 K86TMBUSL 1 11611
HELIO,TASK,MESH,BLK,UPH SEAT,SEAT SLIDER
1 = GRADE 1
11611 = CALI BOULDER
-- ITEM LIST PRICE: $942.00
-- TAG/LOCATION: HELIO

$ 433.32 $ 433.322

3.00 KCCB001
CSGDS,LOCK CORE-BLK,BLK HNGD KEY,KEY 001
-- ITEM LIST PRICE: $28.00

$ 28.00 $ 84.003

1.00 53K3667BCOSSFL PB
PRIORITY,36WX67H,BOOKCASE,FRSTDG,OPEN,STRAIGHT,5 SHELF,LAM
PB = PORTOBELLO
-- ITEM LIST PRICE: $1,162.00
-- TAG/LOCATION: BC 3667 L

$ 534.52 $ 534.524

1.00 53KE2436LFF2LL P 89_462 KS PB PB PB PB
PRIORITY,24DX36H,LATERAL FILE,2 DRAWER,TFL
P = 1/8" MOLDED VIN
89_462 = STUDIO,CINDER
KS = SPECIFY CORE SEPARATELY
PB = PORTOBELLO
PB = PORTOBELLO
PB = PORTOBELLO
PB = PORTOBELLO
-- ITEM LIST PRICE: $1,191.00
-- TAG/LOCATION: 2D LF 36LL

$ 547.86 $ 547.865

 5Page 1 of[initial|req|signer1]



Facilities Resource Inc.
11100 Metric Blvd
Suite 450
Austin, TX 78758
PH: 512-371-1232
FX: 512-371-9155

QUOTATION & CONTRACT
DATE QUOTE #

SALES REP PAYMENT TERMS

05/05/21 21097A

General Sales Per Contract

ITEM # QTY PRODUCT UNIT PRICE EXT. PRICE

1.00 53KE2448RLEFLL2 P 89_462 KS H X MG1MB PB PB PB PB
PRIORITY,24DX48W,RETURN,LEFT,TFL,FF
P = 1/8" MOLDED VIN
89_462 = STUDIO,CINDER
KS = SPECIFY CORE SEPARATELY
H = MODESTY HINGED
X = NO GROMMET
MG1MB = MODESTY GROMMET,MATTE BLACK
PB = PORTOBELLO
PB = PORTOBELLO
PB = PORTOBELLO
PB = PORTOBELLO
-- ITEM LIST PRICE: $1,234.00
-- TAG/LOCATION: PRIORITY

$ 567.64 $ 567.646

1.00 53KE3072DRFBLL1 P 89_462 KS G1LMB PB PB PB PB
PRIORITY,30DX72W,DESK,SINGLE PED,RECTANGLE,RIGHT,TFL/TFL,BBF
P = 1/8" MOLDED VIN
89_462 = STUDIO,CINDER
KS = SPECIFY CORE SEPARATELY
G1LMB = G1,LEFT, MATTE BLACK
PB = PORTOBELLO
PB = PORTOBELLO
PB = PORTOBELLO
PB = PORTOBELLO
-- ITEM LIST PRICE: $1,844.00
-- TAG/LOCATION: PRIORITY

$ 848.24 $ 848.247

1.00 99K0612PT
PERKS,6DX12W,PENCIL TRAY,BLACK
-- ITEM LIST PRICE: $25.00
-- TAG/LOCATION: PENCIL

$ 11.50 $ 11.508

3.00 99KFB
PERKS,FILE BAR,SIDE TO SIDE,QTY 2
-- ITEM LIST PRICE: $29.00
-- TAG/LOCATION: FILE BAR Q

$ 13.34 $ 40.029

1.00 [No Product Number]
Receipt / Delivery / Installation
-- ITEM LIST PRICE: $380.00

$ 380.00 $ 380.0010

$ 3,447.10Managers Office Subtotal:

Conference Room
Conference Room11

 5Page 2 of[initial|req|signer1]



Facilities Resource Inc.
11100 Metric Blvd
Suite 450
Austin, TX 78758
PH: 512-371-1232
FX: 512-371-9155

QUOTATION & CONTRACT
DATE QUOTE #

SALES REP PAYMENT TERMS

05/05/21 21097A

General Sales Per Contract

ITEM # QTY PRODUCT UNIT PRICE EXT. PRICE

-- ITEM LIST PRICE: $13,228.00

8.00 K56TMBU 1 11611
JOYA,TASK,BLACK MESH BACK,2D ARM,1 POSITION LOCK CONTROL
1 = GRADE 1
11611 = CALI BOULDER
-- ITEM LIST PRICE: $708.00
-- TAG/LOCATION: K56TMBU

$ 325.68 $ 2,605.4412

1.00 74K247828BLL PB
DOCK, BEAM BASE, RECTANGULAR, ACCESS PANEL, TFL (48X120)
PB = PORTOBELLO
-- ITEM LIST PRICE: $2,869.00
-- TAG/LOCATION: 247828LL

$ 1,319.74 $ 1,319.7413

1.00 74K48120AR2L J C7C_CUTOUT STD PB *** ***
DOCK,TABLE TOP,ARC-END,LAMINATE 48X120
J = SELF EDGE
C7C_CUTOUT = C7,9.81X11,CENTER,CUTOUT
STD = STANDARD GROUP 1
PB = PORTOBELLO
*** = ----
*** = ----
-- ITEM LIST PRICE: $2,578.00
-- TAG/LOCATION: DOCK CONF

$ 1,185.88 $ 1,185.8814

1.00 99KCMU
PERKS,CABLE MGR,UNDERSURFACE,SET OF 6
-- ITEM LIST PRICE: $60.00
-- TAG/LOCATION: CM

$ 27.60 $ 27.6015

1.00 KCE1110PDESMAA
ELEC,E2X POWER/DATA CENTER,ANODIZED ALUMINUM
-- ITEM LIST PRICE: $1,407.00
-- TAG/LOCATION: KCE1110PDE

$ 647.22 $ 647.2216

1.00 [No Product Number]
RDI
-- ITEM LIST PRICE: $650.00

$ 650.00 $ 650.0017

$ 6,435.88Conference Room Subtotal:

Storage Room
Storage Room

-- ITEM LIST PRICE: $2,947.00

18

 5Page 3 of[initial|req|signer1]



Facilities Resource Inc.
11100 Metric Blvd
Suite 450
Austin, TX 78758
PH: 512-371-1232
FX: 512-371-9155

QUOTATION & CONTRACT
DATE QUOTE #

SALES REP PAYMENT TERMS

05/05/21 21097A

General Sales Per Contract

ITEM # QTY PRODUCT UNIT PRICE EXT. PRICE

1.00 K86TMBUSL 1 11611
HELIO,TASK,MESH,BLK,UPH SEAT,SEAT SLIDER
1 = GRADE 1
11611 = CALI BOULDER
-- ITEM LIST PRICE: $942.00
-- TAG/LOCATION: HELIO

$ 433.32 $ 433.3219

1.00 KCCB009
CSGDS,LOCK CORE-BLK,BLK HNGD KEY,KEY 009
-- ITEM LIST PRICE: $28.00
-- TAG/LOCATION:  KCCB009

$ 12.88 $ 12.8820

1.00 53KE3060DLFBLL1 P 89_462 KS G1RMB PB PB PB PB
PRIORITY,30DX60W,DESK,SINGLE PED,RECTANGLE,LEFT,TFL/TFL,BBF
P = 1/8" MOLDED VIN
89_462 = STUDIO,CINDER
KS = SPECIFY CORE SEPARATELY
G1RMB = G1,RIGHT,MATTE BLACK
PB = PORTOBELLO
PB = PORTOBELLO
PB = PORTOBELLO
PB = PORTOBELLO
-- ITEM LIST PRICE: $1,773.00
-- TAG/LOCATION: PRIORITY

$ 815.58 $ 815.5821

1.00 99K0612PT
PERKS,6DX12W,PENCIL TRAY,BLACK
-- ITEM LIST PRICE: $25.00
-- TAG/LOCATION: PENCIL

$ 11.50 $ 11.5022

1.00 99KFB
PERKS,FILE BAR,SIDE TO SIDE,QTY 2
-- ITEM LIST PRICE: $29.00
-- TAG/LOCATION: FILE BAR Q

$ 13.34 $ 13.3423

1.00 [No Product Number]
Receipt / Delivery / Installation
-- ITEM LIST PRICE: $150.00

$ 150.00 $ 150.0024

$ 1,436.62Storage Room Subtotal:

 5Page 4 of[initial|req|signer1]



Facilities Resource Inc.
11100 Metric Blvd
Suite 450
Austin, TX 78758
PH: 512-371-1232
FX: 512-371-9155

QUOTATION & CONTRACT
DATE QUOTE #

SALES REP PAYMENT TERMS

05/05/21 21097A

General Sales Per Contract

ITEM # QTY PRODUCT UNIT PRICE EXT. PRICE

WE ARE PLEASED TO QUOTE THE FOLLOWING ITEMS FOR YOUR APPROVAL. THESE ITEMS ARE SUBJECT TO THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE SALE WHICH ARE PART OF THIS
AGREEMENT. THE MERCHANDISE WILL BE ORDERED UPON RECEIPT OF THIS SIGNED CONTRACT AND DEPOSIT. THIS OFFER WILL EXPIRE 30 DAYS FROM THE QUOTATION DATE. THIS
QUOTATION, WHEN ACCEPTED IS A CONTRACT BINDING ON BOTH PARTIES AND IS NOT SUBJECT TO CHANGE OR CANCELLATION EXCEPT BY WRITTEN CONSENT BY BOTH PARTIES.

SUBTOTAL $11,319.60

FREIGHT $0.00

DELIVERY/SET-UP $0.00

SALES TAX (0%) $0.00

TOTAL $11,319.60

DEPOSIT REQUESTED $0.00

BALANCE $11,319.60

x Date 05/05/21
General Sales
Facilities Resource Inc.

x Date

Title

Williamson County

[sig|req|signer1                                        ] [date|req|signer1                             ]

[text|noreq|signer1                                                                 ]

Page 5 of 5

swilliams
Typewritten Text

swilliams
Typewritten Text

swilliams
Typewritten Text

swilliams
Typewritten Text



 
 
 
 

11100 Metric Blvd., Building 7, Suite 450 ▪ Austin, TX 78758 ▪ p 512.371.1232 ▪ f 512.371.9155 ▪ www.fri-texas.com 
 

 

  
 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
1. The Buyer’s signature on a Facilities Resource, Inc. proposal or the issuance of a purchase order from the Buyer to 

Facilities Resource, Inc. constitutes acceptance and a binding purchase agreement for services.  On all orders over 
$1,000.00 a hard copy PO is requested. 

2.   Changes requested by Buyer subsequent to manufacturer acknowledgement are subject to Facilities Resource, Inc.’s 
ability to conform and upon factory approval.  All such requests shall be delivered to Facilities Resource, Inc. in writing 
and accepted by Facilities Resource, Inc. in writing.  Resulting additional charges shall be paid by the Buyer. 

3.   The Buyer warrants that the credit application and other financial statement submitted to Facilities Resource, Inc. are 
true and correct. 

4. In the event construction delays or other causes not within Facilities Resource, Inc.’s control force postponement of 
the delivery and/or installation, the merchandise can be stored at a rate of $24.00 per GMA pallet until installation will 
take place. The Buyer shall pay any demurrage charges incurred. 

5. Client must hold property insurance for replacement value on merchandise stored in Facilities Resource, Inc. 
warehouse. FRI will not be responsible for damage due to fire, flood or any other uncontrolled circumstance, for client 
owned property stored in its warehouse and does not hold insurance for such. 

6. Claims for damage in transit will be processed by Facilities Resource, Inc. and damaged merchandise shall be 
repaired or replaced to the reasonable satisfaction of the Buyer. 

7.  Wherein product deliveries and labor at site are affected by stairs and no other means (elevator or mechanical lift) of 
moving products is available, an additional fee will be applied. 

8. Storage of product for up to (2) weeks is included in the proposal cost.  Storage fees commence the date the product 
is received.   

9. Additional Storage will be calculated on a weekly basis and charged on a change order until the product leaves the 
warehouse.   Any storage change order out-standing more than (15) calendar days will cause a hold on the product 
release. 

10. Delivery and installation will be made during Facilities Resource, Inc. regular business hours and according to the 
service schedule provided to the Buyer.  Regular business hours are Monday – Friday, 7:00am – 5:00pm.  Buyer will 
be billed for any additional labor costs resulting from overtime work performed at the Buyer’s request.  If the space 
provided is inadequate or requires excessive sorting or storage costs, Buyer shall reimburse Facilities Resource, Inc. 
for the cost of same.  If the space provided is inconveniently located or on a floor different from the installation site, 
Buyer shall reimburse Facilities Resource, Inc. for the extra costs of  transporting merchandise to and from storage.  
If the merchandise must be moved due to activity of other trades or other reasons, Buyer shall reimburse Facilities 
Resource, Inc. for the cost of same. 

11. Facilities Resource, Inc. shall not be responsible for manufacturer’s inability to meet their estimated ship dates.  
Estimated ship dates are for manufacturers time allowances only and do not include any time allowance for actual 
shipping and delivery of merchandise. 

12. Buyer must keep the job site free and clear of debris before and during the installation.  Hoisting or elevator service 
and adequate facilities for off-loading, staging, moving, and handling of merchandise must be provided by the Buyer 
and without charge to Facilities Resource, Inc.  The Buyer is also responsible for securing all necessary building 
permits and licenses. 

13. After arrival of the merchandise at the site, any loss or damage by weather, trades working at the site, or otherwise, 
shall be the responsibility of the Buyer. 

14. Merchandise will be invoiced upon shipment from the manufacturer. Buyer agrees to pay each invoice within the 
Texas Prompt Payment Act Compliance: Payment for goods and services shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the 
Texas Government Code. An invoice shall be deemed overdue the 31st day after the later of (1) the date licensee 
receives the goods under the contract; (2) the date the performance of the service under the contract is completed; or 
(3) the date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services. Interest charges for any 
overdue payments shall be paid by licensee in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 2251.025. More 
specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of licensee’s 
fiscal year in which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of 
one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first day of July of the preceding 
fiscal year that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday. 

15. Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Contract or any breach thereof shall be settled in accordance 
with the Rules of the American Arbitration Association and judgment upon the award may be entered  in any court 
having jurisdiction thereof. 

16. In the event of default under this agreement, the prevailing party shall be allowed to recover attorney fees in 
accordance with the determination of the court. 

17. In no event shall either party be liable for any special indirect, consequential, incidental damages including, without 
limitation, damages for loss of business profits, business interruptions or loss of information, even if the other Party 
has been advised of the possibility of such damages. 

18. Facilities Resource, Inc. will provide certificate of insurance acceptable to buyer and insurance that it maintains 
adequate workers compensation, general liability & property coverage at all times.  If a waiver is requested as part of 
the insurance requirements, a $350.00 fee per waiver will be charged. 

 



 
 
 
 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                      

P:\Forms\FRI - Forms\Terms & Conditions\Terms & Conditions Williamson County  071420 (prompt pay compliance).docx 

19. Unless otherwise specified, all furniture is warranted by Facilities Resource, Inc. to be free from defects in materials 
and workmanship for the period of time each manufacturer provides on its product from date of delivery.  Facilities 
Resource, Inc. will repair, adjust, or take corrective action on any problem free of charge within 30 days of purchase 
or manufacturers earliest notification. Manufacturer’s warranties will apply with any charges for labor at the prevailing 
rates.  It is expressly agreed that this warranty is in place and in lieu of all warranties of fitness and merchantability.  
All used or rental return merchandise is sold on an “AS IS” basis. 

20. It shall be understood and agreed that during the term of this agreement and for a period of 12 (twelve) months, 
thereafter, the Buyer will not directly nor indirectly recruit and/or hire any employee of Facilities Resource, Inc., unless 
mutually agreed upon between Officers of the Buyer and Facilities Resource, Inc. 

21.  All additional costs listed above shall include a 25% administrative fee. 
22.  Facilities Resource, Inc. will assess a 3.5% convenience fee on all credit card transactions. 
23. The above is the entire agreement between the Buyer and Facilities Resource, Inc.  It may not be changed without 

mutual written authorization.  These terms apply to the initial order and any subsequent orders.  
24.  Mediation: The parties agree to use mediation for dispute resolution prior to and formal legal action being taken on 

this purchase agreement. 
25. Venue and Governing Law: Venue of this contract shall be Williamson County, Texas, and the law of the State of 

Texas shall govern. 
26.  Termination for Convenience:  This agreement may be terminated at any time at the option of either party, without 

future or prospective liability for performance upon giving ten (10) days written notice thereof.  In the event of 
termination, Customer will only be liable for its pro rata share of services rendered and goods actually received. 

 
 

 
 
I have read and understand all of the terms and conditions contained herein. 
 
Agreed: 
 
 
 
____________________________________________     __________________________________ 
Williamson County       Date 
 

 
 
 
 
____________________________________________     __________________________________ 
Facilities Resource, Inc.      Date 
 

 

swilliams
Typewritten Text
05/06/2021



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 16.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

Authorize Service Agreement for fencing at River Ranch Park
Submitted For: Joy Simonton  Submitted By: Johnny Grimaldo,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving the service agreement between
Texas Ranch Enhancements, LLC and Williamson County for boundary fencing at River Ranch
Park and authorizing the execution of the agreement.

Background

Williamson County solicited quotes for a boundary enhancement project needed to replace
unserviceable fencing and signage to clearly define park boundaries and to ensure safety and
security of park visitors and surrounding private property. The work/ quote is in a not-to-exceed
amount of $49,990.00. The Point of Contact is Alejandra Urista and the funding source is
01.0100.3107.004509.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Service Agreement 
Vendor Quote 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 05/20/2021 10:13 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 10:16 AM
Form Started By: Johnny Grimaldo Started On: 05/19/2021 03:06 PM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 



1  

THE STATE OF TEXAS   § 
 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON  § 
 
 

CONTRACT 
FOR 

FENCE INSTALL AND  
RELATED SERVICES  

(Parks & Recreation Department) 
 
 
 

Important Notice: County Purchase Orders and Contracts constitute expenditures 
of public funds, and all vendors are hereby placed on notice that any quotes, 
invoices or any other forms that seek to unilaterally impose contractual or 
quasicontractual terms are subject to the extent authorized by Texas law, including 
but not limited to Tex. Const. art. XI, § 7, the Texas Government Code, the Texas 
Local Government Code, the Texas Transportation Code, the Texas Health & Safety 
Code, and Opinions of the Texas Attorney General relevant to local governmental 
entities. 
 

THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into by and between Williamson County, 
Texas (hereinafter “The County”), a political subdivision of the State of Texas, acting 
herein by and through its governing body, and Texas Ranch Enhancements, LLC 
(hereinafter “Service Provider”), 5551 CR 200, Liberty Hill, TX 78642 (Ph. 512-716-
5070). The County agrees to engage Service Provider as an independent contractor, to 
assist in providing certain operational services pursuant to the following terms, conditions, 
and restrictions: 
 

I. 
 

Services: Service Provider shall provide services as an independent contractor 
pursuant to terms and policies of the Williamson County Commissioners Court. Service 
Provider expressly acknowledges that he, she or it is not an employee of The County.  The 
services include, but are not limited to the following items in order to complete the project: 

 
As described in the attached Statement of Work/Quote, dated April 9, 2021, 
which is designated Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein as if copied in full. 

 
Should The County choose to add services in addition to those described in Exhibit(s) 

“A,” such additional services shall be described in a separate written amendment to this 
Contract wherein the additional services shall be described and the parties shall set forth the 
amount of compensation to be paid by The County for the additional services. Service 
Provider shall not begin any additional services and The County shall not be obligated to 



2  

pay for any additional services unless a written amendment to this Contract has been signed 
by both parties. 

 
II. 

 
Effective Date and Term:  This contract shall be in full force and effect when 

signed by all parties and shall continue for a reasonable time period for the specific project 
and shall terminate upon project completion or when terminated pursuant to paragraph X 
below. 

 
III. 

 
Consideration and Compensation: Service Provider will be compensated based as 

set forth in Exhibit(s). Any changes must be made by a change order or amendment and 
approved by the Williamson County Commissioners Court. The not-to-exceed amount 
shall be $50,000.00. 

 
Payment for goods and services shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas 

Government Code. An invoice shall be deemed overdue the 31st day after the later of 
(1) the date The County receives the goods under the contract; (2) the date the 
performance of the service under the contract is completed; or (3) the date the 
Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services. Interest 
charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by The County in accordance with 
Texas Government Code Section 2251.025. More specifically, the rate of interest that 
shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of The County’s 
fiscal year in which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect on September 1 
shall be equal to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate published in the 
Wall Street Journal on the first day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does not 
fall on a Saturday or Sunday. 

 
IV. 

 
Insurance:  Service Provider shall provide and maintain, until the services covered 

in this Contract is completed and accepted by The County, the minimum insurance coverage 
in the minimum amounts as described below.  Coverage shall be written on an occurrence 
basis by companies authorized and admitted to do business in the State of Texas and rated 
A- or better by A.M. Best Company or otherwise acceptable to The County and name The 
County as an additional insured.   

 
 Type of Coverage Limits of Liability 

 
a. Worker's Compensation     Statutory 
b. Employer's Liability   

Bodily Injury by Accident $500,000 Ea. Accident 



3  

Bodily Injury by Disease $500,000 Ea. Employee  
Bodily Injury by Disease $500,000 Policy Limit 
 

c. Comprehensive general liability including completed operations and contractual 
liability insurance for bodily injury, death, or property damages in the following 
amounts: 
 
 

COVERAGE   PER PERSON PER OCCURRENCE 
 

Comprehensive   
General Liability  $  500,000  $  500,000 
(including premises, 
 completed operations 
 and contractual)    

   
Aggregate policy limits:   $1,000,000 

 
 

Service Provider, as an independent contractor, meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Worker’s Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, 
Section 406.141, and must provide its employees, agents and sub-subcontractors worker’s 
compensation coverage. Contactor shall not be entitled to worker’s compensation coverage 
or any other type of insurance coverage held by The County. 

 
Upon execution of this Contract, Service Provider shall provide The County with 

insurance certificates evidencing compliance with the insurance requirements of this 
Contract. 

V. 
 

Entire Contract & Incorporated Documents: This Contract constitutes the entire 
Contract between the parties and may not be modified or amended other than by a written 
instrument executed by both parties. Documents expressly incorporated (as if copied in 
full) into this Contract include the following: 
 

A. As described in the attached Statement of Work Proposal/Quote, dated 
April 9, 2021, which is incorporated herein as if copied in full; and 
 

B. Any required insurance certificates evidencing required coverages. 
 
  



4  

VI. 
 

No Agency Relationship: It is understood and agreed that Service Provider shall 
not in any sense be considered a partner or joint venturer with The County, nor shall 
Service Provider hold himself out as an agent or official representative of The County 
unless expressly authorized to do so by a majority of the Williamson County 
Commissioners Court. Service Provider shall be considered an independent contractor for 
the purpose of this Contract and shall in no manner incur any expense or liability on behalf 
of The County other than what may be expressly allowed under this Contract.  
 

VII. 
 

INDEMNIFICATION - EMPLOYEE PERSONAL INJURY CLAIMS:  TO THE FULLEST 
EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, THE SERVICE PROVIDER SHALL INDEMNIFY, DEFEND (WITH 
COUNSEL OF THE COUNTY’S CHOOSING), AND HOLD HARMLESS THE COUNTY, AND THE 
COUNTY’S EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES, PARTNERS, OFFICERS, AND DIRECTORS 
(COLLECTIVELY, THE “INDEMNITEES”) AND SHALL ASSUME ENTIRE RESPONSIBILITY AND 
LIABILITY (OTHER THAN AS A RESULT OF INDEMNITEES’ GROSS NEGLIGENCE) FOR ANY CLAIM 
OR ACTION BASED ON OR ARISING OUT OF THE PERSONAL INJURY, OR DEATH, OF ANY 
EMPLOYEE OF THE SERVICE PROVIDER, OR OF ANY SUBCONTRACTOR, OR OF ANY OTHER 
ENTITY FOR WHOSE ACTS THEY MAY BE LIABLE, WHICH OCCURRED OR WAS ALLEGED TO HAVE 
OCCURRED ON THE  WORK SITE OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE OF THE 
WORK.  SERVICE PROVIDER HEREBY INDEMNIFIES THE INDEMNITEES EVEN TO THE EXTENT 
THAT SUCH PERSONAL INJURY WAS CAUSED OR ALLEGED TO HAVE BEEN CAUSED BY THE SOLE, 
COMPARATIVE OR CONCURRENT NEGLIGENCE OF THE STRICT LIABILITY OF ANY INDEMNIFIED 
PARTY.  THIS INDEMNIFICATION SHALL NOT BE LIMITED TO DAMAGES, COMPENSATION, OR 
BENEFITS PAYABLE UNDER INSURANCE POLICIES, WORKERS COMPENSATION ACTS, DISABILITY 
BENEFITS ACTS, OR OTHER EMPLOYEES BENEFIT ACTS. 

 
INDEMNIFICATION - OTHER THAN EMPLOYEE PERSONAL INJURY CLAIMS:  TO THE 

FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, SERVICE PROVIDER SHALL INDEMNIFY, DEFEND (WITH 
COUNSEL OF THE COUNTY’S CHOOSING), AND HOLD HARMLESS THE COUNTY, AND THE 
COUNTY’S EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES, PARTNERS, OFFICERS, AND DIRECTORS 
(COLLECTIVELY, THE “INDEMNITEES”) FROM AND AGAINST CLAIMS, DAMAGES, LOSSES AND 
EXPENSES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ATTORNEYS’ FEES, ARISING OUT OF OR ALLEGED 
TO BE RESULTING FROM THE PERFORMANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT OR THE WORK DESCRIBED 
HEREIN, TO THE EXTENT CAUSED BY THE NEGLIGENCE, ACTS, ERRORS, OR OMISSIONS OF 
SERVICE PROVIDER OR ITS SUBCONTRACTORS, ANYONE EMPLOYED BY THEM OR ANYONE FOR 
WHOSE ACTS THEY MAY BE LIABLE, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER OR NOT SUCH CLAIM, DAMAGE, 
LOSS OR EXPENSE IS CAUSED IN WHOLE OR IN PART BY A PARTY INDEMNIFIED HEREUNDER. 

  



5  

 
VIII. 

 
No Waiver of Sovereign Immunity or Powers: Nothing in this Contract will be 

deemed to constitute a waiver of sovereign immunity or powers of The County, the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court, or the Williamson County Judge. 

 
IX. 

 
Compliance with All Laws: Service Provider agrees and will comply with any and 

all local, state or federal requirements with respect to the services rendered. 
 

X. 
 

Termination: This Contract may be terminated at any time at the option of either 
party, without future or prospective liability for performance upon giving thirty (30) days 
written notice thereof. In the event of termination, The County will only be liable for its pro 
rata share of services rendered and goods actually received. 

 
XI. 

 
Venue and Applicable Law: Venue of this Contract shall be Williamson County, 

Texas, and the laws of the State of Texas shall govern all terms and conditions. 
 

XII. 
 

Severability: In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this Contract 
shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such 
invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision in this Contract 
and this Contract shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision 
had never been contained in it. 
 

XIII. 
 

Right to Audit: Service Provider agrees that The County or its duly authorized 
representatives shall, until the expiration of three (3) years after final payment under this 
Contract, have access to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, 
documents, papers and records of Service Provider which are directly pertinent to the 
services to be performed under this Contract for the purposes of making audits, 
examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions.  Service Provider agrees that The County shall 
have access during normal working hours to all necessary Service Provider facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in 
compliance with the provisions of this section.  The County shall give Service Provider 
reasonable advance notice of intended audits. 
  





 

Exhibit(s) 
Statement of Work/Quote, dated April 9, 2021 

 

 







   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 17.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

Authorize addendum form to the service agreement for commercial trash pickup at River Ranch
Park
Submitted For: Joy Simonton  Submitted By: Johnny Grimaldo,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving the addendum form to the service
agreement between Texas Disposal Services and Williamson County for commercial trash
service at River Ranch Park and authorizing the execution of the addendum.

Background
Williamson County originally approved the service agreement with Texas Disposal Systems on
10.10.2020 item no. 11. The addendum increases the commercial trash pick-up frequency.
Currently, the park is closed to the public due to construction, as a result we have been able to
get by with only one pick up a month. Once we open, we will offer 73 campsites, a day use area
with a playground, 3 group pavilions, an interpretive center with a classroom and conference
room, and 20 miles worth of hiking trails. Parks would have the capability to increase service
already established, and when given the green light, Parks can keep up with the trash
generated by the public once we open. This service will ensure that that park grounds remain
clean and litter free thus promoting a positive image for the county and a positive experience to
our visitors. Effective date is 06.01.21. The addendum estimated annual amount is up to
$11,389.20. The Point of Contact is Alejandra Urista and the funding source is
01.0100.3107.004430.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Signed Addendum Form 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 05/19/2021 04:55 PM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 09:20 AM
Form Started By: Johnny Grimaldo Started On: 05/19/2021 03:09 PM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 



All other previously agreed upon contract terms and conditions remain the same.

a



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 18.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

Authorize amendment with BenefitFocus.com; RFP T2590 Web Based Enrollment System
Submitted For: Joy Simonton  Submitted By: Johnny Grimaldo,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving the amendment to the contract
between BenefitFocus.com and Williamson County for Web-Based Employee Benefit
Enrollment and authorizing the execution of the amendment.

Background
As Williamson County begins our implementation with BenefitFocus, it was noted that the
current order form reflected that 50% of the Implementation Fees were not reflected as payable
upon initial implementation and then the remaining 50% upon completion of implementation.
The current order form reflects the full implementation costs of $48,694.50.  BenefitFocus has
sent an addendum which requires court approval so that a purchase order with the correct
amount to be paid upon initial implementation may be requested. The total implementation
costs are $48,694.50 should be payable 50% initial implementation $24,347.25 and then after
completion of implementation (anticipated by 10/1/2021) the remaining $24,347.25. The point of
contact is Shelley Loughery. The funding source is 01.0885.0886.004208

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Addendum no. 1 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 05/20/2021 10:20 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 10:21 AM
Form Started By: Johnny Grimaldo Started On: 05/19/2021 03:10 PM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 



 

 

 
 

 

 

2021. Benefitfocus.com, Inc. 
All rights reserved 

Page 1 of 1 
 

CONFIDENTIAL & PROPRIETARY 
 

 

Amendment No. 1 to the Order Form 

This Amendment No. 1 (“Amendment”) to the Order Form dated April 7, 2021 (“Order Form”), is between Benefitfocus.com, Inc. 
(“Benefitfocus”) and Williamson County (“Client”) and is made on May 13, 2021. 

WHEREAS, the parties entered into the Order Form in order for Benefitfocus to provide Client with software services; and 

WHEREAS, the parties wish to clarify the invoicing terms for the One-Time Fees; and 

WHEREAS, the parties agree to amend the Order Form under the terms and conditions of this Amendment and include said modifications. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, and other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound Benefitfocus and Client hereby 
agree as follows: 

1. Professional Services Fees.   The first sentence of Section III.B.3 of the Order Form is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the 
following: 

Except as otherwise stated herein, the Professional Services fee defined in Section III will be invoiced as follows:  50% upon Client’s 
execution of this Order Form and 50% on October 1, 2021. 

2. Prior Agreement. Except as expressly amended herein, all other terms and conditions as set forth in the Order Form shall remain in full 
force and effect. The Order Form shall remain and continue in full force and effect and shall continue to be binding on the parties hereto. 
This Amendment is hereby incorporated into the Order Form and by reference. To the extent that there is any inconsistency between 
the Order Form and this Amendment, this Amendment shall prevail. Capitalized terms used herein shall have the same meanings as are 
set forth in the Order Form, as applicable, unless stated otherwise. 

3. Authority to Enter into an Agreement. Each party represents and warrants that (i) it has all requisite corporate power and authority to 
enter and perform pursuant to this Amendment; (ii) the execution, delivery and performance of this Amendment and the consummation 
of the transactions contemplated hereby have been duly and properly authorized by all requisite corporate action on its part; (iii) this 
Amendment has been duly executed and delivered by such party; and (iv) no other person or entity other than those set forth in this 
Amendment has any interest in the subject matter referred to in this Amendment. 

All terms and conditions of the Order Form which are not hereby amended shall remain in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereto by their duly authorized representatives executed this Amendment. 

BENEFITFOCUS.COM, INC. 
 
 
By: /s/               
 
Print: /p/      
 
Title: /t/      
 
Date: /d/      

WILLIAMSON COUNTY 
 
 
By: /s2/              
 
Print: /p2/      
 
Title: /t2/      
 
Date: /d2/      

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6B7F3D42-4D4C-4922-83A8-CBAD5F8CC54B

Nancy Nunn

Corporate Controller

May 18, 2021



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 19.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

KC Engr 2965 WA5 CR 307
Submitted For: Robert Daigh  Submitted By: Vicky Edwards,

Infrastructure
Department: Infrastructure
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on Work Authorization No 5 in the amount of
$92,605.00 to expire on September 1, 2023 under Williamson County Contract for Engineering
Services between KC Engineering, Inc. and Williamson County dated March 24, 2020 for
Engineering Design Services for CR 307 Reconstruction. Funding source: P394.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
KC Engr 2965 WA5 CR 307 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Hal Hawes Hal Hawes 05/18/2021 10:00 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/18/2021 01:59 PM
Form Started By: Vicky Edwards Started On: 05/17/2021 12:41 PM
Final Approval Date: 05/18/2021 



WORK AUTHORIZATION NO.    5   
 

PROJECT: Engineering Design Services for CR 307 Reconstruction 
 

This Work Authorization is made pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Williamson County 
Contract for Engineering Services, being dated March 24, 2020 and entered into by and between 
Williamson County, Texas, a political subdivision of the State of Texas, (the "County") and K.C. 
Engineering, Inc. (the "Engineer"). 
 
Part1. The Engineer will provide the following Engineering Services set forth in Attachment “B” 
of this Work Authorization.  
 
Part 2. The maximum amount payable for services under this Work Authorization without 
modification is $92,605.00.   
 
Part 3.  Payment to the Engineer for the services established under this Work Authorization shall 
be made in accordance with the Contract. 
 
Part 4.  This Work Authorization shall become effective on the date of final acceptance and full 
execution of the parties hereto and shall terminate on September 1, 2023. The Engineering 
Services set forth in Attachment “B” of this Work Authorization shall be fully completed on or 
before said date unless extended by a Supplemental Work Authorization. 
 
Part 5.  This Work Authorization does not waive the parties’ responsibilities and obligations 
provided under the Contract. 
 
Part 6. County believes it has sufficient funds currently available and authorized for expenditure 
to finance the costs of this Work Authorization.  Engineer understands and agrees that County’s 
payment of amounts under this Work Authorization is contingent on the County receiving 
appropriations or other expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of 
reasonable administrative discretion, to continue to make payments under this Contract.  It is 
further understood and agreed by Engineer that County shall have the right to terminate this 
Contract at the end of any County fiscal year if the governing body of County does not appropriate 
sufficient funds as determined by County’s budget for the fiscal year in question.  County may 
effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to Engineer. 
 
Part 7.  This Work Authorization is hereby accepted and acknowledged below. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
EXECUTED this ____ day of _______________, 20___. 
 
 
ENGINEER:      COUNTY: 
            K.C. Engineering, Inc.            Williamson County, Texas  
 
By:        By:       
                     Signature                Signature 
  
     Greg Haley, P.E.          
                   Printed Name              Printed Name 
 
         President           

Title          Title 
 
  



LIST OF ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment A - Services to be Provided by County 
 
Attachment B - Services to be Provided by Engineer 
 
Attachment C - Work Schedule 
 
Attachment D - Fee Schedule 
 
  



Attachment A - Services to be Provided by County 
Services to be Provided by County 

 
 

Williamson County Road & Bridge Division personnel will provide: 

• Project direction, review and oversight 
• Topographic and R.O.W. Surveys. 
• Geotechnical Investigations; data and reports. 
• ROW Documents and Drainage Reports 
• Conducting pre-bid meeting, responding to contractor questions during bidding, 

tabulating and evaluating bids after bid opening, and providing recommendation of 
award of contract. 

• Construction oversight, administration and management.  



Attachment B – Services to be Provided by Engineer 
 

Services to be Provided by Engineer 
 
Project Locations 
1. Name of Roadways – CR 307  
 
Task 1: Project Management 

Attend Progress Review Meetings with County Road and Bridge Department at 50%, 90%, 
and Final. Prepare monthly progress reports and invoices. Maintain project schedule and 
perform CQ/QC. 

 
Task 2: Topographic Surveys and R.O.W. Surveys 
 To be provided by the County 
 
Task 3: Preliminary Engineering 

Conduct Site Visit and Field Reconnaissance to document existing conditions. Data 
collection including available as-builts. Develop conceptual geometric layout on scroll plot 
(1” = 20’ H, 1” = 2’ V) showing roadway horizontal and vertical geometry and proposed 
typical section. Prepare preliminary cross sections (50’ interval and driveways). Develop 
preliminary drainage analysis including delineation of drainage areas, calculation of peak 
stormwater runoff rates for 10-yr, 25-yr, 50-yr, and 100-yr. 

 
Task 4: Geotechnical Investigations 
 To be provided by the County 
 
Task 5: Environmental Studies 

N/A 
 
Task 6: Utility Coordination 
 To be provided by the County 
 
Task 7: FEMA Coordination 
 N/A 
 
Task 8: Final Engineering 

Prepare final detailed design and PS&E for proposed improvements. Calculate ditch 
capacity and size driveway and cross culvert pipes. 
 
Plan Sheets: 
 

• Title Sheet 
• Index of Sheets 
• Estimate of Quantities Summary 
• Project Layout 
• Typical Sections 



• Horizontal Alignment Data 
• Drainage Area Map 
• Cross Section at Culvert Sites 
• H & H Summaries 
• Miscellaneous Drainage Details 
• Existing Conditions and Removal Plan 
• Erosion Control Plan 
• Sequence of Construction 
• Traffic Control Plan 
• Driveway Details 
• Driveway Summary 
• Intersection Layout 
• Roadway Plan & Profile 
• Miscellaneous Roadway Details 
• Signs & Pavement Markings 
• Small Sign Summary 
• SW3P 
• Cross Sections (50’ Interval and Driveways) 
• Standards 

 
Specifications 
Cost Estimate 
General Notes 

 
Task 9: Bidding Phase Services 

Prepare Bid Tabs for processing by Purchasing Department 
 
Task 10: Construction Phase Services 

Review shop drawings and respond to contractor RFIs. Prepare electronic as-built final 
drawings for the County based on construction red-lines provided by the County. 

 
Deliverables: 
 

50% Submittal: 
• PDFs of 11” x 17” Plan Sheets 
• Specifications 
• Estimate of Construction Cost 
• General Notes 
• Engineer’s Internal QA/QC marked up set 

 
90% Submittal 

• PDFs of 11” x 17” Plan Sheets 
• Specifications 
• Estimate of Construction Cost 
• General Notes 



• Engineer’s Internal QA/QC marked up set 
 
100% Submittal 

• PDFs of 11” x 17” Plan Sheets 
• Specifications 
• Estimate of Construction Cost 
• General Notes 
• Engineer’s Internal QA/QC marked up set 

• Electronic copy of submittal documents in PDF format 



CR 305

CR 307
CR 307

CR 307

CR 305

SHEET

D
ra

w
n 

B
y:

C
he

ck
ed

 B
y:

R
em

ar
ks

D
at

e

S
ca

le
 (

V
er

t.
):

D
at

e:

Jo
b 

N
o.

S
ca

le
 (

H
or

.)
: 

R
ev

. 
N

o.

Fi
le

:

70
5 

H
W

Y.
 2

81
 N

O
R
TH

, 
PL

A
Z
A
 I

, 
S
U

IT
E 

10
3

M
A
R
B
LE

 F
A
LL

S
, 

TE
X
A
S
  

78
65

4

w
w

w
.k

ce
ng

in
ee

ri
ng

.c
om

CO
NS

UL
TI

NG
 E

NG
IN

EE
RS

O
FF

IC
E:

 8
30

-6
93

-5
63

5 
 F

A
X
: 

83
0-

69
3-

96
64

K
.C

. 
EN

G
IN

EE
R
IN

G
, 

IN
C
.

R
EG

IS
TR

A
TI

O
N

 #
 F

-9
77

EN
G
IN
E
E
R
IN
G

19
8
6

G
re

g 
H

al
ey

, 
P.

E.
 5

22
92

Th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t 
is

 r
el

ea
se

d 
fo

r
th

e 
pu

rp
os

e 
of

 in
te

ri
m

 r
ev

ie
w

un
de

r 
th

e 
au

th
or

ity
 o

f

on
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

pe
rm

it 
pu

rp
os

es
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n,
 b

id
di

ng
 o

r
It

 is
 n

ot
 t

o 
be

 u
se

d 
fo

r

M
ay

 0
2,

 2
02

1

A

4

00
A
S
 N

O
TE

D
05

/0
3/

21

A
S
 N

O
TE

D
20

5-
5

1 32K:
\2

0-
20

5.
5 

W
A 

#
5 

- 
CR

 3
07

\D
es

ig
n\

Ci
vi

l 3
D

\P
re

lim
in

ar
y.

dw
g

W
IL

LI
A
M

S
O

N
 C

O
U

N
TY

, 
TX

PR
EC

IN
C
T 

3
C
R
 3

07
S
C
H

EM
A
TI

C
 L

A
YO

U
T

K
C N

0 15075
GRAPHIC SCALE

300

BEGIN
TRANSITION

BEGIN
FULL WIDTHEND

PROJECT

54' SECTION:
1 — 14' TWLTL
3 — 12' LANES
2 — 2' SHOULDERS



CR 305

CR
 3

07

CR 307

CR 305

SHEET

D
ra

w
n 

B
y:

C
he

ck
ed

 B
y:

R
em

ar
ks

D
at

e

S
ca

le
 (

V
er

t.
):

D
at

e:

Jo
b 

N
o.

S
ca

le
 (

H
or

.)
: 

R
ev

. 
N

o.

Fi
le

:

70
5 

H
W

Y.
 2

81
 N

O
R
TH

, 
PL

A
Z
A
 I

, 
S
U

IT
E 

10
3

M
A
R
B
LE

 F
A
LL

S
, 

TE
X
A
S
  

78
65

4

w
w

w
.k

ce
ng

in
ee

ri
ng

.c
om

CO
NS

UL
TI

NG
 E

NG
IN

EE
RS

O
FF

IC
E:

 8
30

-6
93

-5
63

5 
 F

A
X
: 

83
0-

69
3-

96
64

K
.C

. 
EN

G
IN

EE
R
IN

G
, 

IN
C
.

R
EG

IS
TR

A
TI

O
N

 #
 F

-9
77

EN
G
IN
E
E
R
IN
G

19
8
6

G
re

g 
H

al
ey

, 
P.

E.
 5

22
92

Th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t 
is

 r
el

ea
se

d 
fo

r
th

e 
pu

rp
os

e 
of

 in
te

ri
m

 r
ev

ie
w

un
de

r 
th

e 
au

th
or

ity
 o

f

on
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

pe
rm

it 
pu

rp
os

es
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n,
 b

id
di

ng
 o

r
It

 is
 n

ot
 t

o 
be

 u
se

d 
fo

r

M
ay

 0
2,

 2
02

1

B

4

00
A
S
 N

O
TE

D
05

/0
3/

21

A
S
 N

O
TE

D
20

5-
5

1 32K:
\2

0-
20

5.
5 

W
A 

#
5 

- 
CR

 3
07

\D
es

ig
n\

Ci
vi

l 3
D

\P
re

lim
in

ar
y.

dw
g

W
IL

LI
A
M

S
O

N
 C

O
U

N
TY

, 
TX

PR
EC

IN
C
T 

3
C
R
 3

07
 &

 C
R
 3

05
 I

N
T.

S
C
H

EM
A
TI

C
 L

A
YO

U
T

KC

N

0 5025

GRAPHIC SCALE
100

100' STORAGE100' STORAGE
100' TAPER

345' DECELERATION LANE
345' TAPER

FUTURE ROW

345' DECELERATION
LANERIGHT TURN LANE

LEFT TURN LANE

EXIST ROW

EXIST ROW

EXIST ROW

EXIST ROW

±305' TAPER

DIMENSIONS BASED UPON 45 MPH DESIGN SPEED:

DECELERATION LENGTH = 345'
TAPER LENGTH = 100'

LANE WIDTHS = 12'

LOCATIONS ARE APPROXIMATE. ACTUAL
CONSTRUCTION VIABILITY TO BE DETERMINED BY
ON-THE-GROUND SURVEY DATA.

100' TAPER

PR
OP

 R
OW

FUTURE ROW FUTURE ROW FUTURE ROW

BEGIN END

±1,315'

EXIST ROW
345' TAPER

EOP PROP

EOP PROP

EOP PROP

EOP PROP345' TAPER

345' TAPER



Task No. Task Name Duration Time Start Finish
1 WA #5 - Notice to Proceed 0 Days 5/18/2021 5/18/2021
2 Survey (by others) 10 Days 5/28/2021 5/28/2021
3 Design 30 Days 5/28/2021 6/27/2021
4 50% PS&E 5 Days 6/27/2021 7/2/2021
5 QA/QC 2 Days 7/2/2021 7/4/2021
6 Submit 50% PS&E 0 Days 7/4/2021 7/4/2021
7 County Review 5 Days 7/4/2021 7/9/2021
8 90% PS&E 20 Days 7/9/2021 7/29/2021
9 QA/QC 2 Days 7/29/2021 7/31/2021

10 Submit 90% PS&E 0 Days 7/31/2021 7/31/2021
11 County Review 5 Days 7/31/2021 8/5/2021
12 Final PS&E 5 Days 8/5/2021 8/10/2021
13 Address 90% comments 2 Days 8/10/2021 8/12/2021
14 Final Quantities 2 Days 8/12/2021 8/14/2021
15 Final Estimate 2 Days 8/14/2021 8/16/2021
16 Assemble Final PS&E 2 Days 8/16/2021 8/18/2021
17 Submit Final PS&E 0 Days 8/18/2021 8/18/2021
18 County Review 5 Days 8/18/2021 8/23/2021
19 Submit Signed and Sealed PS&E 2 Days 8/23/2021 8/25/2021
20 Bid Advertisement 35 Days 8/25/2021 9/29/2021
21 Letting 1 Days 9/29/2021 9/30/2021
22 Award and Bonds 30 Days 9/30/2021 10/30/2021
23 Construction 60 Days 10/30/2021 12/29/2021
24 Complete Project 2 Days 12/29/2021 12/31/2021

ATTACHMENT C
WORK SCHEDULE

WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 5



ATTACHMENT D - FEE SCHEDULE
WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 5

COUNTY ROAD 307

K.C. ENGINEERING, INC.

Labor Rates 250.00 215.00 200.00 195.00 165.00 125.00 110.00 95.00 80.00

1 PS&E Development
1.1 Roadway Design

1.1.1 Establish Horizontal Alignment 1 1 360.00$                 
1.1.2 Establish Vertical Alignment 2 3 885.00$                 
1.1.3 Site Visits 4 780.00$                 
1.1.4 Superelevation Table -$                       
1.1.5 Roadway Cross Sections 1 2 4 2 1,550.00$              
1.1.6 Earthwork Calculations 1 2 4 1,025.00$              
1.1.7 Roadway Plan Profile Sheets 1 3 8 12 3,655.00$              
1.1.8 Driveway Profiles / Details / Summaries 2 2 4 1,220.00$              
1.1.9 Side Road Profiles / Details / Summaries 2 4 6 1,800.00$              

1.1.10 Miscellaneous Roadway Details 1 2 2 775.00$                 
1.1.11 Alignment Data 1 1 2 610.00$                 
1.1.12 Sequence of Construction 1 2 4 2 1,550.00$              
1.1.13 Intersection Layouts 1 2 6 8 2,630.00$              
1.1.14 Project Layout 1 2 3 900.00$                 
1.1.15 Title Sheet 1 1 2 610.00$                 
1.1.16 Survey Data 1 2 2 775.00$                 
1.1.17 Roadway Typical Sectons 1 1 2 4 1,275.00$              
1.1.18 Index of Sheets 1 1 2 610.00$                 
1.1.19 Summary of Roadway Quantities 1 2 4 8 2,300.00$              
1.1.20 Construction Estimate 1 2 4 4 1,800.00$              
1.1.21 Assemble Applicable Standards 1 2 2 775.00$                 

     Task 2.1 Total 7 0 0 33 55 69 0 0 0 25,885.00$            
1.2 Hydrology & Hydraulics

1.2.1 Drainage Area Mapping (Roadway & Driveway) 1 2 8 1,525.00$              
1.2.2 Roadway Hydrology 4 6 8 2,770.00$              
1.2.3 Roadway Hydraulics 2 2 5 1,345.00$              
1.2.4 Roadway Culvert Sizing 1 2 3 3 1,510.00$              
1.2.5 Roadway H&H Summary Sheet & Tables 1 1 3 735.00$                 
1.2.6 Driveway Hydrology 1 3 4 8 2,495.00$              
1.2.7 Driveway Hydraulics 1 2 3 6 1,885.00$              
1.2.8 Driveway Culvert Sizing 1 2 4 6 2,050.00$              
1.2.9 Driveway H&H Summary Sheet & Tables 1 1 2 6 1,525.00$              

1.2.10 Culvert Layouts & Culvert Details 1 2 6 8 2,630.00$              
1.2.11 Miscellaneous Drainage Details 1 2 2 775.00$                 
1.2.12 Summary of Drainage Quantities 1 1 1 2 860.00$                 
1.2.13 Assemble Applicable Standards 1 2 2 775.00$                 

     Task 2.2 Total 7 0 0 23 38 67 0 0 0 20,880.00$            
1.3 Signing & Pavement Marking

1.3.1 Sign Layouts 1 2 1 1 930.00$                 
1.3.2 Pavement Marking Layouts 1 1 4 4 1,605.00$              
1.3.3 Pavement Marking Details 1 2 4 1,025.00$              
1.3.4 Summary of Pavement Markings 1 2 4 1,025.00$              
1.3.5 Small Sign Summary 1 4 695.00$                 
1.3.6 Assemble Applicable Standards 1 2 2 775.00$                 

     Task 2.3 Total 2 0 0 7 11 19 0 0 0 6,055.00$              
1.4 Traffic Control Plans / SW3P

1.4.1 Traffic Control Layouts 1 6 4 2 2,330.00$              
1.4.2 Traffic Control Typical Sections 1 2 4 4 1,800.00$              
1.4.3 Intersection Design 1 2 6 8 2,630.00$              
1.4.4 Driveway Design 1 2 4 6 2,050.00$              
1.4.5 Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SW3P) 1 1 2 4 1,275.00$              

CLERICALPROJECT 
ENGINEER

ENGINEERING 
ASSISTANT

CAD 
TECHNICIAN

TASK
DESCRIPTION

TASK
NO.

PRINCIPAL 
ENGINEER TOTALPROJECT 

MANAGER

SENIOR 
PROJECT 
MANAGER

SENIOR 
PROJECT 
ENGINEER

ENGINEER-IN-
TRAINING



ATTACHMENT D - FEE SCHEDULE
WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 5

COUNTY ROAD 307

K.C. ENGINEERING, INC.

Labor Rates 250.00 215.00 200.00 195.00 165.00 125.00 110.00 95.00 80.00

CLERICALPROJECT 
ENGINEER

ENGINEERING 
ASSISTANT

CAD 
TECHNICIAN

TASK
DESCRIPTION

TASK
NO.

PRINCIPAL 
ENGINEER TOTALPROJECT 

MANAGER

SENIOR 
PROJECT 
MANAGER

SENIOR 
PROJECT 
ENGINEER

ENGINEER-IN-
TRAINING

1.4.6 Prepare Env. Permits, Issues & Commitments 1 1 1 2 860.00$                 
1.4.7 Erosion Control Plan 1 2 2 8 1,970.00$              
1.4.8 Miscellaneous TCP and Erosion Details 1 1 2 610.00$                 
1.4.9 Assemble Applicable Standards 1 1 2 610.00$                 

     Task 2.4 Total 7 0 0 18 25 38 0 0 0 14,135.00$            
1.5 PS&E Documents

1.5.1 Summary of Quantities 1 2 4 8 2,300.00$              
1.5.2 Basis of Estimate 1 2 4 4 1,800.00$              
1.5.3 Construction Cost Estimate 1 2 4 4 1,800.00$              
1.5.4 Construction Duration Estimate 1 2 1 1 930.00$                 
1.5.5 General Notes & Specifications 1 2 4 2 1,550.00$              
1.5.6 Supporting Contract Documentation 1 2 1 2 1,055.00$              

     Task 2.5 Total 6 0 0 12 18 21 0 0 0 9,435.00$              
1.6 Project Management

1.6.1 Project Administration 12 14 4,120.00$              
1.6.2 Maintain Project Records 1 2 6 1,120.00$              
1.6.3 Periodic Progress Meetings (County) 2 3 1,085.00$              
1.6.4 Periodic Progress Meetings (Subconsultants) -$                       
1.6.5 QA/QC 4 4 6 4 4 3,590.00$              
1.6.6 Invoice Preparation 3 10 1,550.00$              
1.6.7 Progress Reports 2 8 1,140.00$              
1.6.8 Plans Preparation for Submittal 1 2 4 4 8 2,440.00$              

     Task 2.6 Total 25 0 0 11 10 8 0 0 50 15,045.00$            
     Task 1 - PS&E Total 54 0 104 157 222 0 0 50 91,435.00$            

2 Project Bidding
2.1 Project Bidding

2.1.1 Prepare Addenda 2 390.00$                 
2.1.2 Contractor Questions (RFI) 2 390.00$                 
2.1.3 Attend Pre-Bid Conference -$                       
2.1.4 Tabulate Bids 2 390.00$                 
2.1.5 Prepare Recommendation Letter -$                       

     Task 2 Project Bidding Total 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 1,170.00$              

3 Construction Support
3.1 Construction Support  (If Required)

3.1.1 Preconstruction Meeting -$                       
3.1.2 Review Shop Drawings -$                       
3.1.3 General Construction Support -$                       
3.1.4 Prepare Change Orders as Necessary -$                       

     Task 3 Construction Support Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$                       
     Total Tasks 1, 2, & 3 54 0 110 157 222 0 0 50 92,605.00$            



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 20.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

Walker 2586 WA3 CR 255 ROW Topo 
Submitted For: Robert Daigh  Submitted By: Vicky Edwards,

Infrastructure
Department: Infrastructure
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on Work Authorization No 3 in the amount of
$194,370.00 to expire on December 31, 2022 under Williamson County Contract for Surveying
Services between Walker Texas Surveyors, Inc. and Williamson County dated May 19, 2020 for
CR 255 Topo and ROW Parcel Exhibit Acquisition. Funding source: P546.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Walker 2586 WA3 CR 255 ROW Topo 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Hal Hawes Hal Hawes 05/18/2021 12:07 PM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/18/2021 01:59 PM
Form Started By: Vicky Edwards Started On: 05/17/2021 03:05 PM
Final Approval Date: 05/18/2021 























   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 21.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

Diamond 2586 WA4 CR 201
Submitted For: Robert Daigh  Submitted By: Vicky Edwards,

Infrastructure
Department: Infrastructure
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on Work Authorization No 4 in the amount of
$110,460.00 to expire on May 31, 2022 under Williamson County Contract for Surveying
Services between Diamond Surveying and Williamson County dated May 19, 2020 for CR 201
from CR 200 to Approximate 1,100 Feet North of Umbrella Sky. Funding source: P499.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Diamond 2586 WA4 CR 201 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Hal Hawes Hal Hawes 05/17/2021 03:52 PM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/17/2021 04:33 PM
Form Started By: Vicky Edwards Started On: 05/17/2021 03:23 PM
Final Approval Date: 05/17/2021 





mawalters
MJW

mawalters
Typewritten Text
5/14/2021















   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 22.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

Authorize issuing T4320 IFB County Road Paving (CR 401, 402, 404)
Submitted For: Joy Simonton  Submitted By: Kim Chappius,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the Purchasing Agent to advertise
and receive sealed bids for IFB County Road Paving (CR 401, 402, 404) under IFB
#T4320. Funding Source will be P389 (CR 402) and P390 (CR 401/CR 404 Improvements).

Background
Williamson County is seeking qualified contractors for the construction of grading, overlay, and
surfaces. The project will overlay CR 401 from CR 404 to the UPRR tracks, CR 402 from the
western intersection with US 79 to and including the intersection with CR 401, and CR 404 from
1.5 miles west of CR 401 to FM 973. Department point of contact is Kate Wilder.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 05/20/2021 10:25 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 10:27 AM
Form Started By: Kim Chappius Started On: 05/19/2021 03:28 PM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 23.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

Authorize issuing T4327 Great Oaks Bridge Project
Submitted For: Joy Simonton  Submitted By: Kim Chappius,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the Purchasing Agent to advertise
and receive sealed bids for qualified contractors for the replacement of the existing Great Oaks
Drive Bridge and improvements to the Great Oaks Drive/Brushy Creek Road/Hairy Man Road
Intersection under IFB #T4327. Funding source is Road Bond P270.

Background
Williamson County is seeking qualified contractors for the replacement of the existing Great
Oaks Drive Bridge and improvements to the Great Oaks Drive/Brushy Creek Road/Hairy Man
Road Intersection.  Improvements include construction of raised and widened roadways,
channel improvements, drainage structures, grading, retaining walls, guardrail, new signals and
illumination, additional sidewalks and trails for pedestrians, additional parking capacity, and
wastewater line and manhole adjustments.  Estimated amount is $11,900,000.00. Point of
contact is Kate Wilder with HNTB.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 05/20/2021 10:26 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 10:29 AM
Form Started By: Kim Chappius Started On: 05/19/2021 04:18 PM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 24.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

Final plat for the Dove Meadows Estates on 406 subdivision – Pct 4
Submitted For: Terron Evertson  Submitted By: Adam

Boatright,
Infrastructure

Department: Infrastructure Division: Road & Bridge
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for the Dove
Meadows Estates on 406 subdivision – Precinct 4.

Background
This subdivision consists of 4 lots and no new public roads. 

Timeline
2021-03-30 – initial submittal of the final plat
2021-04-30 – 1st review complete with comments
2021-05-04 – 2nd submittal of final plat
2021-05-10 – 2nd review complete with comments
2021-05-10 – 3rd submittal of final plat
2021-05-12 – receipt of final plat with signatures
2021-05-19 – 3rd review complete with comments clear
2021-05-20 – final plat placed on May 25, 2021 Commissioners Court agenda for consideration

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
final plat - Dove Meadows Estates on 406 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 11:41 AM
Form Started By: Adam Boatright Started On: 05/20/2021 11:12 AM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 







   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 25.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

Final plat for the Boggy Creek Acres subdivision – Pct 4
Submitted For: Terron Evertson  Submitted By: Adam

Boatright,
Infrastructure

Department: Infrastructure Division: Road & Bridge
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for the Boggy Creek
Acres subdivision – Precinct 4.

Background
This subdivision consists of 5 lots and no new public roads. 

Timeline
2021-03-30 – initial submittal of the final plat application
2021-04-30 – 1st review complete with comments
2021-05-04 – 2nd submittal of final plat
2021-05-10 – 2nd review complete with comments
2021-05-10 – 3rd submittal of final plat
2021-05-12 – receipt of final plat with signatures
2021-05-19 – 3rd review complete with comments clear
2021-05-20 – final plat placed on May 25, 2021 Commissioners Court agenda for consideration

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
final plat - Boggy Creek Acres 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 11:42 AM
Form Started By: Adam Boatright Started On: 05/20/2021 11:20 AM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 







   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 26.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

Final plat for the Star Ranch Parcel 32 subdivision – Pct 4
Submitted For: Terron Evertson  Submitted By: Adam

Boatright,
Infrastructure

Department: Infrastructure Division: Road & Bridge
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for the Star Ranch
Parcel 32 subdivision – Precinct 4.

Background
This subdivision consists of 2 lots and no new public roads. 

Timeline
2021-01-19 – initial submittal of the final plat
2021-02-18 – 1st review complete with comments
2021-03-06 – 2nd submittal of final plat
2021-03-19 – 2nd review complete with comments
2021-05-07 – 3rd submittal of final plat with signatures
2021-05-12 – 3rd review complete with minor comments
2021-05-19 – 4th submittal of final plat
2021-05-19 – 4th review complete with comments clear
2021-05-20 – final plat placed on May 25, 2021 Commissioners Court agenda for consideration

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
final plat - Star Ranch Parcel 32 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 11:46 AM
Form Started By: Adam Boatright Started On: 05/20/2021 11:25 AM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 







   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 27.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

GHS Golf Resolution
Submitted By: Ashlie Holladay, Budget Office
Department: Budget Office
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a resolution recognizing the Georgetown High
School Golf Team.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
GHS Golf Resolution 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 09:00 AM
Form Started By: Ashlie Holladay Started On: 05/19/2021 11:16 AM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 



State of Texas 

County of Williamson 

Know all men by these presents: 

 

That on this, the 25th day of May 2021, the Commissioners Court of Williamson County Texas, met in 

duly called session at the Courthouse in Georgetown with the following members present: 

Bill Gravell Jr., County Judge 

Terry Cook, Commissioner, Precinct One 

Cynthia Long, Commissioner, Precinct Two 

Valerie Covey, Commissioner, Precinct Three 

Russ Boles, Commissioner, Precinct Four 

 

And at said meeting, among other business, the Court considered the following: 

 

RESOLUTION 

 

Whereas, The Georgetown High School Varsity Golf Team has a rich tradition of excellence and 

accomplishment in academic and athletic competition reflecting the highest ideals of hard work, training 

and sportsmanship, and 

 

Whereas, The Georgetown High School Varsity Golf Team is a true testament of what 

determination, dedication and a passion to win can accomplish. 

 

Whereas,  The Georgetown High School Varsity Boy’s Golf Team and Matti Palmer both took first 

place during district play at Delaware Springs in Burnet, Texas. 

 

Whereas, The Georgetown High School Boy’s Golf Team finished third and Matti Palmer finished 

fourth during regional action at the Hyatt Hill Country Club in San Antonio moving on to the state 

championship at Sun City.  

 

Therefore, Be it Resolved that the Williamson County Commissioners Court is proud to recognize the 

Georgetown High School Boy’s Varsity Golf Team and Matti Palmer, both finishing eighth in the state 

during the State Golf Tournament in Sun City, Texas in May of 2021. 

 

 

RESOLVED THIS 25TH DAY OF MAY, 2021. 

 

__________________________________________  ________________________________ 

Bill Gravell Jr., County Judge     Attest:  Nancy E. Rister, County Clerk 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 28.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

Request for Qualifications for Strategic Plan Consulting Services
Submitted For: Joy Simonton  Submitted By: Joy Simonton,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on the process to begin a Request for Qualifications for Strategic
Plan Consulting Services.

Background
In response to the Commissioner’s Court request to provide framework as to how to solicit and contract for
Strategic Plan Consulting Services, I offer the following overview and recommendations.

Planning services are considered a unique category and do not require a competitive bid, meaning price can but is
not required to be an evaluation factor.  However, notice of the consulting opportunity must be given and fair and
open competition is required (Tex. Gov’t Code Sec. 2254.022 (b) (3))
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/GV/htm/GV.2254.htm.

In this setting, the Commissioners Court would be well served to know the market by issuing a solicitation and
select a consultant based on the most qualified respondent.  A Request for Qualifications (RFQ) is the
recommended solicitation method for the Strategic Plan Consulting contract being considered.

A detailed recommendation memo is herein attached as well as a slide presentation to help assure staff
understands the directive.

Department contact:  Joy Simonton, Purchasing Agent.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Williamson County Strategic Plan Consulting Services Procurement Overview 
Slides - Strategic Plan Consulting Services RFQ Overview 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/18/2021 09:08 AM
Form Started By: Joy Simonton Started On: 05/17/2021 04:51 PM
Final Approval Date: 05/18/2021 







What is a strategic plan?



What is a strategic plan?

A strategic plan provides guidance to an organization by establishing where they are 
now, where they want to be, how to get there, and if they have arrived. A strategic plan 
identifies the mission and vision of the organization – why they exist – and establishes 

values that the organization will hold to as it moves forward 
(Williamson County Adopted Budget Fiscal Year 2020-2021, p. 36).

Captures strategic thinking and expresses a clear mission 
Defines guiding principles

Articulates a compelling vision for the target year  
Establishes goals and measurable implementation

Includes key assignments 
Routinely referenced to track and report progress



How many years should an organization plan for?

Near term and long-range goals can be 
established in a strategic plan.  

Near term: 3 – 5 years

Long range: 25+ years



What do strategic plans look Like?

Sample plans:

Williamson County 2010

Tarrant County Strategic Plan 2014-2020
Parker County Strategic Plan 2019-2021
Dallas County Strategic Plan 2007-2017

https://www.wilco.org/Portals/0/Departments/Budget/2021/FY21%20Annual%20Budget%20Report.pdf
https://www.tarrantcounty.com/content/dam/main/administration/2014_Strategic_Plan_6-25-14.pdf
https://www.parkercountytx.com/DocumentCenter/View/6321/strategic-plan
https://www.dallascounty.org/Assets/uploads/docs/comcrt/DallasCountyStrategicPlan.pdf


Who helps create a strategic plan?

Professional planning and consulting firms that specialize in helping 
organizations create a strategic plan can be hired to assist with this project.   

How is this type of a firm chosen?

A formal solicitation and interview process can be conducted to 
select the most highly qualified firm.  In the public sector, this process is 

typically through a Request for Qualifications (RFQ).



How do we start?

Create scope of work
Determine scoring criteria on 100-point scale

Determine selection committee
Advertise RFQ opportunity

Receive responses
Evaluate responses

Determine short list for interview purposes
Interview short-listed candidates

Make final selection
Negotiate contract

Begin strategic planning project



Which people participate in creating the plan?

The entire organization can participate in assisting with the strategic plan.  

All departments and Elected Officials can be represented.



How long does the strategic planning process take?

For large, complex organizations, the strategic planning 
process can take 6-12 months.  

What is the average cost for these 
consulting services?

Costs can range from $100,000 to $200,000 for complex organizations.



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 30.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

2021 PM 2.5 emission reduction and planning measures for Williamson County 
Submitted For: Terry Cook  Submitted By: Garry Brown,

Commissioner
Pct. #1

Department: Commissioner Pct. #1
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a proposed Regional PM2.5 (particulate
matter 2.5 microns) Emission Reduction and Planning Measures for Williamson County as part
of the Austin-Round Rock-Georgetown MSA Regional Air Quality Plan from the Clean Air
Coalition (CAC) of the Capital Areas Council of Governments (CAPCOG)

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
PM 2.5 reduction and planning form 2021 
Proposed PM 2.5 Measures from CAPCOG CAC 
Public Comments at CAPCOG CAC Feb. 10, 2021 
Executive Summary of PM 2.5 proposed measures document from CAPCOG 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 11:47 AM
Form Started By: Garry Brown Started On: 05/20/2021 11:36 AM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 





Page 1 of 10 
 

Proposed PM2.5 Measures for the Austin-Round Rock-
Georgetown MSA Regional Air Quality Plan 

February 25, 2021 

Prepared by the Capital Area Council of Governments (CAPCOG) 

Background 
In December 2020, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) concluded its periodic review of the 
particulate matter (PM) National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS) by deciding to retain all of the existing 
PM NAAQS. However, as part of this review, EPA staff indicated that there is no clear threshold below which 
exposure to PM pollution will not cause significant health problems, and EPA staff had recommended 
consideration of a tighter annual fine particulate matter (PM2.5) NAAQS. During the next PM NAAQS review due 
in 2025, the new EPA Administrator could tighten the NAAQS and the Austin-Round Rock-Georgetown 
Metropolitan Statistical Area’s (MSA’s) PM2.5 concentrations are high enough that the region could be at risk of a 
nonattainment designation for a tighter PM2.5 NAAQS. Therefore, both from a public health perspective and a 
regulatory perspective, the Central Texas Clean Air Coalition (CAC) has decided to update the region’s voluntary 
air quality plan, 2019-2023 Austin-Round Rock-Georgetown Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) Regional Air 
Quality Plan, to include additional measures targeted at reducing regional PM2.5 air pollution and enhancing 
awareness of PM air pollution. 

Currently, the region’s air pollution levels continue to be much closer to exceeding the ozone (O3) NAAQS than 
any of the PM NAAQS. However, the region’s PM air pollution levels pose a much more significant public health 
threat than O3, and the PM pollution levels may pose a more significant regulatory threat as well in the coming 
years. This list of proposed measures is designed to help reduce regional PM2.5 pollution, and were developed by 
a subcommittee of the Clean Air Coalition Advisory Committee (CACAC) that included staff from Austin, Round 
Rock, Travis County, Bastrop County, EPA, and Public Citizen, and was reviewed by the CAC at its February 10, 
2021, meeting. The list is intended to provide a “menu” of options for current and potential future CAC 
members to consider implementing as part of the regional plan. CAPCOG will solicit public comment on these 
measures, compile the responses, and provide these to CAC members for their consideration. CAPCOG is 
requesting that organizations consider this list of measures and notify CAPCOG by May 31, 2021, of any new 
measures they plan to implement, as well as any existing measures already being implemented. CAPCOG staff 
will incorporate this into an update to the regional plan that will be presented to the CAC at its August 11, 2021, 
meeting, for approval. 

Proposed Measures 
Several proposed measures are new and specific to major sources of PM emissions that differ from measures to 
control O3-forming emissions. However, there are also existing measures in the plan that organizations may not 
be implementing that can also help reduce PM emissions and concentrations. The list includes both a measure 
and target for implementation.  Methods of implementation can range from passive controls such as 
encouraging and sharing best management practices (BMPs) to more aggressive controls such as contractor 
requirements that BMPs are implemented or city ordinances. The appendix contains details on specific activities 
that can be undertaken under each category and provides additional background to help stakeholders 
understand the multiple ways in which certain sectors could reduce emissions. CAPCOG is not requesting that 
CAC members list in detail each specific action. However, CAPCOG is requesting that CAC members indicate 
which general measures they will commit to implementing and the level of commitment (i.e., encouraging best 
management practices, ordinances, contractual specifications, outreach and education, etc.). 



Proposed Regional PM2.5 Emission Reduction and Planning Measures for the Austin-Round Rock-Georgetown 
MSA Regional Air Quality Plan – February 25, 2021 

Page 2 of 10 
 

 

Organization:        

Table 1 - PM2.5 Measures for Austin-Round Rock-Georgetown MSA Air Quality Plan 

Measure and Status (i.e., 
new or existing) 

Implement within own 
organization’s operations 

Encourage or require 3rd 
party organizations to 

implement 

Educate and 
encourage the public 
at large to implement 

1: Reduce PM emissions 
from construction and 
demolition activities 
(new) 

Yes 
No 
N/A 

Yes 
No 
N/A 

Yes 
No 
N/A 

2: Reduce PM emissions 
from commercial 
cooking/charbroiling 
(new) 

Yes 
No 
N/A 

Yes 
No 
N/A 

Yes 
No 
N/A 

3: Reduce PM emissions 
from road dust (new) 

Yes 
No 
N/A 

Yes 
No 
N/A 

Yes 
No 
N/A 

4: Reduce PM emissions 
from mining and 
quarrying activities (new) 

Yes 
No 
N/A 

Yes 
No 
N/A 

Yes 
No 
N/A 

5: Reducing PM emissions 
from open burning (new) 

Yes 
No 
N/A 

Yes 
No 
N/A 

Yes 
No 
N/A 

6: Reduce PM emissions 
or impact of PM emissions 
from prescribed burning 
on high PM days (new) 

Yes 
No 
N/A 

Yes 
No 
N/A 

Yes 
No 
N/A 

7: Reduce emissions from 
mobile sources year-
round (existing) 

Yes 
No 
N/A 

Yes 
No 
N/A 

Yes 
No 
N/A 

8: Reduce emissions from 
stationary combustion 
sources year-round 
(existing) 

Yes 
No 
N/A 

Yes 
No 
N/A 

Yes 
No 
N/A 

9: Installation additional 
PM2.5 monitors/sensors 
within the region (new) 

Yes 
No 
N/A 

Yes 
No 
N/A 

Yes 
No 
N/A 

10: Promote awareness of 
health effects of PM air 
pollution (new) 

Yes 
No 
N/A 

Yes 
No 
N/A 

Yes 
No 
N/A 



Proposed Regional PM2.5 Emission Reduction and Planning Measures for the Austin-Round Rock-Georgetown 
MSA Regional Air Quality Plan – February 25, 2021 

Page 3 of 10 
 

Next Steps 
Below is the timeline that CAPCOG plans to follow regarding collecting public comments, soliciting emission 

reduction commitments from CAC members, and updating the Regional Air Quality Plan. CAPCOG will be 

conducting a region-wide public comment period in March 2021 in order to provide CAC member organizations 

useful public and stakeholder input on this list of measures ahead of the May 31, 2021, target date for 

submitting its list of measure for inclusion in the update to the air quality plan that will be presented to the CAC 

for approval at their August 2021 meeting. Since this is a voluntary plan, the CAC’s approval will simply codify all 

of the commitments that member organizations have made and provide any direction on region-wide initiatives 

that it may wish CAPCOG to undertake. Please send any questions, comments, or inquiries to Christiane Alepuz 

at calepuz@capcog.org. Public comment will be accepted until March 26, 2021, and then collated and 

distributed to CAC members the following week. 

CAPCOG also plans to monitor new state legislation that may affect PM emissions sectors from some key sector 

and sources such as concrete batch plants or mining and quarry operations, and any federal or state-level 

initiatives that may be supportive of additional PM reductions within the region.  

Table 2 - Timeline for 2021 Update to the 2019-2023 Regional Air Quality Plan Update for PM2.5 

Date or Timeframe Milestone 

2/10/2021 CAC meeting; list of measures presented, public comment period opens 

3/26/2021 End of public comment period 

3/29/2021- 4/2/2021 CAPCOG will compile comments and disseminate to CAC and CACAC 

4/29/2021 CACAC meeting; review progress 

5/3/2021 – 5/7/2021 National Air Quality Awareness Week; Presentations to CAC Organizations 

5/12/2021 CAC Meeting; review progress 

5/31/2021 Target date for existing CAC members to update commitments  

6/25/2021 Target date for commitments from new CAC members 

7/22/2021 Target date for drafting plan & distribution to CACAC for review 

7/29/2021 CACAC meeting to consider recommendation of plan update (tentative) 

8/11/2021 CAC considers approval of update to plan 

8/13/2021 CAPCOG submits plan to EPA as “Path Forward” for PM Advance Program 

mailto:calepuz@capcog.org


Proposed Regional PM2.5 Emission Reduction and Planning Measures for the Austin-Round Rock-Georgetown 
MSA Regional Air Quality Plan – February 25, 2021 

Page 4 of 10 
 

Appendix A: Additional Background 

What are the Health Effects of Particulate Matter Pollution? 
Particles with diameters of 2.5 micrometers or smaller (PM2.5, or “fine PM”) are small enough to penetrate and 
harm numerous body systems. EPA’s review of PM health studies have indicated “causal” or “likely causal” 
relationships between short-term and/or long term exposure to PM2.5  and the following health effects1:  

 Premature death; 

 Lung cancer; 

 Cardiovascular effects; 

 Nervous system effects; and 

 Respiratory effects. 

EPA’s review also indicated that there is no evidence of a threshold below which further reductions to PM2.5 
exposure would not continue to decrease risks. This means that there are public health benefits of reducing 
both long-term and short-term exposure to PM2.5 even if an area is attaining the PM2.5 NAAQS. 

EPA also reviewed health effects of particles with diameters 2.5 – 10 micrometers (PM2.5-10 or “coarse PM), but 
EPA was not able to determine if particles in this size range could be definitively linked to any health outcomes. 
EPA does have a NAAQS for short-term exposure to all particles with diameters 10 micrometers or smaller 
(PM10), but PM10 includes PM2.5. EPA also reviewed information on health effects associated with even smaller 
particles – ones with diameters smaller than 0.1 micrometers (PM0.1 or “ultrafine PM”), but was not able to 
determine conclusively if there were health effects from particles these sizes that were distinct from the health 
effects it assessed for PM2.5. 

Who is Most Affected by Particulate Matter Pollution? 

People with heart or lung diseases, children, and older adults are the most likely to be affected by PM2.5 

pollution exposure. These sensitive groups comprise at least 40% of the population in the MSA. Additionally, 
people of color and people with low incomes tend to have disproportionate exposure to high PM2.5 levels. 

What are the Different Types of PM2.5 Pollution? 

PM2.5 is both a primary pollutant (i.e., directly emitted from different sources) and a secondary pollutant (i.e., 
formed in the atmosphere through chemical reactions and processes from other direct emissions). 

Sources of PM2.5 include: 

 Crustal PM2.5 – particles from dust/soil; 

 Elemental carbon (EC) PM2.5 – particles that contain the elemental form of carbon (i.e., graphite); 

 Organic carbon (OC) PM2.5 – particles that contain organic molecules (hydrocarbons); 

 Sulfate PM2.5 – particles that contain SO4 molecules; 

 Nitrate PM2.5 – particles that contain NO3 molecules; and 

 Ammonium PM2.5 – particles that contain NH4 molecules. 

Which Type of PM2.5 Pollution is of Most Concern? 

The type of PM2.5 that appears to be contributing the most to the highest levels of annual PM2.5 concentrations 
within the region is organic carbon PM2.5. The large variation in the organic carbon PM2.5 contributions at the 
two regional regulatory monitors in 2014-2018 accounts for the vast majority in the differences in the annual 
PM2.5 concentrations between these locations. This suggests that reducing organic carbon PM2.5 emissions would 

                                                           
1 EPA. Integrated Science Assessment for Particulate Matter. December 2019. EPA/600/R-19/188, 
http://ofmpub.epa.gov/eims/eimscomm.getfile?p_download_id=539935. 

http://ofmpub.epa.gov/eims/eimscomm.getfile?p_download_id=539935


Proposed PM2.5 Measures for the Austin-Round Rock-Georgetown MSA Regional Air Quality Plan 
 

Page 5 of 10 

be the most important step that the region can take towards reducing the highest annual PM2.5 concentrations, 
which are located in the urban core. 

What are the Largest Sources of PM2.5 Emissions? 

The largest sources of PM2.5 and organic carbon PM2.5 within the Austin-Round Rock-Georgetown MSA are listed 
below: 

Table 3 – Largest sources of PM2.5 Emissions in the region, 2017 

Source Category Tons per year PM2.5 
% of Total PM2.5 

Emissions 
Tons per year OC 

PM2.5 
% of Total OC 

PM2.5 Emissions 

Road Dust 2,325 22% 153 6% 

Construction Dust 1,693 16% 78 3% 

Open Burning 1,574 15% 611 26% 

Prescribed Fires 861 8% 403 17% 

Agricultural Dust 793 8% 24 1% 

Commercial Cooking 417 4% 279 12% 

Mining and Quarrying 326 3% 0 0% 

Subtotal 7,989 76% 1,548 65% 

 

It’s important to note that while these represent the best estimates available, they are characterized by a high 

degree of certainty, especially compared to some of the largest sources of ozone-forming emissions. EPA has 

developed these estimates based on broad national datasets and emissions factors, and circumstances may vary 

significantly location to location. For example, EPA assumes that 12.5% of all PM10 emissions from all mines and 

quarries is PM2.5, but EPA’s estimates for the region do not reflect any unique circumstances that may be 

present at any specific mine or quarry within the region. 

How Do the Sources of PM2.5 Emissions Compare to Sources of Ozone-Forming Emissions? 

The list of the mains sources of PM2.5 emissions in the region is very different than the list of main sources of 

emissions contributing to peak O3 formation, which is dominated by mobile sources and point sources. While 

measures to reduce O3-forming emissions from mobile sources and point sources will also help reduce PM2.5, 

those sources do not contribute nearly as much to the region’s PM2.5 concentrations as they do to peak O3 

formation, and the main sources of PM2.5 emissions require distinct control measures in order to significantly 

affect regional PM2.5 concentrations. 

How Do the Region’s PM2.5 Concentrations Compare to NAAQS? 

When comparing the region’s PM2.5 concentrations to the NAAQS, the concentrations are referred to as “design 

values,” and are based on 3 years’ worth of data, (i.e., 2018-2020): 

 Annual design value: 9.7 micrograms per cubic meter (µg/m3) – 81% of the maximum allowed 

o The annual NAAQS is 12.0 µg/m3 

o EPA staff had proposed consideration of a NAAQS as low as 8.0 µg/m3 

 24-hour design value for 2018-2020: 22 µg/m3 – 63% of the maximum allowed 

o The 24-hour NAAQS is 35 µg/m3 



Proposed PM2.5 Measures for the Austin-Round Rock-Georgetown MSA Regional Air Quality Plan 
 

Page 6 of 10 

How are the Design Values Determined? 

When EPA determines if an area’s PM2.5 levels are in compliance with the NAAQS, they will use the most recent 

three years’ worth of data from all of the official PM2.5 monitors that the state operates or has approved for use 

in comparison to the NAAQS. These numbers are known as “design values.” The highest design value for the 

whole region becomes that region’s design value. In the Austin-Round Rock-Georgetown MSA, there are two 

such PM2.5 monitors that will be used to assess the region’s compliance for the 2018-2020 period: 

 AQS Number 484530021/CAMS Number 171 in East Austin: https://www.tceq.texas.gov/cgi-

bin/compliance/monops/site_photo.pl?cams=171 

 AQS Number 484531068/CAMS 1068 along IH-35, just north of the intersection with US-183: 

https://www.tceq.texas.gov/cgi-bin/compliance/monops/site_photo.pl?cams=1068  

These two sites are located where EPA and the state have determined would be the locations most likely to 

measure the highest region-wide PM2.5 concentrations over a three-year period. 

For the annual PM2.5 NAAQS, EPA calculates quarterly averages for each year, and then calculates a 3-year 

average to determine the design value. If that 3-year average is 12.0 µg/m3 or below, the region is considered in 

compliance with the NAAQS. For the 24-hour PM2.5 NAAQS, EPA calculates the 98th percentile 24-hour 

concentration for each year, and then calculates a 3-year average. If that 3-year average is 35 µg/m3 or below, 

the region is considered in compliance with the NAAQS. 

What Specific Actions can be Implemented? 

This section outlines in detail the specific activities that CAC members could implement under each category 

identified above. This is meant to provide an idea of specific activities, and it is not required that CAC members 

list in detail which specific action (e.g., water application) is planned to be implemented.  

1. Reduce emissions from construction and demolition activities 

a. There are a number of ways to reduce PM emissions during construction and demolition. The list 
below is compiled from the WRAP Fugitive Dust Handbook2 and a best practice document from 
Canada3 

b. Water application 
c. Dust suppressants 
d. Reschedule large dust generating activities from high wind days or forecasted high PM days 
e. Design: 

i. Plan for minimizing dust generation 
ii. Choosing building material to reduce dust generation 

iii. Minimize distances travelled for delivery of materials 
iv. Use of green building materials 
v. Design and construction for maximum energy efficiency 

f. Site preparation 

                                                           
2 Western Regional Air Partnership’s (WRAP’s) Fugitive Dust Handbook, 
https://www.wrapair.org//forums/dejf/fdh/content/FDHandbook_Rev_06.pdf 
3Best Practices for the Reduction of Air Emissions From Construction and Demolition Activities, 
http://www.bv.transports.gouv.qc.ca/mono/1173259.pdf 

https://www.tceq.texas.gov/cgi-bin/compliance/monops/site_photo.pl?cams=171
https://www.tceq.texas.gov/cgi-bin/compliance/monops/site_photo.pl?cams=171
https://www.tceq.texas.gov/cgi-bin/compliance/monops/site_photo.pl?cams=1068
https://www.wrapair.org/forums/dejf/fdh/content/FDHandbook_Rev_06.pdf
http://www.bv.transports.gouv.qc.ca/mono/1173259.pdf


Proposed PM2.5 Measures for the Austin-Round Rock-Georgetown MSA Regional Air Quality Plan 
 

Page 7 of 10 

i. Grade the construction site in phases 
ii. Use wind fencing 

iii. Stabilize surfaces of completed earthworks with vegetation 
iv. Stabilize earthworks with stone/soil/geotextiles 
v. Create ridges to prevent dust 

vi. Compact disturbed soil 
vii. Eliminate open burning 

viii. Reduce certain activities during windy conditions 
g. Storage piles: 

i. Storage pile activity should be conducted downwind 
ii. Utilize enclosures/coverings for storage piles 

iii. Utilize wind fences/screens for storage piles 
iv. Use vegetation cover as a wind break 
v. Properly shape storage piles 

vi. Properly schedule the delivery of landscaping materials 
h. Material Handling & Transfer Systems 

i. Control mud and dirt trackout and carryout 
ii. Minimize material drop at the transfer point and enclosure 

iii. Utilize foam suppression systems 
iv. Secure loads on haul trucks 
v. Prevent PM emissions from spills 

vi. Minimize material handling operations 
vii. Capture fugitive dust emissions 

viii. Utilize wind barriers 
ix. Reduce certain activities during windy conditions 

i. Road surfaces 
i. Establish on-site vehicle restrictions 

ii. Surface improvements to unpaved road surfaces 
iii. Proper maintenance of unpaved roads 
iv. Work practices associated with de-icing materials 

j. Fabrication 
i. On high PM days, reschedule the following: 

1. Cutting and grinding 
2. Sand and grit blasting and façade cleaning 
3. Concrete cutting 
4. Mixing processes 
5. Internal and external finishing and refurbishment 

k. Demolition and Deconstruction 
i. Apply deconstruction techniques 

ii. Minimize drop heights for debris 
iii. Enclose chutes and cover bins 
iv. Use fogging systems 
v. Construct barriers to prevent dispersion 

vi. Avoid blasting when feasible 
vii. Vacuum debris 

viii. Work practices for loading debris 
ix. Avoid prolonged storage of debris 

2. Reduce emissions from commercial cooking/charbroiling, possibly through some kind of grant program 



Proposed PM2.5 Measures for the Austin-Round Rock-Georgetown MSA Regional Air Quality Plan 
 

Page 8 of 10 

a. The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency’s (EPA’s) Menu of Control Measures4 identifies one 
control for commercial cooking, catalytic oxidizers, which are estimated to achieve an 83% control 
efficiency at a cost of $3,252 per ton of PM + volatile organic compounds (VOCs).  

i. This measure focuses on the control of PM emissions from over-fire and conveyor 
charbroilers. The use of a catalytic oxidizer, placed above the charbroiler in the stack and 
activated by heat from the cooking, appears to be the best and most cost-effective emission 
control device for charbroilers. 

ii. Cities in California and New York have established exemptions for establishments that 
charbroil less than 400 – 1,000 pounds of meat per week. 

b. If funds are available, a grant program could be implemented to assist restaurants and food 
service businesses, that charbroil a certain threshold of meat, in purchasing and installing a 
catalytic oxidizer. 

3. Reduce road dust emissions2 

a. Paved roads and parking lots: 

i. Water flushing/sweeping 

ii. Improvements in sanding/salting applications and materials 

iii. Covering haul trucks  

iv. Prevention of vehicle dust trackout 

1. Curb installation 

2. Shoulder stabilization 

b. Unpaved roads & parking lots 

i. Paving 

ii. Chemical stabilization/dust suppressant 

iii. Surface improvement (e.g., gravel) 

iv. Vehicle speed reduction (to 25 miles/hour or less) 

v. Watering twice a day for industrial unpaved road  

4. Reduce emissions from mining and quarrying activities 

a. EPA4 identifies the following control measures for direct PM emissions from “Mineral Products – 
Stone Quarrying & Processing” at stationary facilities at which materials are being handled after 
quarrying. 

i. Dry Electrostatic Precipitator (ESP) – Wire Plate Type 

ii. Fabric Filter 

iii. Paper/Nonwoven Filters – Cartridge Collector 

iv. Venturi Scrubber 

v. Wet Electrostatic Precipitator (ESP) – Wire Plate Type 

b. PM reduction measures at the mining and quarrying site are2,5: 

i. Reschedule blasting and other large dust generating activities from days with high winds 
or high PM levels 

                                                           
4 EPA Point & Non-Point PM Menu of Control Measures, https://www.epa.gov/sites/production/files/2016-
02/documents/menuofcontrolmeasures.pdf 
5 Public Citizen Urges Texas Legislature to Rein in Aggregate Pollution, https://www.citizen.org/article/public-citizen-urges-
texas-legislature-to-rein-in-aggregate-pollution/ 

https://www.epa.gov/sites/production/files/2016-02/documents/menuofcontrolmeasures.pdf
https://www.epa.gov/sites/production/files/2016-02/documents/menuofcontrolmeasures.pdf
https://www.citizen.org/article/public-citizen-urges-texas-legislature-to-rein-in-aggregate-pollution/
https://www.citizen.org/article/public-citizen-urges-texas-legislature-to-rein-in-aggregate-pollution/


Proposed PM2.5 Measures for the Austin-Round Rock-Georgetown MSA Regional Air Quality Plan 
 

Page 9 of 10 

ii. Implement wet suppression  

iii. Enclose or cover storage piles 

iv. Plant vegetation as a windbreak and/or erect artificial wind barriers 

v. Control mud and dirt trackout 
vi. Secure loads on haul trucks 

vii. Vehicle wash stations upon exiting property 
viii. Route optimization to avoid neighborhoods and school zone times 

ix. Vacuuming dust 

c. The control measures for unpaved roads2 are potentially applicable to mines and quarries. These 
measures include: 

i. Pave roads and high-traffic areas  

ii. Chemical stabilization/dust suppressant 

iii. Surface improvement (e.g., gravel) 

iv. Vehicle speed reduction to 25 miles/hour  

v. Watering twice a day for industrial unpaved road  

5. Reducing open burning 

a. Working with the Capital Area Regional Environmental Task Force (RETF) and other city or county 
environmental enforcement staff to enforce burn bans and the state’s Outdoor Burning Rule 

i. Outdoor Burning Rule, Title 30, Texas Administrative Code, Sections 111.201–221  

1. The Outdoor Burning Rule requires that certain kinds of burning be conducted 
downwind of, or at least 300 feet from, any structure containing sensitive receptors 
located on adjacent properties unless written approval is obtained beforehand from 
the owner or occupant—the one who will suffer adverse effects—of the adjacent or 
downwind property. Also, the burning must not cause a nuisance or traffic hazard. 

2. See the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality’s (TCEQ’s) Outdoor Burning in 
Texas Guide - https://www.tceq.texas.gov/assets/public/comm_exec/pubs/rg/rg-
049.pdf  

b. Educating the public on fire and air quality hazards from open burning 

6. Working to ensure prescribed burning activities do not coincide with projected high PM days, if possible  

a. According to Travis County’s Park Land Manager, prescribed burn windows are identified the week 
before the prescribed burn. Therefore, it is recommended that prescribed burning staff consider the 
air quality forecast for the timeframe in which the burns are being considered. There a lot of factors 
that go into selecting the day of a prescribed burn such as meteorology and staff availability, so it 
may not be possible to avoid some high PM days. Note that this measure would be expected to 
reduce peak daily 24-hour PM2.5 concentrations, but not annual PM2.5 concentrations. 

 

CAPCOG can also encourage consideration of co-benefits of PM air pollution reductions from other 
actions/measures that are already in the Regional Air Quality6 plan for O3 that also could impact regional 24-
hour or annual PM2.5 concentrations  

 

 

                                                           
6 2019-2023 Austin-Round Rock-Georgetown MSA Regional Air Quality Plan, https://www.capcog.org/wp-
content/uploads/2019/10/2019-2023_Regional_Air_Quality_Plan.pdf 

https://www.tceq.texas.gov/assets/public/comm_exec/pubs/rg/rg-049.pdf
https://www.tceq.texas.gov/assets/public/comm_exec/pubs/rg/rg-049.pdf
https://www.capcog.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/10/2019-2023_Regional_Air_Quality_Plan.pdf
https://www.capcog.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/10/2019-2023_Regional_Air_Quality_Plan.pdf


Proposed PM2.5 Measures for the Austin-Round Rock-Georgetown MSA Regional Air Quality Plan 
 

Page 10 of 10 

7. Measures to reduce air pollution from the use of fleet/commercial vehicles and equipment: 

a. Tier 1 

i. Establish and enforce idling restriction policies for use of the organization’s vehicles, 
equipment, and property 

ii. Establish fleet management policies that prioritize the use of vehicles and equipment 
with low emission rates 

iii. Educate fleet users on driving and equipment operation practices that can reduce 
emissions 

iv. Seek funding to accelerate replacement of older, higher-emitting vehicles and 
equipment with newer, cleaner vehicles and equipment, such as TERP grants 

b. Tier 2 

i. Establish low-emission purchasing policies for new on-road vehicles, non-road 
equipment, and stationary equipment 

ii. Enforce vehicle idling restrictions within the community [either through an ordinance if 
a city or a memorandum of agreement with TCEQ if a county]. 

8. Measures to reduce air pollution from power plants and other stationary combustion sources:  

a. Conserve energy 

b. Schedule discretionary emission-generating activities such as engine testing to periods that 
would avoid peak 8-hour O3 or 24-hour PM2.5 concentrations 

 

The following measures would also be expected to generally improve understanding and awareness of PM2.5 air 
pollution, which could lead to emission reduction or exposure reduction by the community at large. 

 

9. Encourage installation of additional PM2.5 monitors/sensors within the region 

a. More PM2.5 monitors and sensors in the MSA would allow a better understanding of where elevated 
PM2.5 levels are occurring and the populations that are most affected by high PM2.5. 

b. EPA has started to display privately collected PM2.5 data from “Purple Air” sensors on their AirNow 
website, and these low-cost sensors ($200-$300) can greatly expand the availability of PM2.5 data 
within the region (fire.airnow.gov) 

c. CAPCOG is installing/has installed Purple Air sensors at its air monitoring stations in Austin, Bastrop, 
Dripping Springs, Elgin, Georgetown, Lockhart, Round Rock, and San Marcos. 

10. Promote awareness of health effects of PM air pollution 

a. PM2.5 poses the greater risk to human health than ozone as PM2.5 can be inhaled deep into the lungs 
and can enter the bloodstream.  

b. People with heart or lung diseases, children, and older adults are the most likely to be affected by 
particle pollution exposure. 

i. AirNow, www.airnow.gov, can help the public view the air quality in their area in order to 
avoid elevated PM levels. 

 

http://fire.airnow.gov/
file:///C:/Users/calepuz/Downloads/www.airnow.gov












Executive Summary of PM2.5 Proposed Measures Document from CAPCOG CAC 

 

1. Particles with diameters of 2.5 micrometers or smaller (PM2.5, or “fine PM”) are small enough 
to penetrate and harm numerous body systems. EPA’s review of PM health studies indicate 
“causal” or “likely causal” relationships between short-term and/or long term exposure to 
PM2.5 and the following health effects: 

o Premature death; 
o Lung cancer; 
o Cardiovascular effects; 
o Nervous system effects; and 
o Respiratory effects. 

(EPA. Integrated Science Assessment for Particulate Matter. December 2019. EPA/600/R-19/188, 
http://ofmpub.epa.gov/eims/eimscomm.getfile?p_download_id=539935) 
 

2. EPA’s review also indicated that there is no evidence of a threshold below which further 
reductions to PM2.5 exposure would not continue to decrease risks. This means that there are 
public health benefits of reducing both long-term and short-term exposure to PM2.5 even if an 
area is attaining the PM2.5 NAAQS. 
NAAQS = National Ambient Air Quality Standards  

 
3. Sources of PM2.5 include: 

o Crustal PM2.5 – particles from dust/soil; 
o Elemental carbon (EC) PM2.5 – particles that contain the elemental form of carbon (i.e., 

graphite); 
o Organic carbon (OC) PM2.5 – particles that contain organic molecules (hydrocarbons); 
o Sulfate PM2.5 – particles that contain SO4 molecules; 
o Nitrate PM2.5 – particles that contain NO3 molecules; and 
o Ammonium PM2.5 – particles that contain NH4 molecules. 

 

 
4. Our current NAAQS values are under the maximum allowed by EPA. However, they may lower 

that standard level putting us at risk of non-attainment.  
 
Therefore, planning now for the future, protecting our citizens and economic development, 
to keep Williamson County in attainment status. 

http://ofmpub.epa.gov/eims/eimscomm.getfile?p_download_id=539935


   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 31.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

Tax Collection Agreement
Submitted For: Larry Gaddes  Submitted By: Judy Kocian, County Tax

Assessor Collector
Department: County Tax Assessor Collector
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action to approve the Tax Collection Agreement
between the Williamson County Municipal Utility District No. 19C and the County of Williamson,
Texas.

Background
Under provisions of Texas Government Code Section 791.001 and Texas Property Tax Code
Section 6.21, the County, through its Tax Assessor/Collector shall serve as the Tax Collector for
the Jurisdiction for ad valorem tax purposes for those properties stated in the Tax Collection
Agreement.  The three original documents of the Tax Collection Agreement with the Williamson
County Municipal Utility District No. 19C require the County Judge's signature as well as the
County Tax Assessor/Collector.  The original documents have been signed by the County Tax
Assessor/Collector and are being sent via interdepartmental mail to the County Judge's office
indicating the location for his signature.  Please return all signed original documents to the Tax
Assessor/Collector's office for further distribution.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
MUD No. 19C 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 09:18 AM
Form Started By: Judy Kocian Started On: 05/19/2021 01:36 PM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 













   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 32.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

Tax Collection Agreement
Submitted For: Larry Gaddes  Submitted By: Judy Kocian, County Tax

Assessor Collector
Department: County Tax Assessor Collector
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action to approve the Tax Collection Agreement
between the Williamson County Municipal Utility District No. 19E and the County of Williamson,
Texas.

Background
Under provisions of Texas Government Code Section 791.001 and Texas Property Tax Code
Section 6.21, the County, through its Tax Assessor/Collector shall serve as the Tax Collector for
the Jurisdiction for ad valorem tax purposes for those properties stated in the Tax Collection
Agreement.  The three original documents of the Tax Collection Agreement with the Williamson
County Municipal Utility District No. 19E require the County Judge's signature as well as the
County Tax Assessor/Collector.  The original documents have been signed by the County Tax
Assessor/Collector and are being sent via interdepartmental mail to the County Judge's office
indicating the location for his signature.  Please return all signed original documents to the Tax
Assessor/Collector's office for further distribution.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
MUD No. 19E 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 09:19 AM
Form Started By: Judy Kocian Started On: 05/19/2021 01:39 PM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 













   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 33.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

SO Donation Rev BA 5.25.21
Submitted For: Melanie Denny  Submitted By: Melanie Denny, County

Auditor
Department: County Auditor
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency and a grave
necessity due to unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget amendment to
acknowledge additional revenue for a Sheriff’s Office donation.

Background
On Tuesday, May 11, 2021, Williamson County Sheriff's Office Community Liaison Division
received $56.00 in cash donations during the Junior Deputy Academy registration event at
Headquarters. This donation will be used during the Junior Deputy Academy in June & July.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0100.0000.367400 Donations $56.00

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/18/2021 01:54 PM
Form Started By: Melanie Denny Started On: 05/17/2021 08:51 AM
Final Approval Date: 05/18/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 34.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

SO Donation BA Exp 5.25.21
Submitted For: Melanie Denny  Submitted By: Melanie Denny, County

Auditor
Department: County Auditor
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency and a grave
necessity due to unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget amendment to
acknowledge additional expenditures for a Sheriff’s Office donation.

Background
On Tuesday, May 11, 2021, Williamson County Sheriff's Office Community Liaison Division
received $56.00 in cash donations during the Junior Deputy Academy registration event at
Headquarters. This donation will be used during the Junior Deputy Academy in June & July.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0100.0560.003670 Use of Donations $56.00

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/18/2021 01:57 PM
Form Started By: Melanie Denny Started On: 05/17/2021 08:52 AM
Final Approval Date: 05/18/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 35.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

Policy Exception
Submitted For: D. Hobbs  Submitted By: Stephanie Lloyd, County

Attorney
Department: County Attorney
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a policy exception regarding moving surplus
salary dollars within the County Attorney's Office.

Background

The County Attorney's office is asking for a policy exception for 2 Attorney positions in the
office.  Both of these positions are critical leadership positions in the Criminal Division, Trial
Director (who oversees the development and training of all Criminal Prosecutors serving in trial
courts and Lead Prosecutor-Mental Health (who oversees the 3 specialty courts in the Criminal
Division along with a special focus on Mental Health).  There would be no fiscal impact, as the
money is already budgeted for the department. We are requesting surplus salary dollars be
moved around on positions within our office. Please see attachment for details.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Position changes 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 09:18 AM
Form Started By: Stephanie Lloyd Started On: 05/19/2021 01:27 PM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 



Department PCN EE ID
Current 

Annual Salary
*New Annual 

Salary
Current Position 
Budget Amount

*New Position 
Budget Amount

Reduction to 
Position 
Budget

Increase to 
Position 
Budget Change Notes

Earliest Oracle 
Effective Date

0475‐County Attorney 0021 15451 $37,344.20 N/A $47,035.87 $37,999.57 $9,036.30  N/A

Reallocation of position budget 
to facilitate external hire at base 
+15% max. Surplus salary moving 
to PCN 0035.

0475‐County Attorney 0035 Vacant N/A N/A $77,562.16 $86,598.46 N/A $9,036.30 

Reallocation of position budget 
to facilitate external hire at base 
+15% max. Surplus salary from 
PCN 0021.

0475‐County Attorney 0030 15615 $37,344.20 N/A $43,037.61 $37,344.20 $5,693.41  N/A

Reallocation of position budget 
to facilitate external hire at base 
+15% max. Surplus salary moving 
to PCN 0036.

0475‐County Attorney 0014 15636 $37,344.20 N/A $44,385.10 $41,768.59 $2,616.51  N/A

Reallocation of position budget 
to facilitate external hire at base 
+15% max. Surplus salary moving 
to PCN 0036.

0475‐County Attorney 0036 Vacant N/A N/A $87,256.78 $95,566.70 N/A $8,309.92 

Reallocation of position budget 
to facilitate external hire at base 
+15% max. Surplus salary from 
PCN 0030 and 0014.



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 36.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

Tax Exemptions
Submitted For: Cynthia Long  Submitted By: Kathy Pierce,

Commissioner
Pct. #2

Department: Commissioner Pct. #2
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss and take appropriate action on increasing the homestead property tax exemptions for persons sixty-five
(65) years of age or older from $30,000 to {NOT TO EXCEED $100,000} as authorized by Section 11.13(d) of the
Property Tax Code, to be effective for the tax year beginning on January 1, 2021.

Background
On December 18, 2018, the Commissioners Court agreed to begin a review of the County's
exemption policy every five years, beginning 2020.  On October 22, 2019, the Commissioners
Court voted to increase the Over 65 Exemption from $25,000 to $30,000 and increase the
Disabled Person Exemption from $15,000 to $20,000.  Given the increase in residential
appraisals this year, the Commissioners Court discussed on May 11, 2021, increasing
exemptions this year, instead of waiting the full five years for review.  This item is being brought
back from the May 11th agenda to discuss and determine the correct amount for exemption
increases.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/13/2021 12:25 PM
Commissioner Pct. 2 (Originator) Kathy Pierce 05/20/2021 11:58 AM
Form Started By: Kathy Pierce Started On: 05/13/2021 11:18 AM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 37.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

Tax Exemption
Submitted For: Cynthia Long  Submitted By: Kathy Pierce,

Commissioner
Pct. #2

Department: Commissioner Pct. #2
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss and take appropriate action on increasing the homestead property tax exemptions for disabled persons
from $20,000 to {NOT TO EXCEED $50,000} dollars as authorized by Section 11.13(d) of the Property Tax Code,
to be effective for the tax year beginning on January 1, 2021.

Background
On December 18, 2018, the Commissioners Court agreed to begin a review of the County's
exemption policy every five years, beginning 2020.  On October 22, 2019, the Commissioners
Court voted to increase the Over 65 Exemption from $25,000 to $30,000 and increase the
Disabled Person Exemption from $15,000 to $20,000.  Given the increase in residential
appraisals in 2021, the Commissioners Court discussed on May 11, 2021, increasing
exemptions this year, instead of waiting the full five years for review.  This item is being brought
back from the May 11th agenda to discuss and determine the correct amount for exemption
increases.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/13/2021 03:47 PM
Commissioner Pct. 2 (Originator) Kathy Pierce 05/20/2021 11:58 AM
Form Started By: Kathy Pierce Started On: 05/13/2021 03:13 PM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 38.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

Tax Exemption 
Submitted For: Cynthia Long  Submitted By: Kathy Pierce,

Commissioner
Pct. #2

Department: Commissioner Pct. #2
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss and take appropriate action on authorizing a percentage-based exemption from ad valorem taxes on the
appraised value of the residence homestead in the amount of {NOT TO EXCEED 2 percent} of the appraised value
of the individual’s residence homestead or a minimum of $5,000 as authorized by Section 11.13(n) of the Property
Tax Code, to be effective for the tax year beginning on January 1, 2021.

Background
This item is being brought back to the agenda after discussions from the May 11, 2021
Commissioners Court meeting.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 10:47 AM
Form Started By: Kathy Pierce Started On: 05/20/2021 10:34 AM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 39.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

Williamson County Child Advocacy Center Addition (P530) Building Funding
Submitted For: Dale Butler  Submitted By: Wendy Danzoy, Building

Maintenance
Department: Building Maintenance
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on the funding needs for the Williamson County
Child Advocacy Center (P530) new building construction project.

Background
Due to extreme and unusual market conditions that have increased the cost of building
materials, a budget shortfall has occurred for this project. The budget and building size were
established based on pre-inflation pricing.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 09:27 AM
Form Started By: Wendy Danzoy Started On: 05/20/2021 07:58 AM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 40.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

Service Contract for restroom building delivery and installation at Southwest Regional Park
Submitted For: Joy Simonton  Submitted By: Johnny Grimaldo,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on authorizing the Service Contract between
Public Restroom Company, Inc. and Williamson County for restroom building delivery and
installation at Southwest Regional Park, pursuant to Buyboard contract #592 and authorize the
execution of the agreement.

Background
This project is for the delivery and installation of a public restroom at Southwest Regional Park. The building is
pre-cast concrete panel designed for heavy public use in secluded areas of the park, easier to maintain and
perform repairs.  The proposal includes a detailed scope of work in the not-to-exceed amount of $166,783.00. The
point of contact is Angel Gomez. The funding Source is P-560 and is budgeted for FY2021.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Agreement and Proposal 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 09:25 AM
Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 05/20/2021 10:23 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 10:26 AM
Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 05/20/2021 10:27 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 10:28 AM
Form Started By: Johnny Grimaldo Started On: 05/19/2021 03:51 PM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 



 1 

THE STATE OF TEXAS   § 
 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON  § 
 
 

 

Services Contract 
for  

Southwest Regional Park 
Restroom Building Delivery and Installation 

(Public Restroom Company - BuyBoard: Contract #592-19) 
 
 

Important Notice: County Purchase Orders and Contracts constitute expenditures 
of public funds, and all vendors are hereby placed on notice that any quotes, 
invoices or any other forms that seek to unilaterally impose contractual or 
quasicontractual terms are subject to the extent authorized by Texas law, including 
but not limited to Tex. Const. art. XI, § 7, the Texas Government Code, the Texas 
Local Government Code, the Texas Transportation Code, the Texas Health & 
Safety Code, and Opinions of the Texas Attorney General relevant to local 
governmental entities. 
 
 
 THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into by and between Williamson County, 
Texas (hereinafter “The County”), a political subdivision of the State of Texas, acting 
herein by and through its governing body, and Public Restroom Company (hereinafter 
“Service Provider”), with mailing address at 2587 Business Parkway, Minden, NV 89423  
(phone 888-888-2060). The County agrees to engage Service Provider as an independent 
contractor, to assist in providing certain operational services pursuant to the following 
terms, conditions, and restrictions: 
 

I. 
 
 No Agency Relationship:  It is understood and agreed that Service Provider shall 
not in any sense be considered a partner or joint venturer with The County, nor shall 
Service Provider hold himself out as an agent or official representative of The County 
unless expressly authorized to do so by a majority of the Williamson County 
Commissioners Court.  Service Provider shall be considered an independent contractor 
for the purpose of this agreement and shall in no manner incur any expense or liability on 
behalf of The County other than what may be expressly allowed under this agreement. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6C718EBA-4A84-4453-9708-19F97AA5472F



 2 

 
II. 

 
Entire Contract & Incorporated Documents: This Contract constitutes the 

entire Contract between the parties and may not be modified or amended other than by a 
written instrument executed by both parties. Documents expressly incorporated (as if 
copied in full) into this Contract include the following: 
 

A. As described in the attached Price Proposal (Model# PS-022-CE), dated 
April 29, 2021 which is incorporated herein as if copied in full;   
 

B. Project Ref #10894-3/31/2021 - 2 Floor Plan;  
 

C. BuyBoard: Contract #592-19; and 
 

D. Any required insurance certificates evidencing required coverages. 
 

III. 
 

No Assignment:  Service Provider may not assign this contract. 
 

IV. 
 

Compliance with All Laws:  Service Provider agrees and will comply with any 
and all local, state or federal requirements with respect to the services rendered.  
 

V. 
 

Consideration and Compensation:  Service Provider will be compensated based 
on the attached Price Proposal (Model# PS-022-CE), dated April 29, 2021 which is 
incorporated herein as if copied in full. The not-to-exceed amount under this 
agreement is $166,783.00, unless amended by a change order and approved by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court. Payment for goods and services shall be 
governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code.  An invoice shall be deemed 
overdue the 31st day after the later of (1) the date The County receives the goods under 
the contract; (2) the date the performance of the service under the contract is completed; 
or (3) the date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or 
services.  Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by The County in 
accordance with Texas Government Code Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate 
of interest that shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of The 
County’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes due.  The said rate in effect on 
September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6C718EBA-4A84-4453-9708-19F97AA5472F



 3 

published in the Wall Street Journal on the first day of July of the preceding fiscal year 
that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.     
 

VI. 
 

Insurance:  Service Provider shall provide and maintain, until the services 
covered in this Contract is completed and accepted by The County, the minimum 
insurance coverage in the minimum amounts as described below.  Coverage shall be 
written on an occurrence basis by companies authorized and admitted to do business in 
the State of Texas and rated A- or better by A.M. Best Company or otherwise acceptable 
to The County and name The County as an additional insured.   

 
 Type of Coverage Limits of Liability 

 
a. Worker's Compensation     Statutory 

 
b. Employer's Liability   

Bodily Injury by Accident $500,000 Ea. Accident 
Bodily Injury by Disease $500,000 Ea. Employee  
Bodily Injury by Disease $500,000 Policy Limit 
 

c. Comprehensive general liability including completed operations 
and contractual liability insurance for bodily injury, death, or property damages 
in the following amounts: 
 
 
 
 
 

COVERAGE   PER PERSON PER OCCURRENCE 
 

Comprehensive   
General Liability  $1,000,000  $1,000,000 
(including premises, 
 completed operations 
 and contractual)    

   
Aggregate policy limits:   $2,000,000 

 
 

d. Comprehensive automobile and auto liability insurance (covering 
owned, hired, leased and non-owned vehicles): 
 
COVERAGE  PER PERSON PER OCCURRENCE 
   
Bodily injury  $1,000,000  $1,000,000  
(including death) 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6C718EBA-4A84-4453-9708-19F97AA5472F



 4 

Property damage  $1,000,000  $1,000,000  
 

Aggregate policy limits   No aggregate limit 
  
Service Provider, as an independent contractor, meets the qualifications of an 

“Independent Contractor” under Texas Worker’s Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, 
Section 406.141, and must provide its employees, agents and sub-subcontractors 
worker’s compensation coverage. Contactor shall not be entitled to worker’s 
compensation coverage or any other type of insurance coverage held by The County. 

 
Upon execution of this Contract, Service Provider shall provide The County with 

insurance certificates evidencing compliance with the insurance requirements of this 
Contract. 
 

VII. 
 

INDEMNIFICATION - EMPLOYEE PERSONAL INJURY CLAIMS:  TO THE FULLEST 
EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, THE SERVICE PROVIDER SHALL INDEMNIFY, DEFEND (WITH 
COUNSEL OF THE COUNTY’S CHOOSING), AND HOLD HARMLESS THE COUNTY, AND THE 
COUNTY’S EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES, PARTNERS, OFFICERS, AND DIRECTORS 
(COLLECTIVELY, THE “INDEMNITEES”) AND SHALL ASSUME ENTIRE RESPONSIBILITY AND 
LIABILITY (OTHER THAN AS A RESULT OF INDEMNITEES’ GROSS NEGLIGENCE) FOR ANY 
CLAIM OR ACTION BASED ON OR ARISING OUT OF THE PERSONAL INJURY, OR DEATH, OF ANY 
EMPLOYEE OF THE SERVICE PROVIDER, OR OF ANY SUBCONTRACTOR, OR OF ANY OTHER 
ENTITY FOR WHOSE ACTS THEY MAY BE LIABLE, WHICH OCCURRED OR WAS ALLEGED TO 
HAVE OCCURRED ON THE  WORK SITE OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE OF THE 
WORK.  SERVICE PROVIDER HEREBY INDEMNIFIES THE INDEMNITEES EVEN TO THE EXTENT 
THAT SUCH PERSONAL INJURY WAS CAUSED OR ALLEGED TO HAVE BEEN CAUSED BY THE 
SOLE, COMPARATIVE OR CONCURRENT NEGLIGENCE OF THE STRICT LIABILITY OF ANY 
INDEMNIFIED PARTY.  THIS INDEMNIFICATION SHALL NOT BE LIMITED TO DAMAGES, 
COMPENSATION, OR BENEFITS PAYABLE UNDER INSURANCE POLICIES, WORKERS 
COMPENSATION ACTS, DISABILITY BENEFITS ACTS, OR OTHER EMPLOYEES BENEFIT ACTS. 

 
INDEMNIFICATION - OTHER THAN EMPLOYEE PERSONAL INJURY CLAIMS:  TO 

THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, SERVICE PROVIDER SHALL INDEMNIFY, DEFEND 
(WITH COUNSEL OF THE COUNTY’S CHOOSING), AND HOLD HARMLESS THE COUNTY, AND 
THE COUNTY’S EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES, PARTNERS, OFFICERS, AND 
DIRECTORS (COLLECTIVELY, THE “INDEMNITEES”) FROM AND AGAINST CLAIMS, DAMAGES, 
LOSSES AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ATTORNEYS’ FEES, ARISING OUT 
OF OR ALLEGED TO BE RESULTING FROM THE PERFORMANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT OR THE 
WORK DESCRIBED HEREIN, TO THE EXTENT CAUSED BY THE NEGLIGENCE, ACTS, ERRORS, 
OR OMISSIONS OF SERVICE PROVIDER OR ITS SUBCONTRACTORS, ANYONE EMPLOYED BY 
THEM OR ANYONE FOR WHOSE ACTS THEY MAY BE LIABLE, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER OR 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6C718EBA-4A84-4453-9708-19F97AA5472F



 5 

NOT SUCH CLAIM, DAMAGE, LOSS OR EXPENSE IS CAUSED IN WHOLE OR IN PART BY A PARTY 
INDEMNIFIED HEREUNDER. 

 
VIII. 

 
Services:  Service Provider shall provide services as an independent contractor 

pursuant to terms and policies of the Williamson County Commissioners Court.  Service 
Provider expressly acknowledges that he or she is not an employee of The County.   The 
services include, but are not limited to the following items in order to complete the 
project: 

 
As described in the Price Proposal (Model# PS-022-CE), dated April 29, 2021 

which is incorporated herein as if copied in full. 
  

IX. 
 

 Good Faith:  Service Provider agrees to act in good faith in the performance of 
this agreement. 

 
X. 
 

 Confidentiality:  Service Provider expressly agrees that he or she will not use any 
incidental confidential information that may be obtained while working in a 
governmental setting for his or her own benefit, and agrees that he or she will not enter 
any unauthorized areas or access confidential information and he or she will not disclose 
any information to unauthorized third parties, and will take care to guard the security of 
the information at all times. 
 

XI. 
 

 Termination:  This agreement may be terminated at any time at the option of 
either party, without future or prospective liability for performance upon giving thirty 
(30) days written notice thereof. In the event of termination, The County will only be 
liable for its pro rata share of services rendered and goods actually received. 
 

XII. 
 
 Venue and Applicable Law:  Venue of this contract shall be Williamson County, 
Texas, and the laws of the State of Texas shall govern all terms and conditions. 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6C718EBA-4A84-4453-9708-19F97AA5472F



 6 

 
XIII. 

 
 Effective Date and Term:  This contract shall be in full force and effect when 
signed by all parties and shall continue for a reasonable time period for the specific 
project and shall terminate upon project completion or when terminated pursuant to 
paragraph XI above. The parties expressly understand that the project timeline shall be 
completed no later than the end of The County’s current fiscal year, which is September 
30, 2021. 
 

XIV. 
 

 Severability:  In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this 
agreement shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any 
respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision 
in this agreement and this agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or 
unenforceable provision had never been contained in it. 

 
XV. 

 
 Right to Audit:  Service Provider agrees that The County or its duly authorized 
representatives shall, until the expiration of three (3) years after final payment under this 
Agreement, have access to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, 
documents, papers and records of Service Provider which are directly pertinent to the 
services to be performed under this Agreement for the purposes of making audits, 
examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions.  Service Provider agrees that The County shall 
have access during normal working hours to all necessary Service Provider facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate workspace in order to conduct audits in 
compliance with the provisions of this section.  The County shall give Service Provider 
reasonable advance notice of intended audits. 
 

XVI. 
 

No Waiver of Sovereign Immunity or Powers:  Nothing in this agreement will 
be deemed to constitute a waiver of sovereign immunity or powers of The County, the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court, or the Williamson County Judge. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6C718EBA-4A84-4453-9708-19F97AA5472F



 7 

 
XVII. 

 
 County Judge or Presiding Officer Authorized to Sign Contract:  The 
presiding officer of The County’s governing body who is authorized to execute this 
instrument by order duly recorded may execute this contract on behalf of The County. 
 
            Executed this ____ day of ________, 20____ to be effective as of the date of the 
last party’s execution below.   
 
 
          County:                                                                       Service Provider: 
 
           ________________________                                   ________________________ 
 Hon. Bill Gravell          Authorized Representative 
 Williamson County Judge 
 
            Date: ________ ___, 20____                                     Date: ________ ___, 20____ 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6C718EBA-4A84-4453-9708-19F97AA5472F

May

Charles E. Kaufman IV, President

12 21

21May 12



 8 

Exhibit(s) 
Price Proposal (Model# PS-022-CE), dated April 29, 2021 

(Incorporated herein as if copied in full) 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6C718EBA-4A84-4453-9708-19F97AA5472F



 

Southwest Regional Park, Williamson County, TX| 3/3/21 | Reference # (see above) 
2587 Business Parkway | Minden, NV 89423 | www.PublicRestroomCompany.com | p: 888-888-2060 | f: 888-888-1448 

1 of 8 
 

Price Proposal:  Southwest Regional Park 
Owner:   Williamson County, TX 
Date:     April 29, 2021     
Reference:  Model# PS-022-CE  
BuyBoard:  Contract #:  592-19 
  
Our Offer to Sell:  
 

1. Restroom Building delivered to site @ $146,685 
Public Restroom Company herein bids to furnish (building only per plans and specifications, 
delivered to site with all costs except installation including applicable taxes excluding 
retention. (Retention is not allowed as this is materials or a product fully assembled before 
shipment to the site and therefore not subject to retention.)   
Including:  FRC lap siding (full height), bottle filler @ rear of building, covered entry with 
steel truss. 

 
2. Installation: Turnkey Installation of the Building above @ $ 20,098 with retention allowed.  

Public Restroom Company also includes in this two-part quotation our turnkey installation 
package for this building. Our national factory authorized installation team will: 

a. Arrive onsite to confirm and verify the Owner/General Contractor provided scope of 
work in preparation for installation including access to the site.  

b. Verify the building pad size, building corners, finished slab elevation, utility depth and 
location, meter size and distance from building, and compaction compliance.  

c. Excavate the utility trenches for placement of our prefabricated underground piping 
tree for plumbing and electrical, set the kit in place, provide the water test for 
inspection before backfilling, and then place the site adjacent coarse sand you 
provide to us alongside the building pad and screed it level for final building 
placement. We will need onsite water availability for wetting the sand bed before 
building placement to consolidate the pad.  

d. Set the building on the site pad. 
e. Connect the utility piping stub ups to the building piping stub down building points of 

connection for water, sewer, and electrical conduit to the building internal electrical 
panel. 
 

3. Owner/General Contractor Final Tie-In of Utilities and other site work: 
The exterior utility connections for water, sewer and electrical 6’ or less from the footprint of 
the building are by owner/general contractor.  
 

4. Total Cost of building and installation @ $ 166,783 
  



 

Southwest Regional Park, Williamson County, TX| 3/3/21 | Reference # (see above) 
2587 Business Parkway | Minden, NV 89423 | www.PublicRestroomCompany.com | p: 888-888-2060 | f: 888-888-1448 

2 of 8 
 

 
 
  
OWNER/GENERAL CONTRACTOR SCOPE OF WORK WITH/WITHOUT FOOTINGS: 
   
Scope of Work Background:  
Owner/General Contractor shall survey the site, establish survey for the building pad and prefabricated 
building slab elevation and front corners, excavate for building footings (if required), locate footing 
sleeves for electrical, waste, and water, pour the footings (if required), furnish sand base adjacent to 
subgrade pad, and provide location for utility POC’s nominally 6’ outside the foundation. 
 
Preparation of Building Pad: 
Owner/General Contractor is responsible for providing the building subgrade pad or when required 
footings to frost depth per Public Restroom Company design specifications. PRC will provide detailed 
drawings for the subgrade building pad, utilities POC’s, and if required the footings, attached to this 
scope of work.  
  
Subgrade Pad/Foundation Requirements:  

1. Owner/General Contractor shall survey the building site and provide a finished slab elevation for 
the prefabricated building. The building pad size we require is larger than the final actual 
building footprint. Provide building front corner stakes with 10’ offsets. 

2. Excavate the existing site to the depth of the required footings to local code if required.  
3. Furnish coarse concrete sand adjacent to subgrade pad so PRC can cut the utility trenches, 

install underground utilities, and screed sand.  
 

Owner/General Contractor verification of site access to allow Building Delivery: 
1. You certify to PRC that suitable delivery access to the proposed building site is available. Suitable 

access is defined as 14’ minimum width, 16’ minimum height, and sufficient turning radius for a 
crane and 70’ tractor-trailer. 

2. Our cost is based upon the crane we provide being able to get within 35’ from the building 
center and for the delivery truck to be no more than 35’ from the crane center picking point.  

3. If the path to the building site traverses curbs, underground utilities, landscaping, sidewalks, or 
other obstacles that could be damaged, it is the Owner/General Contractor ‘s responsibility for 
repair and all costs, if damage occurs.  

4. If trench plating is required, it shall be the cost responsibility of the Owner/General Contractor.  
5. If unseen obstacles are present when site installation begins, it is the Owner/General Contractor 

responsibility to properly mark them and verbally notify PRC before installation.  
6. If weather becomes an issue for safety or site installation delays due to weather, 

Owner/General Contractor or PRC with General Contractor’s confirmation may call-off set. If 
building set is stopped, relocation of the building modules to an onsite or offsite location may 
incur additional costs to Owner/General Contractor.  
 

Installation Notice and Site Availability: 



 

Southwest Regional Park, Williamson County, TX| 3/3/21 | Reference # (see above) 
2587 Business Parkway | Minden, NV 89423 | www.PublicRestroomCompany.com | p: 888-888-2060 | f: 888-888-1448 

3 of 8 
 

PRC will provide sufficient notice of delivery of the prefabricated building. The Owner/General 
Contractor shall make the site available during the delivery period. During the delivery period, on an 
improved site, Owner should stop site watering several days before delivery to minimize the impact on 
the soils for the heavy equipment needed for installation.  
 
Caution: If site is not ready for our field crew to perform their installation and if no notice of delay in 
readiness from Owner/General Contractor is received, PRC will provide a change order for re-
mobilization on a daily basis until the site is ready for us. Ready means that the site pad is completed, 
the corner required survey stakes are in place, the slab elevation stakes are in place, the location of 
the front of the building is confirmed on site, and access to the site is available from an improved 
roadway. Owner/General Contractor shall sign the change order before we will continue delivery.  
 
Public Restroom Company will “turn-key” set the buildings including the hook up of utilities inside the 
building (only) when they are available. PRC will use its own factory trained staff for the installation.  
 
Utility Connections: 

1. The Owner/General Contractor is responsible for flushing all water service lines before final 
connection.  

2. The Owner/General Contractor is responsible for the final connections of water, sewer, and 
electrical at the exterior of building POC’s.   

3. PRC provides a POC for water, a POC DWV waste line with a clean out your service connection, 
and an electrical schedule 80 PVC sleeve at an exterior POC. 

4. PRC provides and connects the interior building utility connections and the Owner/General 
Contractor or their subcontractor makes the exterior connections to POC’s for services.  

 
Special Conditions, Permits, and Inspection Fees: 
Follow any published specifications governing local building procedures for applicable building permit 
fees, health department fees, all inspection fees, site concrete testing fees, and compaction tests, if 
required by Owner. PRC is responsible for all required State inspections and final State insignia 
certification of the building, if applicable.  
 
Jurisdiction for Off-site Work:  
Jurisdiction, for permitting and inspection of this building shall be either the State agency who manages 
prefabricated building compliance in the state or the local CBO (when the State does not provide 
certification.) If the responsibility for building inspection is the local CBO, we will provide a certified plan 
set, calculations, and a third-party engineer inspection report for any and all closed work the local 
official cannot see.  
 
PUBLIC RESTROOM COMPANY SCOPE OF WORK: 
 
Our In Plant/Off-Site Construction Scheduling System: 
PRC has several off-site manufacturing centers in the United States, strategically located, with the 
proper equipment and trained staff to fabricate our custom buildings to our high-quality fit and finish 
standards. PRC manages quality control in our off-site production facility to comply with the approved 



 

Southwest Regional Park, Williamson County, TX| 3/3/21 | Reference # (see above) 
2587 Business Parkway | Minden, NV 89423 | www.PublicRestroomCompany.com | p: 888-888-2060 | f: 888-888-1448 

4 of 8 
 

drawings and provides an inspection certification and photos as required. When proprietary materials, 
which we have designed and fabricated, are part of the project, PRC supplies the manufacturing centers 
with these proprietary PRC components. We then schedule the in-plant construction process to 
coordinate with your delivery date through our Operations Division field staff. We guaranty on time at 
cost delivery weather permitting.  
 
Special Payment and Progress Billing Terms: 
Invoicing begins on the 30th of the month following an order and/or the acceptance of the proposal/contract. 
The first progress billing invoice will be issued for the commencement of design and engineering of 
architectural plans.  This will be 10% of the contracted amount.  Once construction begins invoicing will 
commence monthly based on plant percentage of completion, supported by photographs. 
 
In the event of project stoppage, additional fees may be assessed for re-mobilization, storage, crane 
costs, etc. Our discounted project costs are based upon timely payments.  Delays in payment could 
change delivery schedules and project costs.    
 
Delivery and Installation: 
 
Site Inspection:  
PRC staff, upon site arrival, will verify the required dimensions of the building pad and the corner 
locations/elevation. We will also verify the delivery path from an accessible road or street and install the 
underground utilities to the point of connection nominally 6’ from the exterior of the building.  
 
Installation:  
PRC will install the building turnkey, except for any exclusion (listed under “Exclusions,” herein.)  
 
Installation of Utilities under the Prefabricated Building:  
We fabricate off-site an underground utilities (water, and DWV piping and fittings) preassembled 
plumbing and electrical tree. Our site staff will set the underground tree into code depth excavated 
trenches and our staff will install the coarse concrete sand to bed the piping per our submitted drawing. 
 
We provide all the under-slab piping including the driven electrical ground rod. The Owner/General 
Contractor brings utility services to within 6’ of the pad and are responsible for final connections at that 
point. 
 
Connection of Utilities Post Building Placement:  
After placement of the building on the pad by PRC, our field staff will tie in the water and sewer 
connection “inside” the building only and terminate at a point of connection (POC) outside the building 
clearly marked for each utility service. The Owner/General Contractor is responsible for final utility point 
of service connections at the nominal 6’ from building locations. 
 
Electrical: 
PRC provides the electrical conduit to the POC 6’ from the building.  The Owner/General Contractor pulls 
the wire and ties it off on the electrical panel. 



 

Southwest Regional Park, Williamson County, TX| 3/3/21 | Reference # (see above) 
2587 Business Parkway | Minden, NV 89423 | www.PublicRestroomCompany.com | p: 888-888-2060 | f: 888-888-1448 

5 of 8 
 

Plumbing:  
PRC provides the POC up to 6’ from the building footprint and the Owner/General Contractor connects 
the water to our stub out location 
 
Sewer: 
Some sites depending on the local jurisdiction will require an outside house trap which Owner/General 
Contractor shall install if needed. PRC will provide you with a sewer point of connection including a clean 
out to which Owner/General Contractor will terminate the site sewer service.  
 
Testing of Water, Sewer, and Electrical in Plant and Final Site Utility Connection: 
Before the building leaves the manufacturing center, PRC certifies a pressure water piping test, DWV, 
and the electrical connections for compliance with code. While the building is fully tested for leaks at 
the plant before shipment, road vibration may loosen some plumbing slip fittings and require tightening 
once the building services (water) is completed.  Owner/General Contractor is responsible for minor 
fitting tightening to handle small slip fitting leaks caused by transportation.   
 
Time of Completion: 
PRC estimates a 180-calendar day schedule to complete our scope of work from receipt of written 
notice to proceed together with signed approved architectural submittals from all authorities required 
to approve them.  
 
Exclusions/Exceptions:  

1. Access issues for delivery of the building by a clear unobstructed path of travel from an 
improved roadway to the final installation pad or foundation may cause site delays and 
extra cost at each site. This exclusion covers sites whose access is limited by trees, 
inaccessible roadways, overhead power lines at location where crane will lift building, 
grade changes disallowing our delivery trailers with only 4” of clearance to grade, berms, 
or uneven site grades, or when the path of travel is over improvements such as sidewalks, 
all of which are not within the scope of work by PRC. On some sites without on-site 
storage availability for buildings that cannot be set, relocation to a proximal crane yard 
and later relocated to the site for installation, will incur additional fees at rates that vary 
depending on local rates. PRC will provide written costs for this additional work by change 
order. 

2. If weather on site causes site delivery issues, the delivery may have to be diverted to an 
off-site location and the additional costs will be a change order to the bid. Our staff works 
with the Owner/General Contractor in advance to make sure sound decisions for delivery 
are made to avoid this issue. But sometimes Owner/General Contractor take risks for 
weather, but this risk is clearly at the Owner/General Contractor risk, not PRC. 

3. Sidewalks outside the building footprint. 
4. Trench plates or matting needed for protection of site soils, sidewalks, hardscaping, or site 

utilities shall be the responsibility of the Owner/General Contractor. Any site soils damage 
or other site improvements if damaged during installation shall be the responsibility of 
the Owner/General Contractor. 



 

Southwest Regional Park, Williamson County, TX| 3/3/21 | Reference # (see above) 
2587 Business Parkway | Minden, NV 89423 | www.PublicRestroomCompany.com | p: 888-888-2060 | f: 888-888-1448 

6 of 8 
 

5. Not responsible for removing any soil, sand, or other debris as a result of trenching or 
installation.  

6. Survey, location of building corners, finish floor elevation, excavation, and construction of 
subgrade building pad and footings (if required) per PRC plans. 

7. Soil conditions not suitable for bearing a minimum of 1500 PSF with compaction to 90% 
maximum dry density shall require Owner/General Contractor correction before building 
placement. If no soils testing report is available before bid, Owner/General Contractor 
must verify site supporting soils at a minimum of 1500 PSF because that is the least we 
can place our structures on or Owner/General Contractor or engineer of record must 
design a foundation system to meet the imposed loads of site placement. 

8. Improper water pressure, an undersized meter, or improper water volume flow to the 
building may necessitate a change order for installation of a building internal diaphragm 
tank to provide the minimum flow rate and static pressure of up to 60 PSI and a minimum 
of 40 PSI to properly flush the fixtures. Building water service chlorination, post 
installation, shall be by Owner/General Contractor. 

9. Our bid included crane costs are based on a maximum 35’ radius from the center pin of 
the crane (10’ back from the rear of the crane) to the building center point of the furthest 
building module roof. If additional distance requires a larger crane, additional costs will be 
assessed by change order to the Owner/General Contractor. 

10. Bonds, building permits, a site survey, special inspection fees, minor trash removal 
(nominally one pickup truck of shipping materials), final utility connections to the on-site 
water, sewer and electrical are by the Owner/General Contractor. Since the building is 
fully inspected and tested in plant, minor plumbing leaks (if water is not available when 
building site work installation is completed) is by the Owner/ General Contractor.   

11. Site Traffic Control, if applicable, shall be by Owner/ General Contractor, not PRC. 
12. Any equipment installation, site work or special inspections other than described within 

this proposal, shall be by Owner/General Contractor. 
13. Backflow certification if applicable by Owner/ General Contractor. 

 
Insurance and Prevailing Wage Certification: 
PRC shall comply with the required insurance requirements, wage reports, and safety requirements for 
the project, including OSHA regulations.  
 
Special Insurance to protect the Building before acceptance: 
As PRC requires payment for each month of off-site construction, and since the building is not on owner 
property where their insurance will cover the building, we maintain a special policy that insures the 
property even when paid for off-site until the building is finally accepted by the owner. This special 
policy protects the Owner’s custom ordered materials to be used in the fabrication of the building 
during this period. PRC provides this Stock Throughput Policy to cover the building materials from 
supplier to manufacturer, while it is being built off-site, while in transit to the job site, during and after it 
is installed on-site until final acceptance. This special policy has a $1,000,000 coverage limit. This 
exceeds the cost of any single building we have offered for sale herein.  
 
 



 

Southwest Regional Park, Williamson County, TX| 3/3/21 | Reference # (see above) 
2587 Business Parkway | Minden, NV 89423 | www.PublicRestroomCompany.com | p: 888-888-2060 | f: 888-888-1448 

7 of 8 
 

Errors and Omissions Insurance:  
Our firm employs licensed architects, engineers, and drafting staff to provide design of our buildings. 
Since these buildings are required to meet accessibility standards and building codes on site, and since 
we are the designer, we carry Errors and Omissions Insurance (E & O) to protect our clients from any 
errors. The policy covers a limit of up to $2,000,000 per occurrence and is more clearly explained in the 
insurance certificates we provide after receipt of a purchase order.  
 
WARRANTY 
All work performed by PUBLIC RESTROOM COMPANY (called “Company”) shall be warranted to the 
Owner to be of good quality, free of faults and defects in material, workmanship, and title for 5 years 
from last date of installation if building is installed by Company or 1 year if building is installed by Owner 
or Owner’s agent without on-site supervision by Company. Company warranty on building shell 
including exterior walls, concrete 8” slab/foundation, and roof system is warranted for 20 years 
structurally. The Company will repair or replace at their sole option any defects in work upon proper 
notice to the below stated address below.  
 
Our Company extended warranties shall be Company only and shall have no effect on any required 
Performance, Payment, or Warranty Bonds where Surety shall assume no liability to the Company, the 
Owner, or any third parties should the Company fail for any reason to deliver acceptable maintenance 
warranties beyond the one year period. The warranty extension is solely between the owner and PRC 
and not the general contractor, bonding company, or architect/engineer of record.   
 
This warranty applies only if all work performed by Company has been fully paid for, including change 
orders if applicable. Company has no responsibility for any neglect, abuse, or improper handling of 
building product.  
 
The warranties expressed herein are exclusive, and are in lieu of all other warranties expressed or 
implied, including those of merchantability and fitness.  
 
There are no warranties which extend beyond those described on the face of this Warranty. The 
foregoing shall constitute the full liability of the Company and be the sole remedy to the Owner. 
 
Term of Offer to Sell and Owner/General Contractor Acceptance: 
This offer is valid for acceptance within 30 days, or when a part of a public bid for the applicable 
duration imposed within the Owner’s bid documents. Acceptance is by approving our post bid 
preliminary notice to begin drawings subject to final Owner/General Contractor approval of our 
submittals and receipt of a contract or a purchase order/contract.  
 
Special Notice of Possible Project Cost Increases as a Result of Late Payments: 
In the event of delayed or late payment, PRC shall have the right to remedies including late charges, 
overall project total cost increases, and other damages as allowed by applicable law.  The contract price 
quoted herein is a discounted price based upon our receipt of progress payments as invoiced on the 
agreed billing schedule of PRC. In the event of non-payment, PRC will provide a 5 day written notice to 
cure and if payment is still not received, the discounted price for the payment due may increase, to an 



 

Southwest Regional Park, Williamson County, TX| 3/3/21 | Reference # (see above) 
2587 Business Parkway | Minden, NV 89423 | www.PublicRestroomCompany.com | p: 888-888-2060 | f: 888-888-1448 

8 of 8 
 

undetermined amount, to cover work stoppage, remobilization, cancellation of materials and 
subsequent restocking charges, resale of the contracted building to another party, storage fees, 
additional crane fees, travel and per diem costs for field crews, and any other cost applicable to the 
project, as allowed by law. Interest if applicable to non-payment will be assessed at the maximum 
amount allowed by law or 18% whichever is greater.  
 
Termination 
Upon Termination for any reason, Owner/General Contractor shall be liable for the cost of all work 
performed up to the date of termination.  Additionally, Owner/General Contractor shall pay for off-site 
demolition and disposal of the partially or fully fabricated building as well as any non-returnable 
materials which were custom-ordered to complete fabrication in PRC’s factory location.  Any returned 
materials are subject to return and restocking fees at the Owner/General Contractor expense. 
 
Venue for Contract Jurisdiction:  
Public Restroom Company requires all contracts accepted by our firm to hold that the venue for legal 
jurisdiction for this contract offer and acceptance shall be Douglas County, Nevada. In the event of your 
default, PRC shall be entitled to the full amount due including reasonable attorney fees, costs, storage, 
expenses of physical recovery, and statutory interest, as allowed by law.  
 
No modifications to this offer shall be authorized unless confirmed in writing by the President 
of Public Restroom Company. 
 
 
Offered by: Public Restroom Company by   _________________________________ 
         Charles E. Kaufman IV 
 
This provides conditional acceptance of this preliminary purchase order for this building 
subject to acceptance of the submittals, furnished by Public Restroom Company. Once you 
accept the preliminary submittals, this shall become a final purchase agreement or at your 
discretion the final purchase order or a contract may be substituted with this attached. 
 
Accepted by: 
 
_______________________________  _______________________________ 
Authorized Signature     Date Signed 
 
_______________________________  _______________________________ 
Printed Name      Legal Entity Name and Address 
 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 41.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

2019 Park Bond Transfer
Submitted By: Tomika Lynce, County Auditor
Department: County Auditor
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving a 2019 Park Bond Budget Transfer
from P550 (2019 Park Non-Departmental) in the amount of $181,433 to P560 (SW Regional
Park Restrooms).

Background
This transfer will fund the procurement of the Pre-Cast Restroom and construction of the project.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 11:10 AM
Form Started By: Tomika Lynce Started On: 05/20/2021 10:02 AM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 42.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

DOI Projects and Issues
Submitted For: Robert Daigh  Submitted By: Vicky Edwards,

Infrastructure
Department: Infrastructure
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Receive updates on the Department of Infrastructure projects and issues.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 04/21/2021 08:29 PM
Form Started By: Vicky Edwards Started On: 04/21/2021 02:55 PM
Final Approval Date: 04/21/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 43.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

May 2021 Construction Summary Report
Submitted By: Marie Walters, Road Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Receive the May 2021 Construction Summary Report and PowerPoint Presentation.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
May_2021_CSR 
May_2021_Monthly_Update 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 08:47 AM
Form Started By: Marie Walters Started On: 05/19/2021 09:11 AM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 



ROAD BOND PROGRAM

Construction Summary Report

WWW.ROADBOND.ORG

May 2021

Volume XX - Issue No.05

County Judge
Bill Gravell, Jr.

Commissioners
Terry Cook

Cynthia Long
Valerie Covey

Russ Boles

Presented By:



i 

 

Table of  Contents 
 

 
 

Completed Projects ........................................................................................................ 1 

 
PRECINCT No. 1 – Commissioner Terry Cook .......................................................... 5  

North Mays Street Extension Phase 1 (Paloma Drive to Oakmont Drive) ............... 8 

Forest North Drainage Improvements Phase 3 ........................................................ 9 

O'Connor Traffic Signals (Morgan Hill, Liberty Walk, Great Oaks) ...................... 11 

Corridor H - Sam Bass Interim Traffic Signals ....................................................... 13 

Hairy Man Road / Brushy Creek Road Safety Improvements ............................... 15 

 
 
PRECINCT No. 2 – Commissioner Cynthia Long .................................................... 17 

Bagdad Road (CR 279) at CR 278 (River Ranch County Park Road) ..................... 20 

Seward Junction (SH 29 to CR 266 & CR 266 south of CR 259 to SH 29) .............. 21 

 
PRECINCT No. 3 – Commissioner Valerie Covey .................................................... 22 

CR 176 at RM 2243 (RM 2243 at Parkside Parkway) ............................................... 25 

Ronald Reagan at Silver Spur / Ronald Reagan at Sun City (Intersection 

Improvements) ........................................................................................................ 26 

 
PRECINCT No. 4 – Commissioner Russ Boles ......................................................... 28 

CR 110 Middle (Limmer Loop to CR 107) ............................................................... 31 

CR 101 (US 79 to north of Chandler Road) .............................................................. 32 

Southeast Bypass Demolition Phase 1 (Residential Demolition) ........................... 34 

 
 

 



WWIILLLLIIAAMMSSOONN  CCOOUUNNTTYY  
RROOAADD  BBOONNDD  PPRROOGGRRAAMM  

CCOOMMPPLLEETTEEDD  PPRROOJJEECCTTSS  
CCOONNSSTTRRUUCCTTIIOONN  SSUUBBSSTTAANNTTIIAALLLLYY  CCOOMMPPLLEETTEE//OOPPEENN  TTOO  TTRRAAFFFFIICC  --  AASS  OOFF  AAPPRRIILL  22002211

PPrreecciinncctt  11
 PPoonndd  SSpprriinnggss  RRooaadd  ((ssiiggnnaall))  ––  AApprr  22000022
 MMccNNeeiill  RRooaadd,,  PPhhaassee  11  ––  JJaann  22000055
 MMccNNeeiill  RRooaadd,,  PPhhaassee  22  ––  FFeebb  22000077
 RRMM  662200,,  PPhhaassee  11  ––  JJaann  22000099
 PPoonndd  SSpprriinnggss  RRooaadd  ––  SSeepp  22001100
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  117744  aatt  BBrruusshhyy  CCrreeeekk  ––  JJuunn  22001111
 OO’’CCoonnnnoorr  DDrriivvee  EExxtteennssiioonn  ––  AApprr  22001122
 KKiinngg  ooff  KKiinnggss  CCrroossssiinngg  ––  AAuugg  22001122
 RRMM  662200  SSaaffeettyy  IImmpprroovveemmeennttss  ––  DDeecc  22001144
 PPeeaarrssoonn  RRaanncchh  RRooaadd  ––  OOcctt  22001177
 FFoorreesstt  NNoorrtthh  DDrraaiinnaaggee  IImmpprroovveemmeennttss  PPhhaassee  22  ––  OOcctt  22001177
 RRMM  662200  PPhhaassee  22  ––  JJuull  22001188
 OO’’CCoonnnnoorr  DDrriivvee  NN  ooff  RRMM  662200  ––  JJuull  22001188
 NNeeeennaahh  AAvveennuuee  WWiiddeenniinngg  ––  DDeecc  22001188
 NNeeeennaahh  AAvveennuuee  aanndd  PPeeaarrssoonn  RRaanncchh  RRooaadd  TTrraaffffiicc  SSiiggnnaall  ––  JJaann  22001199
 FFoorreesstt  NNoorrtthh  DDrraaiinnaaggee  IImmpprroovveemmeennttss  ––  AAnnddeerrssoonn  MMiillll  ––  FFeebb  22002200
 GGrreeaatt  OOaakkss  DDrriivvee  WWaatteerr  LLiinnee  RReellooccaattiioonnss  ––  JJuunn  22002200
 NNoorrtthh  MMaayyss  EExxtteennssiioonn--  DDeecc  22002200

1



WWIILLLLIIAAMMSSOONN  CCOOUUNNTTYY  
RROOAADD  BBOONNDD  PPRROOGGRRAAMM  

CCOOMMPPLLEETTEEDD  PPRROOJJEECCTTSS  
CCOONNSSTTRRUUCCTTIIOONN  SSUUBBSSTTAANNTTIIAALLLLYY  CCOOMMPPLLEETTEE//OOPPEENN  TTOO  TTRRAAFFFFIICC  --  AASS  OOFF  AAPPRRIILL  22002211

PPrreecciinncctt  22
 RRMM  11886699  aatt  SSHH  2299  ((ssiiggnnaall))  ––  AAuugg  22000022
 RRiivveerr  BBeenndd  OOaakkss  ––  FFeebb  22000033
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  117755  ––  JJuunn  22000033
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  220000  ––  SSeepp  22000033
 RRoonnaalldd  RReeaaggaann  BBllvvdd,,  SSoouutthh  PPhh..  11  ––  DDeecc  22000044
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  221144  ––  FFeebb  22000055
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  225588  ––  SSeepp  22000066
 SSaann  GGaabbrriieell  PPkkwwyy,,  PPhh..  11  ––  FFeebb  22000077
 RRoonnaalldd  RReeaaggaann  BBllvvdd  NNoorrtthh  PPhh..  11  ––  MMaarr  22000077
 LLaakkeelliinnee  BBllvvdd  ––  JJuull  22000077
 RRoonnaalldd  RReeaaggaann  BBllvvdd  SSoouutthh  PPhh..  22  ––  FFeebb  22000088
 UUSS  118833  aatt  CCRR  227744  ––  FFeebb  22000088
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  117755  PPhhaassee  22AA  ––  JJaann  22001100
 UUSS  118833  aatt  FFMM  33440055  TTrraaffffiicc  SSiiggnnaall  ––  MMaarr  22001100
 UUSS  118833  aatt  FFMM  33440055  LLeefftt  TTuurrnn  LLaanneess  ––  MMaayy  22001100
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  221144  PPhhaassee  22AA  ––  JJaann  22001111
 SSaann  GGaabbrriieell  PPaarrkkwwaayy  PPhh..  22  ––  OOcctt  22001111
 UUSS  118833  ((PPTTFF))  ––  AApprr  22001122
 SSHH  2299  TTWWLLTTLL  LLiibbeerrttyy  HHiillll  ––  DDeecc  22001122
 HHeerroo  WWaayy  ––  FFeebb  22001133
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaaddss  226600//226666  ––  AApprr  22001133
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  227777  ––  JJuull  22001144
 LLaakkeelliinnee  BBllvvdd  aatt  UUSS  118833  ––  NNoovv  22001144
 LLaakkeelliinnee  BBllvvdd  PPhh..  22  ––  AApprr  22001155
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  225588  ––  JJuull  22001177
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  220000  aatt  BBoolldd  SSuunnddoowwnn  ––  OOcctt  22001188
 RRoonnaalldd  RReeaaggaann  aatt  SSaannttaa  RRiittaa  RRaanncchh  ––  FFeebb  22001199
 CCRR  220000  aatt  SSHH  2299  //  LLoooopp  333322  ––  JJuull  22001199
 LLaakkeelliinnee  RRiigghhtt  TTuurrnn  LLaanneess  ––  AAuugg  22001199
 BBaaggddaadd  RRooaadd  ((CCRR  227799))  aatt  CCRR  227788  ((RRiivveerr  RRaanncchh  CCoouunnttyy  PPaarrkk  RRooaadd))  ––  FFeebb  22002200
 SSaann  GGaabbrriieell  RRaanncchh  RRooaadd  BBrriiddggee  ––  MMaarr  22002200
 CCoorrrriiddoorr  FF  //  UUSS  118833  PPllaannnniinngg  --    JJaann  22002211
 SSeewwaarrdd  JJuunnccttiioonn  IImmpprroovveemmeennttss  ––  MMaarr  22002211

2



WWIILLLLIIAAMMSSOONN  CCOOUUNNTTYY  
RROOAADD  BBOONNDD  PPRROOGGRRAAMM  

CCOOMMPPLLEETTEEDD  PPRROOJJEECCTTSS  
CCOONNSSTTRRUUCCTTIIOONN  SSUUBBSSTTAANNTTIIAALLLLYY  CCOOMMPPLLEETTEE//OOPPEENN  TTOO  TTRRAAFFFFIICC  --  AASS  OOFF  AAPPRRIILL  22002211

PPrreecciinncctt  33
 CCeeddaarr  HHoollllooww  aatt  SSHH  2299  ((ssiiggnnaall))  ––  AAuugg  22000022
 GGeeoorrggeettoowwnn  IInnnneerr  LLoooopp  PPrroojjeecctt  22  ––  AAuugg  22000033
 GGeeoorrggeettoowwnn  IInnnneerr  LLoooopp  PPrroojjeecctt  11  ––  JJuunn  22000044
 GGeeoorrggeettoowwnn  IInnnneerr  LLoooopp  EEaasstt  EExxtteennssiioonn  ––  SSeepp  22000044
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  115522  BBrriiddggee  RReeppllaacceemmeenntt  ––  SSeepp  22000044
 IInnnneerr  LLoooopp  EEaasstt  ((CCRR  115511  ttoo  BBuuss  3355))  ––  OOcctt  22000055
 RRoonnaalldd  RReeaaggaann  BBllvvdd  NNoorrtthh,,  PPhh..  22  ––  MMaayy  22000088
 1122””  WWaatteerr  MMaaiinn  RReellooccaattiioonn  ffoorr  SSHH  2299  WWiiddeenniinngg  ––  JJuunn  22000088
 SSHH  2299  //  CCRR  110044,,  PPhh..  11  ––  JJuull  22000088
 IIHH  3355  aatt  SSHH  2299  TTuurrnnaarroouunnddss  ((PPTTFF))  ––  AAuugg  22000088
 SSEE  IInnnneerr  LLoooopp  aatt  FFMM  11446600  ––  NNoovv  22000099
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  111111  ((WWeessttiinngghhoouussee  RRooaadd))  ––  JJuunn  22001100
 WWiilllliiaammss  DDrriivvee  ––  AApprr  22001111
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  110044,,  PPhhaassee  22  ––  MMaayy  22001111
 RRMM  22333388  ((PPTTFF))  ––  JJuull  22001111
 SSHH  2299  aatt  PPaarrkk  PPll  aanndd  JJaacckk  NNiicckkllaauuss  ––  MMaayy  22001122
 RRoonnaalldd  RReeaaggaann  BBllvvdd..  NNoorrtthh  PPhhaassee  33  ––  JJuunn  22001133
 RRoonnaalldd  RReeaaggaann  BBllvvdd..  NNoorrtthh  PPhhaassee  44  ––  MMaarr  22001144
 MMaaddrriidd  DDrriivvee  EExxtteennssiioonn  ––  SSeepp  22001144
 CCRR  224455  ––  SSeepp  22001155
 IIHH  3355  NNoorrtthhbboouunndd  FFrroonnttaaggee  RRooaadd  ((PPTTFF))  ––  OOcctt  22001155
 RRoonnaalldd  RReeaaggaann  NNoorrtthh  PPhhaassee  44  FFeenncciinngg  ––  JJaann  22001166
 IIHH  3355  NNoorrtthhbboouunndd  FFrroonnttaaggee  RRooaadd  DDrriivveewwaayy  ((PPTTFF))  ––  MMaarr  22001166
 SSoouutthhwweesstt  BByyppaassss  DDrriivveewwaayyss  ––  AAuugg  22001166
 RRMM  22224433  aatt  EEssccaalleerraa  RRiigghhtt  IInntteerrsseeccttiioonn  ––  AAuugg  22001166
 SSHH  2299  aatt  CCeeddaarr  HHoollllooww  RRiigghhtt  IInntteerrsseeccttiioonn  IImmpprroovveemmeennttss  ––  AAuugg  22001166
 SSoouutthhwweesstt  BByyppaassss  AAcccceessss  RRoouuttee  ––  JJuull  22001177
 AArrtteerriiaall  HH  EExxtteennssiioonn  PPhhaassee  II––  FFeebb  22001188
 RReellooccaattiioonn  ooff  WWiilllliiaammssoonn  CCoouunnttyy  RReeggiioonnaall  RRaaww  WWaatteerr  LLiinnee  ––  AApprr  22001188
 SSoouutthhwweesstt  BByyppaassss  SSeeggmmeenntt  11  ––  SSeepp  22001188
 IInnnneerr  LLoooopp  IImmpprroovveemmeennttss  ––  DDeecc  22001188
 SSoouutthhwweesstt  BByyppaassss  SSeeggmmeenntt  22  ––  JJaann  22002200
 CCRR  117766  @@  RRMM  22224433  ––  OOcctt  22002200
 IIHH  3355  RRaammpp  RReevveerrssaallss  aanndd  FFrroonnttaaggee  RRooaadd  CCoonnvveerrssiioonn  ––  DDeecc  22002200

3



WWIILLLLIIAAMMSSOONN  CCOOUUNNTTYY  
RROOAADD  BBOONNDD  PPRROOGGRRAAMM  

CCOOMMPPLLEETTEEDD  PPRROOJJEECCTTSS  
CCOONNSSTTRRUUCCTTIIOONN  SSUUBBSSTTAANNTTIIAALLLLYY  CCOOMMPPLLEETTEE//OOPPEENN  TTOO  TTRRAAFFFFIICC  --  AASS  OOFF  AAPPRRIILL  22002211

PPrreecciinncctt  44
 BBrriiddggee  RReeppllaacceemmeennttss  ((CCRR  339900,,  440066  &&  442277))  ––  NNoovv  22000022
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  336688  aanndd  336699  ––  NNoovv  22000022
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  441122  ––  AAuugg  22000033
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  330000  aanndd  330011  ––  DDeecc  22000033
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  442244  BBrriiddggee  RReeppllaacceemmeenntt  ––  JJaann  22000044
 CChhaannddlleerr  RRdd..  EExxtteennssiioonn,,  PPhh..  11  ––  MMaarr  22000055
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  111122,,  PPhh..  11  ––  AAuugg  22000055
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  113377  ––  OOcctt  22000055
 LLiimmmmeerr  LLoooopp,,  PPhh..  11AA  ––  JJuull  22000066
 CChhaannddlleerr  RRdd,,  PPhh..  22  ––  DDeecc  22000077
 LLiimmmmeerr  LLoooopp,,  PPhh..  11BB  ––  MMaarr  22000088
 LLiimmmmeerr  LLoooopp,,  PPhh..  11CC  ––  OOcctt  22000088
 UUSS  7799,,  SSeeccttiioonn  55BB  ((PPTTFF))  ––  AAuugg  22001100
 CChhaannddlleerr  RRdd,,  PPhh..  33BB  ––  OOcctt  22001100
 UUSS  7799,,  SSeeccttiioonn  55AA  ((PPTTFF))  ––  MMaayy  22001111
 FFMM11666600  aatt  LLaannddffiillll  RRdd..  ––  SSeepp  22001111
 SSeeccoonndd  SSttrreeeett  DDrraaiinnaaggee  IImmpprroovveemmeennttss  ––  DDeecc  22001111
 UUSS  7799  SSeeccttiioonn  33  ((PPTTFF))  ––  JJuull  22001122
 CChhaannddlleerr  RRdd,,  PPhh..  33AA  ––  DDeecc  22001122
 SSeeccoonndd  SSttrreeeett  RRooaaddwwaayy  IImmpprroovveemmeennttss  ––  FFeebb  22001133
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  113388  ––  JJuunn  22001133
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  110088  ––  NNoovv  22001133
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  117700  ––  FFeebb  22001155
 MMuullttii  SSiittee  TTrraaffffiicc  SSiiggnnaallss  ––  JJuunn  22001166
 BBiillll  PPiicckkeetttt  TTrraaiill  ((EEaasstt  WWiilllliiaammssoonn  CCoouunnttyy  EExxppoo  CCeenntteerr  AAcccceessss  RRooaadd))  ––  NNoovv  22001166
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  111100  SSoouutthh  ––  MMaayy  22001188
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  111199  ––  MMaarr  22001199
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  111100  MMiiddddllee  ––  OOcctt  22002200

4



183

PARMER

NEENA
HAVE

LAKE
LINEB

LVD
AVERY

RANC
HBLVD

P ARMERLN

UNIVE
RSITY

ANDE
RSON

 MILL 
RD

Åõ620

O'CONNOR DR

SAMBASSRD

MC
NE
ILR
D

UV1.25

UV1.08

UV1.18

UV1.21

UV1.01

UV1.04

UV1.20

UV1.11

UV1.17

UV1.09

UV1.02

UV1.06

UV1.14UV1.19

UV1.07
UV1.03

UV1.10

UV1.30

UV1.24

UV1.23 UV1.31

UV1.26

!"#$35
CR172

LONE OA
K TRL

3
33 3

3

2 2
2

22
3
2

2

3
1

Completed/Open to Traffic 
1.01   Anderson Mill Rd. 
1.02   Avery Ra nch  Blvd. (183 to P a rm er La ne) 
1.03   La ke Creek Dra ina g e – P h a se 1 
1.04   La ke Creek Dra ina g e – P h a se 2 
1.06   McNeil Road - P h a se 1 
1.07   McNeil Road - P h a se 2  
1.08   P ond Spring s a t Turtle Rock Sig na l 
1.09   RM 620 Fea sib ility Study 
1.10   Wyom ing  Spring s North  Study 
1.11   RM 620 Interim  Im provem ents – P h a se 1 
1.14   O’Connor Extension
1.17   P ond Spring s Road 
1.18   O’Connor Overpa ss a t SH 45 
1.19   RM 620 (Cornerwood Dr. to Wyom ing  Spring s) 
1.20   Wyom ing  Spring s (620 to Brig h twa ter Blvd.) 
1.21   CR 174 (Ha iry Ma n Rd.) Bridg e Ra il Reh a b  
1.23   Forest North  Dra ina g e Study - P h a se 1
1.25   King  of King s Crossing
1.26   P ea rson Ra nch  Road (Desig n)
1.24   P ea rson Ra nch  Underpa ss a t SH 45/ RM 620
1.30   Grea t Oa ks a t Brush y Creek (desig n)
1.31   Forest North  Dra ina g e Im provem ents - P h a se 2 (desig n)
1.31   Forest North  Dra ina g e Im provem ents - P h a se 3 (desig n)

2006 2006 RROAD OAD BBOND OND PPROGRAM ROGRAM PPROJECTS ROJECTS 
PPRECINCT 1 - RECINCT 1 - CCOMMISSIONEROMMISSIONER  CCOOKOOK

5



UV281UV329

UV225

UV264

UV258

UV221

UV221

UV270a

LAKELINE BLVD

AVERY RAN CH BLV D

O'CONNO R DR

SAM BASS RD

PARMER LN

MCN
EIL

RD

UNIVERSITY

UV221UV278

UV224

UV235

UV284

UV227

UV225UV225

UV270

UV221

UV309

CR
 17

2

2013 2013 RROAD OAD BBOND OND PPROGRAM ROGRAM PPROJECTS ROJECTS 
PPRECINCT 1 - RECINCT 1 - CCOMMISSIONEROMMISSIONER  CCOOKOOK

In Design
258   IH 35 Corridor Operational Analysis (SH 45 to

      RM 1431)
270   Great Oaks Drive Bridge at Brushy Creek 
309   Pond Springs Road Area Drainage Improvements

 (Pond Springs Road to US 183)

Åõ3406

Completed/Open to Traffic
221   Pearson Ranch Road
221   Pearson Ranch Road at Avery Ranch

      Boulevard Traffic Signal
221   Pearson Ranch Road and Iveans Way

      Pedestrian Crossing
221   Neenah Avenue and Pearson Ranch Road

      Traffic Signal
224   North Mays Street Extension

      (Paloma Drive to Oakmont Drive)
225   Forest North Drainage Improvements Phase 2
225   Forest North Drainage Improvements Phase 3 (Design)
225   Forest North Drainage Improvements Anderson

      Mill Zone
235   RM 620 Phase 2 (Wyoming Springs 

      to Deep Wood Drive)
270a Great Oaks Drive Waterline Relocations

Under Construction/Bidding
227   University Boulevard Widening (IH 35 to Sunrise Road)
264   RM 620 at Railroad / Chisholm Trail (IH 35 Frontage

      Road to Deep Wood Drive)
284   Hairy Man Road/Brushy Creek Road Safety

 Improvements (Brushy Bend to
      Sam Bass Road)

329   O'Connor Drive Traffic Signals (Morgan Hill, Great 
 Oaks and Liberty Walk Intersections)

Completed/Open to Traffic Continued.
278   Neenah Avenue Widening (Olive Hill Drive to

      0.5 miles east of Olive Hill Drive)
281   O'Connor Drive North of RM 620

6



UV462

UV341

UV462a

LAKELINE BLVD

AVERY RANCH BLVD

SAM BASS RD

PARMER LN

MCN
EIL

RD

UNIVERSITY

UV225

UV339

CR172

CR 17
2

CR 172
CR 172

2019 2019 RROAD OAD BBOND OND PPROGRAM ROGRAM PPROJECTS ROJECTS 
PPRECINCT 1 - RECINCT 1 - CCOMMISSIONEROMMISSIONER  CCOOKOOK

In Design
337   Anderson Mill Road (FM734-Loop1)
338   RM 620/SH 45 intersection to McNeil Road
339   Wyoming Springs Intersection Improvements (At Smyers Lane)
341   Wyoming Springs Extension (Brightwater Boulevard/Creek Bend to 

      Sam Bass Road)
462   Corridor H/Sam Bass Road (RM 1431 to Wyoming Springs Drive)

Åõ3406

Under Construction/Bidding
225   Forest North Drainage Improvements Phase 3
462a Corridor H/Sam Bass Road Interim Traffic Signals

UV338 UV337

7



North Mays Street Extension Phase 1 (Paloma Drive to Oakmont Drive)
Project No. 1810-265 Original Contract Price = $10,775,835.75

Letting Award Notice To Begin Substantial Work Total Bid Days Total
Proceed Work Completion Accepted Days Added Days

11/14/2018 12/4/2018 1/18/2019 1/28/2019 12/16/2020 410 279 689

Invoice Beginning Ending Days Current Invoice Current Total % ($) % Time
Number Date Date Charged Invoice Total Retainage Retainage Used Used

1 1/28/2019 1/31/2019 4 $523,139.40 $523,139.40 $58,126.60 $58,126.60 5 1
2 2/1/2019 2/28/2019 28 $2,584.80 $525,724.20 $287.20 $58,413.80 5 5
3 3/1/2019 4/30/2019 61 $102,281.40 $628,005.60 $11,364.60 $69,778.40 6 13
4 5/1/2019 5/31/2019 31 $593,318.74 $1,221,324.34 $65,924.30 $135,702.70 12 18
5 6/1/2019 6/30/2019 30 $188,661.93 $1,409,986.27 $20,962.44 $156,665.14 14 22
6 7/1/2019 7/31/2019 31 $590,007.31 $1,999,993.58 $65,556.37 $222,221.51 19 27
7 8/1/2019 8/31/2019 31 $628,396.35 $2,628,389.93 $69,821.82 $292,043.33 26 31
8 9/1/2019 9/30/2019 30 $2,393,911.61 $5,022,301.54 $265,990.17 $558,033.50 49 36
9 10/1/2019 10/31/2019 31 $724,961.48 $5,747,263.02 $80,551.28 $638,584.78 56 40
10 11/1/2019 11/30/2019 30 $378,890.89 $6,126,153.91 $42,098.99 $680,683.77 59 45
11 12/1/2019 12/31/2019 31 $341,316.16 $6,467,470.07 $37,924.02 $718,607.79 63 49
12 1/1/2020 1/31/2020 31 $258,548.22 $6,726,018.29 $28,727.58 $747,335.37 65 54
13 2/1/2020 2/29/2020 29 $191,886.33 $6,917,904.62 $21,320.70 $768,656.07 67 58
14 3/1/2020 3/31/2020 31 $176,371.44 $7,094,276.06 $19,596.83 $788,252.90 69 62
15 4/1/2020 4/30/2020 30 $395,476.16 $7,489,752.22 $43,941.79 $832,194.69 73 67
16 5/1/2020 5/31/2020 31 $277,797.27 $7,767,549.49 $30,866.36 $863,061.05 75 71
17 6/1/2020 6/30/2020 30 $385,340.38 $8,152,889.87 $42,815.60 $905,876.65 79 75
18 7/1/2020 7/31/2020 31 $418,604.43 $8,571,494.30 $46,511.61 $952,388.26 83 80
19 8/1/2020 8/31/2020 31 $202,731.51 $8,774,225.81 $22,525.72 $974,913.98 85 84
20 9/1/2020 9/30/2020 30 $117,670.32 $8,891,896.13 $13,074.48 $987,988.46 86 89
21 10/1/2020 10/31/2020 31 $305,827.52 $9,197,723.65 $33,980.83 $1,021,969.29 89 93
22 11/1/2020 11/30/2020 30 $190,635.28 $9,388,358.93 $21,181.70 $1,043,150.99 91 98
23 12/1/2020 12/31/2020 16 $338,985.41 $9,727,344.34 $37,665.05 $1,080,816.04 94 100
24 1/1/2021 2/28/2021 0 $165,603.43 $9,892,947.77 $18,400.38 $1,099,216.42 96 100
25 3/1/2021 3/31/2021 0 $319,710.56 $10,212,658.33 $35,523.39 $1,134,739.81 99 100
25 4/1/2021 4/30/2021 0 $907,731.85 $11,120,390.18 -$907,791.85 $226,947.96 99 100

5/13/2021 Comments -
1/28/2021 Comments -

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
01 5/5/2020 $0.00 $0.00

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
02 5/5/2020 $24,898.11 24,898.11$     

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
03 10/6/2020 $67,872.45 92,770.56$     

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
04 10/6/2020 $21,002.40 113,772.96$     

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
05 2/23/2021 $194,528.81 308,301.77$     

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
6 3/23/2021 $364,733.96 673,035.73$     

Adjusted Price = $11,448,871.48

3F: County Convenience. Additional work desired by the County. This Change Order compensates the Contractor for adding electronic portable changeable message 
boards to provide advance notification of the closure of North Mays, from Jeffery Way to Paloma Drive. The Change Order also adds compensation for the removal of 
the City of Round Rock Public Safety Training Center sign. Electrical ground boxes and installation of illumination on the Chandler Branch bridge will be added at the 
request of Oncor.

2G: Unadjusted utility (unforeseeable). This Change Order adds various changes to the project, including the additional cost of hauling embankment material due to 
delays in the relocation of existing utilities. 3F: Additional work desired by the County. Pay items were added for electronic changeable message boards that have been 
used during road closures at the south end of the project, a driveway on North Mays Street north of the City of Round Rock Public Safety Training Center, and traffic 
control devices that were added at the northbound lane drop transition at the north end of the project. 2E: Differing Site Conditions (unforeseeable). This Change Order 
also includes adjustment of existing water valve risers, a manhole in the North Mays Street and Paloma Drive intersection, and a wall along  the sidewalk in front of the 
City of Round Rock Public Safety Training Center.

 6C: Untimely ROW/Utilities. Utilities not clear.  This Change Order adds a pay item to compensate the Contractor for extended project overhead costs caused by delays 
to the utility relocation. 

1A: Design Error or Omission. Incorrect PS&E. This Change Order adds a 24” encasement to the relocation of the new City of Round Rock 12” Water Line A that 
crosses the roadway at the north end of the project. The installation of the water line was included in the plans, but the encasement was not. The encasement is required 
to protect the water line under the roadway.

3F: County Convenience. Additional work desired by the County. This Change Order compensates the Contractor for modifications to Driveway #1 that include raising 
the elevation of the driveway to match the current driveway, improving the driveway by adding 6" of flex base to the pavement section, and using higher strength 
concrete. The driveway elevation was maintained to minimize the impact of flooding on the driveway access. The improvements were necessary due to the high volume 
of heavy truck and trailer traffic that uses the driveway.  

Awaiting grass growth.
Substantial Completion was achieved on December 16, 2020.

4B: Third Party Accommodation. Third party requested work. This Change Order modifies the contract to require that Chandler Creek, LP, a Delaware limited 
partnership (collectively referred to as "Seller") be an additional insured to Capital Excavation's (Contractor) commercial general liability (CGL) insurance policy and to 
their commercial auto liability (Auto Liability) insurance policy. Adding the Seller to the Contractor's insurance was in the terms and conditions of the Real Estate 
Contract between the Chandler Creek, LP and Williamson County. The Real Estate Contract was finalized after the plans were completed.  

8



APRIL 2021 IN REVIEW

9



Forest North Phase 3
Project No. 3866 Original Contract Price = $4,793,058.15

Letting Award Notice To Begin Substantial Work Total Bid Days Total
Proceed Work Completion Accepted Days Added Days

4/23/2020 5/5/2020 6/1/2020 6/11/2020 600 2 602

Invoice Beginning Ending Days Current Invoice Current Total % ($) % Time
Number Date Date Charged Invoice Total Retainage Retainage Used Used

1 6/11/2020 6/30/2020 20 $162,371.70 $162,371.70 $18,041.30 $18,041.30 4 3
2 7/1/2020 7/31/2020 31 $312,289.20 $474,660.90 $34,698.80 $52,740.10 11 8
3 8/1/2020 8/31/2020 31 $290,125.80 $764,786.70 $32,236.20 $84,976.30 17 14
4 9/1/2020 9/30/2020 30 $287,032.05 $1,051,818.75 $31,892.45 $116,868.75 24 19
5 10/1/2020 10/31/2020 31 $468,464.76 $1,520,283.51 $52,051.64 $168,920.39 35 24
6 11/1/2020 11/30/2020 30 $206,112.42 $1,726,395.93 $22,901.38 $191,821.77 39 29
7 12/1/2020 12/31/2020 31 $311,530.68 $2,037,926.61 $34,614.52 $226,436.29 46 34
8 1/1/2021 1/31/2021 31 $169,934.92 $2,207,861.53 $18,881.66 $245,317.95 50 39
9 2/1/2021 2/28/2021 28 $206,865.00 $2,414,726.53 $22,985.00 $268,302.95 55 44

10 3/1/2021 3/31/2021 31 $214,908.30 $2,629,634.83 $23,878.70 $292,181.65 60 49
11 4/1/2021 4/30/2021 30 $109,026.67 $2,738,661.50 $12,114.07 $304,295.72 62 54

7/3/2020 Comments -

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
01 10/6/2020 $22,353.00 22,353.00$      

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
02 10/6/2020 $5,017.92 27,370.92$      

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
3 1/12/2021 27,841.45$    55,212.37$      

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
4 1/12/2021 2,215.00$      57,427.37$      

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
5 1/12/2021 5,117.00$      62,544.37$      

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
6 3/16/2021 25,200.00$    87,744.37$      

Adjusted Price = $4,880,802.52

4B: Third Party Accommodation. Third party requested work. This Change Order adds a new item to pay the Contractor for additional potholing needed to locate City 
of Austin (COA) water lines and services in locations not called for in the plans and outside the normal bid item subsidiary potholing. This Change Order also adds a 
new item to pay the Contractor to remove and replace mailboxes that are in conflict with COA water line relocations. The City of Austin has agreed to pay the 
additional costs associated with these items.    

2E: Differeing Site Conditions (unforeseeable). Miscellaneous difference in site conditions (unforeseeable). This Change Order adds two new items to pay the 
Contractor to replace a driveway and pipe end treatments located at the intersection of Wisterwood and Broadmeade in the Braes Valley Zone that were impacted by 
the installation of the City of Austin 12" water line, per Change Order 1. The City of Austin has agreed to pay the additional cost associated with these items.  

1A: Design Error or Omission. Incorrect PS&E. This Change Order adds two new items for wood fence gates that were not included in the original  plans. Wood 
fence is shown to be removed and replaced but no items were established to replace wood fence gates encountered within the fence removal areas. 2E: Differing Site 
Conditions (unforeseeable). Miscellaneous difference in site condtions (unforeseeable). This Change Order also adds an item to compensate the Contractor for the 
cost to relocate a copper water service line on the private side of the water line service at 13013 Stillforest Street. The existing copper water service line is required to 
be moved because it is in conflict with proposed storm sewer installation. The County is paying the cost of this Change Order.

1A: Design Error or Omission. Incorrect PS&E. This Change Order adds an item to pay for 24" RCP 6:1 safety end treatments (SET's). Plan sheet 120 of 201 (SB7 of 
SB10) calls for the 24" RCP on Chester Forest Street to have 6:1 SET's but no pay items were created to pay for this item on the bid forms.

3F: County Convenience. Additional work desired by the County. This Change Order modifies the grate elevation of an existing drop inlet and regrades the ditches to 
improve drainage at 9615 Moorberry Street. The drop inlet was installed in a previous Forest North drainage improvement project.  

The Notice to Proceed was issued 6/1/20 with Time Charges beginning on 6/11/20.

2E: Differing Site Conditions(unforeseeable). Miscellaneous difference in site conditions (unforeseeable). This Change Order makes various changes to the City of 
Austin (COA) water line layout on Perthshire Street and Broadmeade Avenue in the Braes Valley Zone. 4B: Third Party Accommodation. Third Party requesed work. 
The cost of this change order is being paid for by the City of Austin and they have reviewed and approved this revision and additional cost.  

10



Design Engineer:  Kimley-Horn
Contractor: Champion Infrastructure
Construction Observation:
Clayton Weber / Feng Chen, HNTB

Williamson County 
Road Bond Program

04/09/2021:  Champion continued hauling off spoils and performing general 
site clean-up. Erosion control logs at curb inlets at all three intersections were 
removed. Excavation for controller pad at the new location at Liberty Walk 
began. The crew also began preparing conduits for wire and placing topsoil in 
disturbed areas.

04/16/2021:  Champion Infrastructure completed preparing conduits for 
placement of wires. The controller pad at Liberty Walk Drive was formed. 

04/23/2021:  Champion Infrastructure poured the concrete controller pad at 
Liberty Walk Drive intersection and the foundation for the electric service at 
Great Oaks Drive intersection. Excavation and form work for the electric 
service foundation at Liberty Walk Drive intersection began. Champion 
continued coordinating delivery of signal pole assemblies to project site with 
the supplier with an anticipated activation of signals on 6/24/21.

04/30/2021:  Champion Infrastructure received signal pole assemblies and 
stored them on the job site. Installation of conductors and cables has begun.

                          Project Location 
 
 
 
 

O'Connor Traffic Signals
(Morgan Hill, Great Oaks, and Liberty Walk Intersections)

Project Length: .4 miles
Roadway Classification: Residential Intersections

Project Schedule:  October 2019 - June 2021
Estimated Construction Cost: $0.9 Million

APRIL 2021 IN REVIEW

11



O'Connor Traffic Signals
Project No. 1907-333 Original Contract Price = $853,503.50

Letting Award Notice To Begin Substantial Work Total Bid Days Total
Proceed Work Completion Accepted Days Added Days

8/20/2019 9/17/2020 10/3/2019 6/8/2020 210 0 210

Invoice Beginning Ending Days Current Invoice Current Total % ($) % Time
Number Date Date Charged Invoice Total Retainage Retainage Used Used

1 6/8/2020 6/30/2020 23 $91,850.40 $91,850.40 $10,205.60 $10,205.60 10 11
2 7/1/2020 7/31/2020 31 $56,002.50 $147,852.90 $6,222.50 $16,428.10 17 26
3 8/1/2020 8/31/2020 31 $80,984.74 $228,837.64 $8,998.30 $25,426.40 26 40
4 9/1/2020 9/30/2020 30 $41,649.50 $270,487.14 $4,627.73 $30,054.13 31 55
5 10/1/2020 10/31/2020 31 $78,278.28 $348,765.42 $8,697.59 $38,751.72 39 70
6 11/1/2020 11/30/2020 30 $24,011.05 $372,776.47 $2,667.90 $41,419.62 42 84
7 12/1/2020 12/31/2020 31 $68,702.27 $441,478.74 $7,633.58 $49,053.20 50 99
8 1/1/2021 1/31/2021 31 $23,573.00 $465,051.74 $2,619.23 $51,672.43 52 113
9 2/1/2021 2/28/2021 28 $45,381.37 $510,433.11 $5,042.37 $56,714.80 58 127

10 3/1/2021 3/31/2021 31 $40,240.96 $550,674.07 $4,471.22 $61,186.02 62 141

5/13/2021 Comments -
7/3/2020 Comments -

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
01 9/29/2020 $19,683.04 19,683.04$      

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
02 10/6/2020 $33,656.00 53,339.04$      

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
3 2/9/2021 77,716.34$    131,055.38

Adjusted Price = $984,558.88

2G: Differing Site Conditions (unforeseeable). Unadjusted utility (unforeseeable). This Change Order adds various changes to the project, including; additional cost 
to complete installation conduits at Liberty Walk and Morgan Hill intersections due to various utility conflicts, the additional cost to replace curb and gutter that was 
removed in order to install conduit crossings via “open-cut” method at all three intersections, and the additional cost of maintaining project perimeter signs and 
barricades due to a project delay caused by working around existing utilities. 4B: Third Party Accommodation. Third party requested work. This Change Order adds a 
pay item for the additional cost to relocate the controller pad at Liberty Walk intersection.

2E: Differing Site Conditions (unforeseeable). Miscellaneous difference in site conditions (unforeseeable). This Change Order changes the method of construction 
from directional boring to open trenching for the installation of conduits under the existing roadway for the signals at the intersection of O'Connor Drive and Great 
Oaks Drive. This change in the method of construction was necessary due to the location of existing utilities within the right of way and in the roadway. To 
accommodate the open cut trench method, the designer changed the conduit from 2 - 3" and 1 - 2" conduits to 4 - 2" conduits. The conduit run equals approximately 
300 feet and this change order adds an additional 2" run to the project, totalling 1200 linear feet. This Change Order also adds a new Force Account item to pay for 
off-duty police officers and vehicles for traffic control during open trenching operations at the Great Oaks and Morgan Hill intersections.

Completion Schedule received and revised completion date is 6/24/21.
The Notice to Proceed was issued 10/3/19 with time charges beginning on 6/8/20.

2E: Differing Site Conditions (unforeseeable). Miscellaneous difference in site conditions (unforeseeable). This Change Order adds a new item to compensate the 
Contractor for extra work to install conduit crossings via open-cut method and to repair storm sewer pipes that were damaged while attempting directional drilling. 
This Change Order also subtracts bid quantities for conduit items that will not be used at Liberty Walk intersection after switching to open-cut method.

12



Design Engineer:  K. Friese
Contractor: Austin Traffic Signal
Construction Observation:
Feng Chen / Clayton Weber, HNTB

Williamson County 
Road Bond Program

04/09/2021:  Walsh Ranch Blvd intersection: No work occurred this week.  
Great Oaks Drive intersection: Austin Traffic Signal drilled and poured the 
concrete foundation for the steel strain pole in southwest corner of the 
intersection. Excavation and form work for the wheelchair ramp in northeast 
corner began. 

04/16/2021:  Walsh Ranch Blvd intersection: No work occurred this week.  
Great Oaks Drive intersection: Austin Traffic Signal completed installing 
conduits and setting the ground box at northeast corner for the pedestrian 
signal. The wheelchair ramp and ground box apron at northeast corner were 
formed and poured. 

04/23/2021:  Walsh Ranch Blvd intersection: No work occurred this week.  
Great Oaks Drive intersection: Austin Traffic Signal installed the last timber 
pole for the intersection. The pedestrian pole foundation in the northeast 
corner was drilled and poured. 

04/30/2021:  Walsh Ranch Blvd intersection: Brent’s Tree Service trimmed the 
branches.  Great Oaks Drive intersection: Austin Traffic Signal completed 
installation of guy wire, span wire, vehicular signal heads, luminaires, and 
antenna. Installation for three of four traffic detectors was completed. 

                          Project Location 
 
 
 
 

Corridor H - Sam Bass Interim Traffic Signals
(Residential Traffic Signals at Walsh Ranch Road and Great Oaks Drive)

Project Length:  .3 Miles
Roadway Classification: Urban Minor Arterial 

Project Schedule: January 2021 - June 2021
Estimated Construction Cost: $0.3 Million

APRIL 2021 IN REVIEW

13



Corridor H - Sam Bass Interim Traffic Signals
Project No. T1740 Original Contract Price = $319,866.00

Letting Award Notice To Begin Substantial Work Total Bid Days Total
Proceed Work Completion Accepted Days Added Days

9/1/2020 9/29/2020 1/5/2021 1/19/2021 60 0 60

Invoice Beginning Ending Days Current Invoice Current Total % ($) % Time
Number Date Date Charged Invoice Total Retainage Retainage Used Used

1 12/1/2020 12/31/2020 $9,000.00 $9,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 3 0
2 1/19/2021 1/31/2021 13 $68,562.00 $77,562.00 $7,618.00 $8,618.00 25 22
3 2/1/2021 4/30/2021 89 $132,604.97 $210,166.97 $14,733.89 $23,351.89 67 170

1/28/2020 Comments -

Date Comments -

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
01 4/6/2021 28,476.86 28,476.86

Adjusted Price = $348,342.86

Notice to Proceed was issued on 1/5/21, with time charges beginning on 1/19/21.Insert Comment

1A. Design Error or Omission. Incorrect PS&E. This Change Order changes the timber poles on south side of the intersection of Great Oaks Drive and Sam Bass 
Road to steel poles because there is not enough right of way to install guy wire support for timber poles.
3F. County Convenience. Additional work desired by the County. This Change Order adds pedestrian signals to the existing cross walk and changes the locations of 
signal controller and electric service at the intersection of Great Oaks Drive and Sam Bass Road. This Change Order also adds a new item to trim the existing trees at 
the intersection of Walsh Ranch Boulevard and Sam Bass Road that are blocking signal heads and traffic detectors.

14



Design Engineer:  Atkins
Contractor: DeNucci Constructors
Construction Observation:
Tracy Cooper, HNTB

Williamson County 
Road Bond Program

04/09/2021: DeNucci Constructors continued excavating for the retaining wall 
footing on the westbound side of Brushy Creek Road. Backfilling and grading of 
backslopes continued along the roadway widening. The contractor also 
extended the upstream side of Culvert 1 and completed installing the 18” 
reinforced concrete pipe (RCP) at the same location.  The Bern Bluff 12” water 
line at Culvert 1 was installed.  

04/16/2021: DeNucci Constructors continued excavating for and began 
forming the retaining wall footing on the westbound side of Brushy Creek 
Road. Backfilling and grading of backslopes continued along the roadway 
widening. The contractor also extended the downstream side of Culvert 2.  

04/23/2021: DeNucci Constructors continued forming and poured the 
retaining wall footing on the westbound side of Brushy Creek Road. The 
contractor also began driveway reconstructions.  

04/30/2021: DeNucci Constructors began tying steel for and forming the 
retaining wall on the westbound side of Brushy Creek Road. The contractor 
also continued pavement repairs on the eastbound lanes of Brushy Creek Road 
near Olson Meadows Park.

                          Project Location 
 
 
 
 

Hairy Man Road / Brushy Creek Road Safety Improvements
(Brushy Bend to Sam Bass Road)

Project Length:  2.4 Miles
Roadway Classification: Major Collector 

Project Schedule: February 2021 - December 2021
Estimated Construction Cost: $3.9 Million

APRIL 2021 IN REVIEW

15



Hairy Man Rd. / Brushy Creek Rd. Improvements
Project No. T2232 Original Contract Price = $3,964,380.00

Letting Award Notice To Begin Substantial Work Total Bid Days Total
Proceed Work Completion Accepted Days Added Days

11/18/2020 12/8/2020 2/8/2021 2/18/2021 309 0 309

Invoice Beginning Ending Days Current Invoice Current Total % ($) % Time
Number Date Date Charged Invoice Total Retainage Retainage Used Used

1 2/18/2021 2/28/2021 11 $113,634.00 $113,634.00 $12,626.00 $12,626.00 3 4
2 3/1/2021 3/31/2021 31 $304,968.46 $418,602.46 $33,885.38 $46,511.38 12 14
3 4/1/2021 4/30/2021 30 $164,520.90 $583,123.36 $18,280.10 $64,791.48 16 23

3/9/2021 Comments -

Adjusted Price = $3,964,380.00

The Notice to Proceed was issued 2/8/21 with Time Charges beginning 2/18/21.

16



Åõ279

BAGDAD
RD

LAKE
LINE

BLVD
AVERY

RANC
HBL
VD

SAMBASSRDP ARMER
LN

RONALD
W
REAGAN

LAKELINEBLVD

UV2.07
UV2.15

UV2.45

UV2.42

UV2.48

UV2.41

UV2.05

UV2.31

UV2.11

UV2.14

UV2.03

UV2.13

UV2.24

UV2.16

UV2.34

UV2.06

UV2.23

UV2.17

UV2.37

UV2.08

UV2.26

UV2.01

UV2.27

UV2.25UV2.12

UV2.38

UV2.50

UV2.26

UV2.49

UV2.44

UV2.52

UV2.20

UV2.40
UV2.47

UV2.32

UV2.28

UV2.10

UV2.09

UV2.22UV2.21

UV2.18

UV2.19

UV2.36

UV2.35
UV2.51

UV2.55
UV2.57

UV2.53

UV2.56

UV2.54

UV2.46

ab183

CR 200

CR 282

CR
 18
0

CR210
CR 207

CR
279

CR
28
7

CR 276
CR 266

CR 288

CR 285

DOUBL
EFILE

TRCE

CR 281

CR 2
76CR280

CR260

OWEN
P ASS

CR 25
8

CR
21
2

CR 28
4

LOOKOUTDR

CR 201

CR 236

CR 20
4

CR 283

CR209

CR203

CR 269

WCR202

CR 20
5

LITTLE RIVER RD

CR 286

CR 206

CR286SP UR

CR 208
CR
214
E CR 2

02

2006 2006 RROAD OAD BBOND OND PPROGRAM ROGRAM PPROJECTS ROJECTS 
PPRECINCT 2 - RECINCT 2 - CCOMMISSIONEROMMISSIONER  LLONGONG

UU29

2.01   Vista  Ridg e Blvd. 
2.03   Brushy Creek Road 
2.05   Cypress Creek Road 
2.06   La keline Blvd. (Crysta l Fa lls P kwy to New Hope Dr) 
2.07   River Bend Oa ks Subdivision
2.08   Rona ld W. Rea g a n South – P ha se 1 
2.09   Rona ld W. Rea g a n North – P ha se 1 
2.10   CR 175 (RM 1431 to Reg iona l P a rk)
2.11   CR 185 
2.12   CR 200 (CR 201 to Lackey Creek) 
2.13   CR 214 (SH 29 to Rolling  Hills Dr.)
2.14   CR 258 (US 183 to Sunset Ridg e) 
2.15   RM 1869 a t SH 29  
2.16   La keline Blvd. (Lyndhurst to P a rm er)
2.17   Sa n Gabriel P a rkway – P ha se 1 
2.18   US 183 Widening  at CR 274 
2.19   Rona ld W. Rea g a n South – P ha se 2 
2.20   Ka uffm a n Loop 
2.21   CR 175 Extension – P ha se 2A 
2.22   CR 179 
2.23   Sa n Gabriel P a rkway – P ha se 2  
2.24   CR 214 – P ha se 2A 
2.25   CR 214 – P ha se 2B
          Schem atic 
2.26   SH 29 Im provem ents 
          Study & Schem atic 
2.27   US 183 (P TF) 
2.28   CR 272 
2.31   Brushy Creek Road 
2.32   RM 1431 
2.34   Hero Way 
2.35   US 183 a t FM 3405 Tra ffic Sig na l 
2.36   US 183 a t FM 3405 Left Turn La ne 
2.37   SH 29 TWLTL in Liberty Hill 
2.38   CR 260 / CR 266 at SH 29 
2.40   La keline Blvd. P ha se 2  (Old Qua rry Rd. to Old 2243)
2.41   Sewa rd Junction Im provem ents Study 
2.42   Sa n Gabriel P a rkway West 
2.44   US 183 a t RM 1869
2.45   La keline Blvd. at US 183
2.46   CR 258 (Sunset Ridg e to Rea g a n Blvd) (Desig n)
2.47   La keline Blvd. P ha se 3 (Crysta l Fa lls P kwy. to Old Qua rry Rd.) 
2.48   Sewa rd Junction Schem atic (SE a nd SW) 
2.49   La keline Blvd. Rig ht Turn La nes (Desig n)
2.50   Ba g dad Rd. North P ha se 2 Schem atic  (CR 280 to SH 29)
2.52   RM 1431 a t P a rm er/ Rea g a n CFI
2.53   Cypress Creek Road at US 183
2.54   CR 272 Overla y
2.55   Brushy Creek Ea st Overla y
2.56   Cypress Creek Road at La keline
2.57   Brushy Creek Road at P a rm er La ne

Completed/Open to Traffic

17



UV285b

UV439

UV328

UV331

UV285a UV277

UV326

UV285

BAGDAD
RD

LAKELINE BLVDAVERY R ANCH BLVD

SAM B A SS RD

PARMER
LN

RONALD
W

R EAGAN

LAKELINE BLVD

CR288

CR 200

CR
258

CR
 23

6

CR 266
CR 284

CR 285

CR 207

CR 276 CR270

CR279
CR 29
0

CR266

CR 272

CR
277

CR279

CR 21
1

CR213

CR
272

CR
263

CR
258

CR
214

CR279

CR288

CR 259
CR283

CR 38
00

CR288

CR 27
9

CR
 21

2

CR
287

CR200

CR200

CR270

CR
180

CR285

CR 279

CR 236

CR 203

CR 258

CR
210

CR 260

CR
257

CR
 28

2

CR 286

CR 26
7

CR 266CR
 28

7

CR
 28

2
CR 206

CR 208

CR
 21

4

CR 236

CR 284CR 285

CR 201

CR 209
CR 207

CR 201 CR
 20

0

CR 236

CR 284
CR 281

CR 202

CR 200

CR 204

CR 207

2013 2013 RROAD OAD BBOND OND PPROGRAM ROGRAM PPROJECTS ROJECTS 
PPRECINCT 2 - RECINCT 2 - CCOMMISSIONEROMMISSIONER  LLONGONG

In Design
277   CR 258 Extension (US 183 to Sunset Ridge Drive)
285c CR 200 (CMTA Railroad to CR 201)
326   RM 2243 Realignment (183A to Southwest Bypass)

Completed/Open to Traffic
242   Little Elm Trail (Lakeline Boulevard to US 183)
256   CR 258 (Sunset Ridge to Reagan Boulevard)
271   Seward Junction Southeast (US 183 at CR 259 to 
       SH 29 at CR 266)

274   Seward Junction Southwest (SH 29 at CR 213 to
       US 183 at CR 259)

282   New Hope Drive Phase 1 (Cottonwood Creek Trail to 
       Ronald Reagan Boulevard)

285   CR 200 Study (SH 29 to CR 236)
285a State Highway 29 Intersection at CR 200/Loop 332
285b CR 200 at Bold Sundown Left Turn Lane
314   Old 2243/Hero Way West (Lakeline Boulevard to
       west of US 183)

317   Bagdad Road North (Collaborative Way to RM 2243)
318   Anderson Mill Road (Gaspar Bend to RM 1431)
328   Ronald Reagan at Santa Rita Ranch
331   Lakeline Boulevard Right Turn Lanes
438   Bagdad Road (CR 279) at CR 278 (River Ranch
       County Park Road)

439   San Gabriel Ranch Road Bridge at Lackey Creek

UV314

UV317

UV285c

UV438

UV256

UV271
UV274

UV282

UV242
UV318

18



UV346

UV344

UV461

BAGDAD
RD

LAKELINE BLVDAVERY R ANCH BLVD

SAM B A SS RD

PARMER
LN

RONA LD
W

R EAGAN

LAKELINE BLVD

UV343

CR 180

CR
 20

0

CR
272

CR 282

RAIDER
WAY

CR
274

CR 210

CR 207

CR
 28

7

MONTR
OSE

DR

CR
178

CR 29
0

FALCON
LN

CR
263

S BAKER
CIR

CR 266

BOLD
SUNDOWN

CR
278

CR 259

CR 281

BRNT CR
323

CR276

CR 288

CR 280

CR 279

CR 260

E NEW

HOPE DR

CR
257

CR 270

CR 284

CR 201

CR 258

CR 285

CR 236

CR
213

CR
 21

4

CR 204

CR283

CR 209

CR 203

CR269

STABLE

OAKS DR

W CR202

BRNT CR
278

RO
LL

IN
G

HI
LL

S 
DR

CR
277

DOUBLE
FILE TRCE

CR
 21

2

CR286

CR 21
1CR 206

CR 286SPUR

CR 208

CR
 26

7

2019 2019 RROAD OAD BBOND OND PPROGRAM ROGRAM PPROJECTS ROJECTS 
PPRECINCT 2 - RECINCT 2 - CCOMMISSIONEROMMISSIONER  LLONGONG

In Design
343   Bagdad Road/CR 279 (Loop 332 to CR 281/Leander City Limits)
344   Corridor I2 (US 183 to Burnet County Line)
346   Liberty Hill (SH 29) Bypass (RM 1869 to CR 279)

Completed/Open to Traffic
461   Corridor F / US 183 (Williamson / Burnet County Line to SH 29) 

19



Bagdad Road (CR 279) at CR 278 (River Ranch County Park Road)
Project No. 1805-229 Original Contract Price = $2,959,000.00

Letting Award Notice To Begin Substantial Work Total Bid Days Total
Proceed Work Completion Accepted Days Added Days

8/15/2018 9/11/2018 10/18/2018 10/28/2018 2/13/2020 480 480

Invoice Beginning Ending Days Current Invoice Current Total % ($) % Time
Number Date Date Charged Invoice Total Retainage Retainage Used Used

1 10/28/2018 12/31/2018 65 $7,296.69 $7,296.69 $810.74 $810.74 0 14
2 1/1/2019 1/31/2019 31 $204,653.21 $211,949.90 $22,739.25 $23,549.99 8 20
3 2/1/2019 2/28/2019 28 $159,772.72 $371,722.62 $17,752.52 $41,302.51 14 26
4 3/1/2019 3/31/2019 31 $137,964.55 $509,687.17 $15,329.40 $56,631.91 20 32
5 4/1/2019 4/30/2019 30 $194,875.30 $704,562.47 $21,652.81 $78,284.72 27 39
6 5/1/2019 5/31/2019 31 $136,748.31 $841,310.78 $15,194.26 $93,478.98 33 45
7 6/1/2019 6/30/2019 30 $1,833.75 $843,144.53 $203.75 $93,682.73 33 51
8 7/1/2019 7/31/2019 31 $52,512.42 $895,656.95 $5,834.67 $99,517.40 35 58
9 8/1/2019 8/31/2019 31 $200,547.82 $1,096,204.77 $22,283.13 $121,800.53 43 64

10 9/1/2019 9/30/2019 30 $207,014.36 $1,303,219.13 $23,001.60 $144,802.13 51 70
11 10/1/2019 10/31/2019 31 $236,499.39 $1,539,718.52 $26,277.71 $171,079.84 60 77
12 11/1/2019 11/30/2019 30 $123,864.67 $1,663,583.19 $13,762.74 $184,842.58 65 83
13 12/1/2019 12/31/2019 31 $137,437.19 $1,801,020.38 $15,270.80 $200,113.38 70 90
14 1/1/2020 1/31/2020 31 $603,824.45 $2,404,844.83 $67,091.60 $267,204.98 93 96
15 2/1/2020 2/29/2020 14 $78,833.21 $2,483,678.04 $8,759.25 $275,964.23 96 99
16 3/1/2020 3/31/2020 0 $22,139.83 $2,505,817.87 $2,459.98 $278,424.21 97 99
17 4/1/2020 4/30/2020 0 $2,202.31 $2,508,020.18 $244.70 $278,668.91 97 99
18 5/1/2020 5/31/2020 0 $23,494.25 $2,531,514.43 $2,610.47 $281,279.38 98 99
19 6/1/2020 6/30/2020 0 $7,866.87 $2,539,381.30 $874.10 $282,153.48 99 99
20 7/1/2020 10/31/2020 0 $3,888.00 $2,543,269.30 $432.00 $282,585.48 99 99
21 1/1/2020 1/31/2021 0 $211,939.11 $2,755,208.41 -$211,939.11 $70,646.37 99 99
22 2/1/2021 4/30/2021 0 $14,129.27 $2,769,337.68 -$14,129.27 $56,517.10 99 99

5/13/2021 Comments -

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
01 11/26/2019 $53,416.00 53,416.00$            

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
02 5/19/2020 $7,944.11 61,360.11$            

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
03 11/17/2020 -$158,852.09 (97,491.98)$           

Adjusted Price = $2,861,508.02

2E: Differing Site Conditions (unforseeable). Miscellaneous difference in site conditions (unforseeable). This Change Order provides the final balancing for the 
overrun/underrun of Contract quanities on the project as a result of addressing field conditions not accounted for in the original plans.

3F: County Convenience. Additional work desired by the County. This Change Order adds new property fence on the south side of the River Ranch Park Road to 
replace the existing old wire fence as requested by the County's Parks Department. 2E: Differing Site Conditions (unforeseeable). Miscellaneous difference in site 
conditions (unforeseeable) This Change Order adjusts the quantities of Type D fencing and Type 1 gate as a result of addressing difference in site conditions. The 
proposed wire fence and gate on west side right of way in front of Highland Oaks subdivision is no longer needed. Also, the driveways at Sta 549+19 and 566+64 
have recessed gates and do not require new gates to be installed. 

Certificate of Completion issued for 5/7/2021, after Engineer certified erosion control measures per TCEQ.

1A: Design Error or Omission. Incorrect PS&E. This change order adds new bid items for the design revision to add a service meter to the 12" waterline. This 
change order also replaces the DR-18 waterline pipe called for in the plans with a DR-14 pipe inside the park. 3F: County Convenience. Additional work desired by 
the County. This change order adds new bid items for the connection of 12" waterline to the waterline installed by others at the west end of the park road, for 
additional tapping saddle for landscape irrigation, and 4" PVC sleeves under roadway for future irrigation and electrical needs in the park. This change order also 
replaces the Type 1 ground box with a Type D ground box for the communication line along the park road.

20



Seward Junction Improvements (SH 29 to CR 266 & CR 259 to SH 29)
Project No. 1812-282 Original Contract Price = $13,270,258.10

Letting Award Notice To Begin Substantial Work Total Bid Days Total
Proceed Work Completion Accepted Days Added Days

12/19/2018 3/5/2019 4/22/2019 5/2/2019 3/15/2021 600 60 660

Invoice Beginning Ending Days Current Invoice Current Total % ($) % Time
Number Date Date Charged Invoice Total Retainage Retainage Used Used

1 5/2/2019 6/30/2019 60 $1,138,506.71 $1,138,506.71 $126,500.75 $126,500.75 9 9
2 7/1/2019 7/31/2019 31 $900,193.70 $2,038,700.41 $100,021.52 $226,522.27 16 14
3 8/1/2019 8/31/2019 31 $500,440.00 $2,539,140.41 $55,604.44 $282,126.71 20 18
4 9/1/2019 9/30/2019 30 $781,187.35 $3,320,327.76 $86,798.60 $368,925.31 27 23
5 10/1/2019 10/31/2019 31 $629,436.02 $3,949,763.78 $69,937.33 $438,862.64 32 28
6 11/1/2019 11/30/2019 30 $278,357.53 $4,228,121.31 $30,928.62 $469,791.26 34 32
7 12/1/2019 12/31/2019 31 $499,295.12 $4,727,416.43 $55,477.23 $525,268.49 38 37
8 1/1/2020 1/31/2020 31 $507,587.04 $5,235,003.47 $56,398.56 $581,667.05 42 42
9 2/1/2020 2/29/2020 29 $495,830.37 $5,730,833.84 $55,092.26 $636,759.31 46 46

10 3/1/2020 3/31/2020 31 $1,495,940.26 $7,226,774.10 -$256,402.78 $380,356.53 55 51
11 4/1/2020 4/30/2020 30 $925,168.98 $8,151,943.08 $48,693.11 $429,049.64 62 55
12 5/1/2020 5/31/2020 31 $751,064.06 $8,903,007.14 $39,529.68 $468,579.32 68 60
13 6/1/2020 6/30/2020 30 $728,210.17 $9,631,217.31 $38,326.85 $506,906.17 73 65
14 7/1/2020 7/31/2020 31 $418,630.14 $10,049,847.45 $22,033.17 $528,939.34 76 69
15 8/1/2020 8/31/2020 31 $266,456.21 $10,316,303.66 $14,024.01 $542,963.35 78 74
16 9/1/2020 9/30/2020 30 $216,227.68 $10,532,531.34 $11,380.40 $554,343.75 80 78
17 10/1/2020 10/31/2020 31 $121,663.91 $10,654,195.25 $6,403.38 $560,747.13 81 83
18 11/1/2020 11/30/2020 30 $386,714.54 $11,040,909.79 $20,353.38 $581,100.51 84 88
19 12/1/2020 12/31/2020 31 $188,106.89 $11,229,016.68 $9,900.37 $591,000.88 85 92
20 1/1/2021 1/31/2021 31 $110,227.19 $11,339,243.87 $5,801.43 $596,802.31 86 97
21 2/1/2021 2/28/2021 28 $371,751.27 $11,710,995.14 $19,565.86 $616,368.17 89 101
22 3/1/2021 3/31/2021 15 $167,168.32 $11,878,163.46 $8,798.34 $625,166.51 90 104
23 4/1/2021 4/30/2021 0 $488,109.50 $12,366,272.96 -$372,793.58 $252,372.93 91 104

4/14/2021 Comments -

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
01 2/28/2020 $112,306.36 112,306.36$        

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
02 6/16/2020 $9,946.75 122,253.11$        

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
03 7/21/2020 $3,372.67 125,625.78$        

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
04 8/4/2020 $17,647.04 143,272.82$        

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
05 8/4/2020 $272,222.65 415,495.47$        

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
06 10/6/2020 $681.04 416,176.51$        

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
07 2/2/2021 $194,882.66 611,059.17$        

Adjusted Price = $13,881,317.27

Substantial Completion was achieved on 3/15/2021.

1A: Design Error or Omission. Incorrect PS&E. This change order revises items and quantities that were entered incorrectly or omitted in the bid tab for Seward 
Junction SW, Seward Junction SE and PEC Pond.

1A: Design Error or Omission. Incorrect PS&E. This Change Order adds a pay item to adjust existing manholes located within the ROW to match finish grade. The 
manholes are on the existing LCRA line that runs through the project. The manholes were shown in the plans but a bid item to cover the cost of the adjustments to 
these manholes were not included in the original plans.

2G: Differing Site Conditions (Unforseeable). Unadjusted utility (unforeseeable). This Change Order compensates the Contractor for additional work to lower an 
existing wastewater line that is in conflict with the proposed driveway culvert located on CR 266 approximately 500 feet south of the SH 29 intersection on the east 
side of the roadway. The location of the line was not identified in the plans and the Contractor damaged the line while excavating for the driveway culvert. This work 
is located in the Seward Junction Southeast portion of the project.  

2J: Differing Site Conditions (unforeseeable). Other. This Change Order adds Work Zone Pavement Mark Removeable pay items to the contract. The plans included 
Work Zone Pavement Mark Non-Removeable items that worked with the asphalt pavement section. Since the roadway is concrete paving, Work Zone Pavement 
Mark Removeable items needed to be added for the different phases and traffic switches called for in the plans. This applies to the Seward Junction Southeast portion 
of the project.

2G: Differing Site Conditions (Unforseeable). Unadjusted utility (unforeseeable). This Change Order compensates the Contractor for additional work to install a new 
6" and a new 8" wastewater line, a new 6" water line, and remove an existing wastewater vault that has been abandoned. The installation of the new underground 
utilities are necessary because the existing lines are in conflict with the proposed construction at the intersection of SH 29 and Seward Junction Southwest. The 
utilities belong to the City of Liberty Hill.    

2C: Differing Site Conditions (unforseable) New development (conditions changing after PS&E completed). This Change Order adds the latest Guardrail End 
Treatment (MSKT) standard to the contract. 2E: Differeing Site Conditions. Miscellaneous difference in site conditions (unforeseeable)(Item 9). This Change Order 
adds work to extend a storm sewer pipe, revises the slope on some SET's from 4:1 to 3:1 (RFI 28), due to a change in the PGL of the roadway. A pipe underdrain 
system was added to the contract to address groundwater encountered during construction of the roadway (RFI #29). Construction Exit items that were not used on 
the project were deleted from the contract. This Change Order is for work in the Southeast portion of the project.

3F: County Convenience. Additional work desired by the County. This Change Order adds the reconstruction of a 500' portion of CR 260 from SH 29 to Terra del 
sol Parkway to the contract at the request of Williamson County.  

21



RED
BUD

LN

LAKELIN EBLVD
UV3.04

UV3.47

UV1.16

UV3.03

UV3.10

UV1.12

UV3.07

UV3.15

UV3.05
UV3.23

UV3.06

UV3.28

UV3.40

UV3.08

UV3.11

UV3.24

UV3.02

UV3.30

UV3.17

UV3.31

UV3.34

UV3.37

UV3.09

UV3.21

UV3.18

UV3.29

UV3.16

UV3.27

UV3.36

UV3.46

UV3.39

UV3.42

UV3.44
UV3.41

UV3.35

UV3.25
UV3.22

UV3.12

UV2.04

UV3.20

UV3.13

UV3.14

UV2.09

UV2.08

UV3.26
UV3.43
UV3.45

UV3.01

UV3.48!"#$35
¿À29

¿À195

CR262

ECR
304

CR 234

CR261

CR 15
0

CR 23
9

CR 227

CR 120

CR 31
4

CR 30
5

CR 31
1

CR 10
5

CR
312

CR 12
4

CR 31
0

CR2
28

CR 23
9

CR 237

CR 140

SHE
LLR

D CR 19
6

CR 372

CR 245

CR
226

CR 145

CR 30
9

CR 252

CR 14
9

CR 24
1CR 241

CR

15
3

CR 237

CR 17
6

CR 25
4

CR316

CR289

CR 306

CR 230

P OLO BN D

CR 311

CR 31
7

CR 14
7

CR
215

CR155

CR 1
00

CR 375

CR 1
94

CR 223

CHESTN UT CV

CR 10
7

CR 14
4

CR 24
9

CR 251

CR 126

CR 154

CR
255

CR
 23
5

CARDIN AL LN

CR 12
1

CR 256

CR 224

CR 21
7

RAE LN

CR 22
9 CR 308

CR 248

CR 222

SCR289

CR 3001

CR 142

CR 37
0

CR
156

CR 16
7

CR 25
3

CR 307

CR
30
7

SP
EA
RS

RAN CHRD

HID
DE
N L
N

CR 24
3

CR 25
0

CR 216

CR 18
9

BUCKSKIN CV

CR 24
7

CR 24
0

CR 14
7

CR329

RAMMS DR

RE
DB
IRD
RD

CR
231

CR 141

CR
303

CR232

CR
34
4

CR
244

CR
32
8

CR 22
1

CR315

CR 22
0

CR 21
9

CR

225

CR 2
33

2006 2006 RROAD OAD BBOND OND PPROGRAM ROGRAM PPROJECTS ROJECTS 
PPRECINCT 3 - RECINCT 3 - CCOMMISSIONEROMMISSIONER  CCOVEYOVEY

3.28   Rona ld W . Re a g a n N orth - P ha se 3 
3.29   Rona ld W . Re a g a n N orth - P ha se 4 
3.30   RM 2338 (P TF) 
3.31   SH 29 Im prove m e nts Study & Sche m a tic
3.34   SH 195 P roje ct 1  
3.35   SH 29 at P a rk P la ce Dr. & Jack N ickla us Blvd. 
3.36   SH 195 P roje ct 2 
3.37   SH 195 P roje ct 3
3.39   CR 245 Re a lig nm e nt  
3.40   CR 179 
3.41   CR 110 / Arte ria l A Study (desig n)
3.42   CR 111 / CR 105 W e sting house Rd. 
          (FM 1460 to SH 130) (desig n)
3.43   Unive rsity Blvd. (Cha ndle r Rd) Expa nsion (Desig n)
3.44   CR 110 N orth
          (N orth of CR 107 to N orth of Sa m  Houston) (Desig n)
3.45   CR 110 Middle (N orth of Lim m e r Loop to CR 107)
3.46   FM 1460 N orth
3.47   Madrid Drive Exte nsion

Completed/Open to Traffic
1.12   W e sting house Rd. (CR 111)
1.16   SE Inne r Loop at FM 1460 
2.04   Ceda r Hollow at SH 29 
2.08   Rona ld W . Re a g a n South – P h. 1 
2.09   Rona ld W . Re a g a n N orth – P h. 1
3.01   FM 1460 to CR 110 
3.02   Ge org e town Inne r Loop East 
3.03   Ge org e town Inne r Loop East Exte nsion 
3.04   Ge org e town Inne r Loop – P roje ct 1 
3.05   Ge org e town Inne r Loop – P roje ct 2 
3.06   Ge org e town Inne r Loop – 
          P roje ct 3 Study 
3.07   Ge org e town Inne r Loop – 
          P roje ct 4 Study 
3.08   Ge org e town Inne r Loop – 
          P roje ct 5 Study 
3.09   CR 124  
3.10   CR 142
3.11   CR 145 
3.12   CR 152 Bridg e  Re pla ce m e nt 
3.13   CR 157 
3.14   CR 175
3.15   CR 234 
3.16   CR 245 
3.17   CR 311 
3.18   CR 314
3.20   Rona ld W . Re a g a n South - P ha se 2 
3.21   Rona ld W . Re a g a n N orth - P ha se 2 
3.22   IH-35 at SH 29 Turna rounds (P TF) 
3.48   SH 29 W ide ning  - 12" W a te r Ma in Re location
3.23   SH 29/CR 104 – P ha se 1
3.24   W illia m s Drive (RM 2338)  
3.25   CR 104 – P ha se 2 
3.26   CR 175 Exte nsion - P ha se 2A
3.27   IH 35 N orthbound Fronta g e  Rd. a nd Ra m ps

22



UV306

UV231

UV326

UV238

BAGDAD RD

SAM B ASS RD

CR
110

CR 112

RED
BUD

L N

CR
1 1

9

SE INNE

R
LO

OP

DB WOOD
RD

RONA LD
W

R EAGAN

LAKELINE BLVD
UV251

UV276

UV293

UV237
UV226

UV231

UV243D

UV243A

UV241

UV234

UV291

UV243C

UV453

UV231

UV306

UV292

!"#$35

¿À29

¿À195

¿À138

CR
262

WESTINGHOUSE RD

WESTINGHOUSE RD

CR 234

CR

152
CR 175

CR 261

CR 146

CR 264

CR 26
8

CR 150

CR 239

CR227

CR
120

CR 314

CR 305

TW
IN CREEKDR

CR 175

CR 311

CR 105

CR
312

CR 124

CR 310

CR
106

CR 228

CR 239

CR
332

CR 140

CR 313

PA
TR

IOT
W

AY

CR 388

SHELL RD CR 196

CR 143

STADIUM DR
CR 245

CR 226

CR 145

CR 309

CR 252

CR 149

CR
 25

7

CR 241

JOURNEY PKWY

CR 241

CR 153

CR 237

CR 254 SPUR

CR 176

CR 153 SPUR

CR 254 CR
316

CR 289

CR 306

CR 230

POLO BND

CR 311

CR 317

CR 191

CR 147

CR 215

CR155

CR 100

CR 186

CR 375

CR 194

CR 223

CR 107

DA
W

ND
R

CR 107

COWBOY LN

CR 144
CR 249

CR 162

CR 251

CR 126

CR 313

CR 154

CR 255

CR
 23

5
CARDINAL LN

CR 121

RUNDBERG DR

PALOMINO
CV

CR
 25

6

CR 224

CR 217

CR 229 CR
308CR 396

CR
 33

1

CR

248

CR 222

S
CR289

CR 3001

CR 103

CR142
CR 370

CR 156

CR 242CR 253

CR 307

CR 307

SPEARSRANCH RD

HID
DE

N
LN

STRADA LUCA

CR 243

CR 166

CR250

CR 216

CR 189

BUCKSKINCV

CR 247

CR 246

CR 240

CR 147

WHITAKERRD

CR 329

RAMMS DR

RE
DB

IR
DR

D

CR 21
8

CR
231

CR 127

CR 141

CR 303

CR 232

CR 148

CR
34

4

CR 238

CR 244

CR
32

8

CR 221

CR 315

CR 220

CR 219

CR 225

CR 233

2013 2013 RROAD OAD BBOND OND PPROGRAM ROGRAM PPROJECTS ROJECTS 
PPRECINCT 3 - RECINCT 3 - CCOMMISSIONEROMMISSIONER  CCOVEYOVEY

In Design
238   Ronald Reagan Boulevard Extension Planning (IH 35 to SH 95)
292   CR 111 / CR 105 Westinghouse (FM 1460 to SH 130)
326   RM 2243 Realignment (183A to Southwest Bypass)
336   Ronald Reagan Boulevard Widening (SH 29 to FM 3405)
Under Construction/Bidding
231   Ronald Reagan Boulevard at IH 35 Bridge Replacement
237   SH 29 at DB Wood (Intersection Improvements)

Completed/ Open to Traffic (con't)
243a Southwest Bypass Driveways
243c Southwest Bypass Access Route
243d Southwest Bypass Segment 2 

      (Southbound IH 35 to RM 2243)
251   Inner Loop Safety Improvements

      (Belmont Drive to Rockride Lane)
276   Arterial H Extension Phase 1

      (CR 175 to Massey Way)
291   SH 29 at Cedar Hollow

      (Intersection Improvements)
293   Kauffman Loop Phase 1 - Two Lanes

      (northeast quadrant of Reagan at SH 29)
306   CR 305 at IH 35 Bridge Replacement
306   Relocation of 48" Williamson County 

      Regional Raw Waterline - Line A
453   Southwest Bypass Segment 1

 (Southbound IH 35 to 0.5 miles west)

Completed/ Open to Traffic
226   Inner Loop Safety Improvements (Rockride Lane to Wilco Way)
231   IH 35 Ramp Reversal and Frontage Road Conversion 

      (FM 972 to CR 312)
231   Relocation of 48" Williamson County Regional Raw Waterline - Line B
234   RM 2243 at Escalera Parkway (Intersection Improvements)
241   CR 176 at RM 2243 Intersection (Safety Improvements)

UV336

23



UV366

UV364

UV370

UV352

UV353

UV354

UV358

UV357

UV361

UV360

§̈¦35

UV29

UV138

UV195

UV459

UV307

UV367 UV292

UV362

BAGDAD
RD

SAM B ASS RD

CR 110

CR 112

RED
BUD

L N

CR
11

9

SE

INNE

R
LO

OP

LAKELINE BLVD

CR 152

WESTINGHOUSE

TN

CR 261

CR
 23

4

CR
166

SHELL RD

CR
177

CR 268

CR 241

SUN CITY BLVD

CR 227

CR306

CR
186

CR 107

CR 305

CR 146

CR312

CR 124

UNIVERSITY

BLVD

CR
310

CR 291

ROCKRIDE
LN

CR 106

CR 228

MARTINDALE
AVE

JESSICA DR

CR
370

CR 140

PA
TR

IO
T

WA
Y

CR
196

CR 388

WESTINGHOUSE RD

CR 372

CR 105

CR 143

OLD
WALBURG

TRL

STADIUM DR

BIG VALLEY

SPUR

RATTLESNAKE RD

CR 226

CR
252

CR 145

CR 316 SPUR

CR 145
SPUR

CR
309

CR 254 SPUR

CR107
SPUR

CR 237

CR 153
SPUR

HIG
GS

 R
D

ST
ILL

MA
N

VA
LL

EY
RD

CR 230 SPUR

CR 289

CR 215

CR 311

N CR 155

SPUR

CR 245

CR
 31

7

CR 245
SPUR

CR 191

MARVIN

LEWIS LN

CR 375

CR 194
CR 262

CR 223

CR 307

PARKSIDE
PKWY

OLD 195

CR 144
CR 249

CR
162

LAURA
LN

CR 251

CR 175

RABBIT
HILL RD

CR 154

DA
W

N
DR

CR 230

CR 255

CR
 23

5 HUGH
SMITH LN

CR 121

CR 176

CR 149

CR 316

CR257

CR 14
2

CR 256

CR222

CR 120

CR 10
5 S

PUR

CR 217

CR 308

CR 229

CR 314

CR396

CR
 33

1CR 248

CR 332

S CR
289

CR
 15

3

CR 224
CR3001

CR
313

CR
 10

3

CR
167

CR
242

CR
253

CR 150

CR 315CR
243

CR 250

CR
 21

6

CR
189

BELL
GIN RD

CR
247

CR 254

CR 155

CR 246

CR 240

CR 147

RAMMS
DR

HAYDON
LN

CR 239

CR
218

CR 231CR 225

CR 220

CR 126

CR 141

RONALD W REAGAN BLVD

CR 232

CR 148

CR 127

CR
 34

4

CR 238

CR 244

CR
 32

8

CR 221

CR 219 CR 233

2019 2019 RROAD OAD BBOND OND PPROGRAM ROGRAM PPROJECTS ROJECTS 
PPRECINCT 3 - RECINCT 3 - CCOMMISSIONEROMMISSIONER  CCOVEYOVEY

In Design
292   CR111/CR105 Westinghouse (FM 1460 to SH 130)
307   Bud Stockton Extension (CR 305 to FM 487) 
352   Southwest Bypass Extension (SH 29 to Wolf Ranch Parkway)
353   CR 245 (North of RM 2338 to Ronald Reagan Boulevard)
358   SH 195 at Ronald Reagan Boulevard
360   Corridor E5 (Ronald Reagan Extension/Corridor D to IH 35/CR 305)
361   Corridor I1 (FM 3405) (Ronald Reagan Boulevard to US 183)
362   CR 110 North (CR 107 to Patriot Way/Sam Houston Avenue)
364   CR 314 Safety Improvement (IH 35 Northbound Frontage Rd to East of CR 3001)
366   CR 332 Realignment (South of FM 487 to North of CR 313)
367   RM 2243 (Ronald Reagan Boulevard to Southwest Bypass)
370   MoKan (Georgetown Inner Loop to University Boulevard)
459   Southeast Inner Loop Extension (Corridor C) (Sam Houston Avenue at Patriot Way to SH 29)

Under Construction/Bidding
354   Ronald Reagan at Silver Spur Boulevard
357   Ronald Reagan at Sun City Boulevard

24



CR 176 at RM 2243 (RM 2243 at Parkside Parkway)
Project No. 1901-285 Original Contract Price = $2,447,560.00

Letting Award Notice To Begin Substantial Work Total Bid Days Total
Proceed Work Completion Accepted Days Added Days

1/8/2019 3/26/2019 7/26/2019 8/5/2019 7/10/2020 229 60 289

Invoice Beginning Ending Days Current Invoice Current Total % ($) % Time
Number Date Date Charged Invoice Total Retainage Retainage Used Used

1 8/5/2019 8/7/2019 3 $72,005.40 $72,005.40 $8,000.60 $8,000.60 3 1
2 8/8/2019 8/31/2019 24 $182,903.40 $254,908.80 $20,322.60 $28,323.20 10 9
3 9/1/2019 9/30/2019 30 $256,030.43 $510,939.23 $28,447.83 $56,771.03 19 20
4 10/1/2019 10/31/2019 31 $404,602.62 $915,541.85 $44,955.84 $101,726.87 34 30
5 11/1/2019 11/30/2019 30 $172,401.65 $1,087,943.50 $19,155.74 $120,882.61 41 41
6 12/1/2019 12/31/2019 31 $49,862.16 $1,137,805.66 $5,540.24 $126,422.85 43 52
7 1/1/2020 1/31/2020 31 $4,983.70 $1,142,789.36 $553.75 $126,976.60 43 62
8 2/1/2020 2/29/2020 29 $350,483.90 $1,493,273.26 -$48,383.27 $78,593.33 53 72
9 3/1/2020 3/31/2020 31 $148,264.69 $1,641,537.95 $7,803.40 $86,396.73 58 83

10 4/1/2020 4/30/2020 30 $232,512.45 $1,874,050.40 $12,237.50 $98,634.23 66 93
11 5/1/2020 5/31/2020 31 $20,527.25 $1,894,577.65 $1,080.38 $99,714.61 67 104
12 6/1/2020 6/30/2020 30 $239,695.54 $2,134,273.19 $12,615.56 $112,330.17 76 115
13 7/1/2020 7/31/2020 10 $32,529.38 $2,166,802.57 $1,712.07 $114,042.24 77 118
14 8/1/2020 8/31/2020 0 $40,322.75 $2,207,125.32 $2,122.25 $116,164.49 78 118
15 9/1/2020 9/30/2020 0 $162,165.00 $2,369,290.32 $8,535.00 $124,699.49 84 118
16 10/1/2020 10/31/2020 0 $227,976.42 $2,597,266.74 $11,998.76 $136,698.25 92 118
17 11/1/2020 11/30/2020 0 $1,839.00 $2,599,105.74 $96.79 $136,795.04 92 118
18 12/1/2020 4/30/2021 0 $72,022.21 $2,671,127.95 -$82,282.22 $54,512.82 92 118

3/9/2021 Comments -

1/28/2021 Comments -
.

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
01 12/17/2019 $208,869.67 208,869.67$          

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
02 6/16/2020 $63,776.63 272,646.30$          

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
03 8/4/2020 ($204,858.75) 67,787.55$            

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
04 8/4/2020 $452,885.58 520,673.13$          

Adjusted Price = $2,968,233.13

Awaiting grass growth, before releasing final retention.

Negotiations have been completed for the water line adjustments. Construction will resume in February 2020.

4B: Third Party Accommodation. Third party requested work. This Change Order adds relocation of the existing Brushy Creek Municipal Utility District (BCMUD) 
water line along CR 176 and revises the City of Georgetown water line relocations on the project.  

3F: County Convenience. Additional work desired by the County. This Change Order adds various items of work to the contract, including: removal of an existing 
driveway, a mail box turnout, a pedestrian curb ramp, wire mesh fencing and gates, realigns a ditch to improve drainage, widens driveway radii, water pumping, 
storm sewer pipe and safety end treatments at a driveway and milling of asphalt on RM 2243.  2E: County Convenience. Differing site conditions. Miscellaneous 
difference in site condition (unforeseeable). This change order compensates the contractor for work necessary to find the existing cave and removes a driveway along 
RM 2243 that was constructed before the job started and not addressed in the plans.

2E: Differing Site Conditions. Miscellaneous difference in site conditions (unforseeable).  This Change Order deletes the quantity for Item 162 Mulch Topdressing 
and Items 260 related to the Lime Treated Subgrade.  The Contractor was able to salvage high quality topsoil from the project limits and reuse that material on the 
final project.  The topsoil used did not require the addition of mulch to establish vegetation or prevent erosion. The Lime Treated Subgrade items were deleted due to 
the high quality of existing material encountered at subgrade elevation. Lab testing determined that the existing material contained a low enough PI that lime 
treatment of the subgrde was not necessary.   

3F: County Convenience. Additional work desired by the County. This Change Order adds a Shared Use Path to (SUP) the project at the request of the County.  The 
path extends from RM 2243 (Leander Road) to CR 176 and is located along the west right of way.  The SUP required a pedestrian crossing of Parkside Parkway on 

25



APRIL 2021 IN REVIEW

26



Ronald Reagan at Silver Spur / Ronald Reagan at Sun City Intersections (Intersection Improvementst)
Project No. T1873 Original Contract Price = $875,350.00

Letting Award Notice To Begin Substantial Work Total Bid Days Total
Proceed Work Completion Accepted Days Added Days

10/6/2020 10/13/2020 11/24/2020 12/8/2020 142 142

Invoice Beginning Ending Days Current Invoice Current Total % ($) % Time
Number Date Date Charged Invoice Total Retainage Retainage Used Used

1 12/8/2020 12/30/2020 23 $107,172.03 $107,172.03 $11,908.00 $11,908.00 14 16
2 12/31/2020 1/31/2021 32 $56,797.20 $163,969.23 $6,310.80 $18,218.80 21 39
3 2/1/2021 3/31/2021 59 $64,033.20 $228,002.43 $7,114.80 $25,333.60 29 80

1/28/2021 Comments -

.

Adjusted Price = $875,350.00

The Notice to Proceed was issued 11/24/20 with Time Charges beginning on 12/8/20.

27



SE

IN

NE
R
LO
OP

UNIVE
RSITY

UV4.43

UV4.20

UV4.50

UV4.43

UV4.45

UV4.02

UV4.23

UV4.10
UV4.07 UV4.06UV4.24

UV4.08

UV4.26UV4.04

UV4.29

UV4.13

UV4.25

UV4.27

UV4.34

UV4.41

UV4.28 UV4.22

UV4.30
UV4.55

UV4.54

UV4.48

UV4.35

UV4.05

UV4.36 UV4.21UV4.51

UV4.15

UV4.16

UV4.17

UV4.18

UV4.14

UV4.19

UV4.12

UV4.33

UV4.31

UV4.37
UV4.38

UV4.39
UV4.40

UV4.44
UV4.49

UV4.52

UV4.03UV4.56

UV4.57

UV4.46

UV3.13

UV4.11

UV4.09

UV4.01

UV4.01

UV4.01UV4.29

UV4.58

ab79

CR
460

CR 431

CR
427

CR 324

CR 421

CR 435

CR 436

CR 101

CR 340

CR
 12
9

CHAN
DLER

RD

CR458

CR
42
8

CR 4
93

CR 455

CR 404

CR 47
0

CR 351

CR426

MA
IN
 ST

CR 374

CR 495

CR 432

CR 417

CR 424

CR 100
CR 130

CR364

CR 414

CR
403

CR
 35
2

CR 467

CR 479

CR 320

CR 382

CR
 38
4

CR

31
8

CR 424

CR
 48
1

CR 3
99

CR 469
CR354

CR

355

CR
 40
5

CR365

CR 405

CR 380

CR
 38
6

CR
 36
0

CR
473

CR 48
9

CR 45
3

CR
 40
01

CR 40
8

CR 463

CR
 30
1

CR 32
7

CR
 45
2

CR 361

CR 336

CR 457

CR
 36
3

CR 383

CR
 35
0

CR
 41
9

CR 407

CR 379

CR 373

CR 391

CR 338

CR 422

CR
 49
9

CR
468

CR
 30
1

CR 347

CR 441

CR 41
2

CR 39
4

CR 36
8

CR 485

CR 36
9

N
CR
366

CR 300

CR 484

CR
 44
3

CR 385
CR 449

CR
 48
7

CR 488

CR
472

CR 376

CR
 49
2

CR 43
4

CR

389

CR 477

CR425

CR 34
7

CR358

CR 390

CR 302
CR
450

CR 44
5

CR 323

CR4
48

CR3
26

CR 494

CR 36
7
CR
 40
6

CR 416

CR 336

CR 47
6

CR
 39
3

CR 46
5

CR303

CR 444

CR
31
9

CR 192
CR 334

CR3
71

CR 49
8

CR 41
1

CR
45
6

CR
 39
2

CR 46
2

CR 497

CR 161

CR4
20

CR 45
1

CR 464

CR 16
0

CR 42
5

CR
48
0

CR 46
6

CR335

CR
 36
2

CR321

CR 447

CR 41
0

CR440

CR43
0

CR 43
3

CR 478

CR 482
CR 454

CR474

CR 437

CR
33
9

CR3
77

CR41
5

CR 49
0

CR 381

CR 337

CR342

CR387

CR 423

CR446

CR
 42
9

CR330

CR 341

CR 41
3

CR 356

CR 439

CR 357

CR 345

CR 483CR
 13
4

CR 349

CR 343

CR 43
8

CR 471

CR348

2006 2006 RROAD OAD BBOND OND PPROGRAM ROGRAM PPROJECTS ROJECTS 
PPRECINCT 4 - RECINCT 4 - CCOMMISSIONEROMMISSIONER  BBOLESOLES

In Design
4.35   FM 1660 (PTF)

4.18   CR 412 
4.19   CR 466
4.20   FM 397 at SH 95 Sig nal 
4.21   Gattis School Rd . RO W
4.22   Lim m e r Loop – Phase 1A
4.23   Thrall School Z one  
4.24   US 79 – Section 1 
4.25   US 79 – Section 2 
4.26   US 79 – Section 3A 
4.27   Chand le r Rd . – Phase 2 
4.28   Lim m e r Loop – Phase 1B
4.29   CR 113 / O ld  Settle rs Blvd .
4.30   Lim m e r Loop – Phase 1C 
4.31   Ke nne y Fort Boulevard  – Phase 1
4.33   Chand le r Rd . – Phase 3A 
4.34   Chand le r Rd . – Phase 3B
4.36   Gattis School Road  
4.37   US 79 - Se ction 3 (PTF)
4.38   2nd  Stre e t Im prove m e nts 
4.39   2nd  Stre e t Drainag e  Im prove m e nts
4.40   US 79 Section 5A (PTF) 
4.41   US 79 Section 5B (PTF)

Completed/Open to Traffic

4.43   FM 1460 Section 2 
4.44   CR 138 
4.45   CR 170 
4.46   FM 1660 at Land fill Rd . (CR 128) 
4.48   CR 119
4.49   CR 108 
4.50   CR 351 at Donahoe  Cre e k
4.51   CR 110/ Arte rial A Stud y Area
4.52   Unive rsity Blvd . (Chand le r Rd .)
          Expansion
4.54   CR 110 South - (De sig n) 
          (US 79 to Lim m e r Lp)
4.55   CR 110 Mid d le
          (North of Lim m e r Loop to CR 107)
4.56   CR 110 at Unive rsity Blvd . (Sig nal)
4.57   Gattis School Rd . at 
          Winte rfie ld  Dr. (Sig nal)
4.58   Trad e sm an Park Crossing

3.13    CR 157
4.01   Brid g e  Re place m e nts Phase 1
          (CR 390, 406, 427)
4.02   CR 424 Brid g e  Re place m e nt 
4.03   Chand le r Rd . – Phase 1 
4.04   CR 100 
4.05   CR 112 – Phase 1 
4.06   CR 119 
4.07   CR 122 at US 79 
4.08   CR 124
4.09   CR 132
4.10   CR 136
4.11   CR 137
4.12   CR 138 & CR 139
          Alig nm e nt Stud y
4.13   CR 300 & CR 301 
4.14   CR 302 
4.15   CR 347 & CR 348 
4.16   CR 368 & CR 369
          (CR 101 to CR 366)
4.17   CR 404 

28



UV238

UV327

UV506
UV332

UV294

UV260
UV302

CR
110

C R
11

9

SE

IN

NE
R

LO
OP

S CR
366

2ND ST

UNIVERSITY

UV297

UV302

UV269

UV228
UV441

UV296
UV214UV261

CR 123

CR 460

CR431

CR
 42

7

CR 421

CR 435

CR 436

CR 101

CR 129

CR 493

CR
 40

1

CR 455

CR
 40

4

CR 13
7

CR
 45

6

CR 351

CR 426

CR
 37

4

CR 348

CR 432

CR 464

CR198

CR 364

CR 340

CR414

CR
 35

2

CR 124

CR 479

CR 320

CR 417

CR
378

CR
 38

4

CR135

CR 318

CR
 42

4
CR

199

CR 469
CR 354

CR 35
5

CR
 40

5

CR 117

CR
 38

6

CR
 13

4

CR 473

CR382

CHANDLER RD

CR 453

CR
112

CR 420

CR 133

CR 491

CR
408

CR
 45

2

CR 463
CR 361

CR 324

CR
138

CR
 35

0

CR
462

CR
 36

3

CR 327

CR 132

CR
 41

9

CR
 44

2

CR 475

CR
131

CR 407

CR 461

CR422

CR
 46

8

CR 333

CR 394
CR 368

CR 369

CR 15
7

CR 300

CR 44
3

CR 458

CR
385

CR365

CR 119

CR449

CR 472

CR488

CR 49
2

CR 139

CR 434

CR 412

CR
389

CR
197

CR 425

CR477

CR 358

CR 448

CR390

CR 35
9

CR 302

CR
 42

8

CR 450

CR 445

CR323

CR 326

CR 336

CR416
CR
158

CR 470

CR
476

CR 39
3

CR 465

CR 409

CR 303

CR
 40

6

CR 346

CR 130

CR334

CR 39
2

CR 192

CR
498

CR
371

CR
411

CR
497

CR161

CR 451

CR
 48

1

CR 329

CR
160

CR 100

N CR 366

CR
 48

0

CR 335

CR 447

CR
 30

1

CR
321

CR
 36

2

CR 347
CR
410

CR 430

CR 433

CR
319

CR 478

CR
454

CR 482

CR
 48

7

CR 474

CR 484

CR
 32

2

CR 418

CR 437

CR
 33

9

CR 440

CR 377

CR 415

CR 490
CR 466

CR
 36

0

CR 381

CR 337

CR 342

CR 446

CR 387

CR 467

CR 423

CR
 42

9

CR 353

CR 325
CR 330

CR 341

CR 413

CR 356

CR 439

CR 357

CR 345

CR 483

CR
 34

9

CR 343

CR 438

CR 471

2013 2013 RROAD OAD BBOND OND PPROGRAM ROGRAM PPROJECTS ROJECTS 
PPRECINCT 4 - RECINCT 4 - CCOMMISSIONEROMMISSIONER  BBOLESOLES

In Design
228   Kenney Fort Blvd Segments 2 and 3 (Forest Creek Boulevard to SH 45)
238   Ronald Reagan Boulevard Extension (IH 35 to SH 95)
294   Chandler Road Extension Phase 1 (Planning) (SH 95 to FM 619)
296   CR 366 Widening (Chandler Road to Carlos G. Parker Boulevard)
302   SH 130 Frontage Roads Phase 3 (SBFR US 79 to Limmer Loop)
332   FM 3349/US 79 Interchange

Under Construction/Bidding
269   CR 101 (US 79 to North of Chandler Road)
327   University Boulevard (Chandler Road) Expansion (FM 1460 to SH 130)

Completed/Open to Traffic
214   CR 119 (Limmer Loop to Chandler Road)
260   CR 110 South (US 79 to Limmer Loop)
261   CR 110 Middle (Limmer Loop to CR 107)
297   East Williamson County Park Road / Bill Pickett Trail

      (Carlos Parker Boulevard to Chandler Road)
302   SH 130 Traffic Study
441   Roundville Lane (A.W. Grimes Boulevard to EBFR of SH 45)
506   Oak Bluff and Greenfield Drainage Improvements

0179

ST29

29



UV369

UV374

UV373

UV375

UV463
UV380

UV376

UV486

UV360

UV381

UV378
UV377

UV463a

UV359

UV372

UV371

CR 110

CR
11

9

SE

IN N
ER

LO
OP

S CR
366

2ND ST

UNIVERSITY

CR 123

CR 460

OL
D C

R
13

7

CR 431

CR
 42

7

LORAX
LN

CR 421

CR 435

CR 436

CR 101

CR 108

CR 493

CR
 10

9 S
PU

R

CR
 40

1

CR 455

CR 404

CR
 13

7

CR
 45

6

CR 351

CR 426

2NDST

CR 374

CR
495

CR 348

CR 432
MA

IN
 ST

CR 464

CR 366
SPUR

CR198

CR 11
0

CR 364

CR 340

PARKVIEW
DR

CR 414

CR
403

CR
 35

2

CR 124

OLD CR 366

CR 479

CR 320

CR 417

CR 414
SPUR

RIVERVIEW
LN

CR
378

E CR 366

CR 384

CR135

CR 318

CR
 42

4

CR
399

N CR 122 CR199

CR 469
CR 354

CR
 35

5

CR 320
SPUR

CR
 40

5

CR117

CR
 38

6

CR
 13

4

CR 489
WILSONRD

CR 112

CR
 47

3

CR382

CHANDLER RD

CR 453

CR 420

CR 133

CR
 40

01

CR 491

CR
408

CR
 45

2

CR 361

CR 324

S CR366

CR
138

CR 463

CR
 35

0

CR
462

LIMMER LOOP

CR
 36

3

CR 327

CR 132
CR 383

CR 118
CR

 41
9

CR
 44

2

CR 475

CR
131

CR 407

CR 338

CR 379

HARDI
RD

CR 461

CR373

CR391
CR 422

CR
 46

8

CR
 49

9
CR
109

CR 333

CR 394
CR 368

CR 485

CR 369

CR 15
7

CR
 49

6

CR 300

CR 44
3

CR 458

CR
385

CR 365

CR 119
CR 156

CR449

CR 472

CR488

CR 395

CR 376

CR 49
2

CR 139

CR 434

CR 412

CR
389

CR 425

CR477

CR
197

CR 358

CR 448

CR390

CR
 35

9

CR 302

CR
 42

8

CR 450

CR 445

CR323

CR 326

CR 38
0

CR 367
CR 336

CR416

CR 158

CR 470

CR
476

CR 39
3

CR 465

CR 409

CR 303

CR
 40

6

CR 346

CR 130

CR334

CR 39
2

CR 192

CR
498

CR
371

CR
411

CR
497

CR161

CR 451

CR
 48

1

CR 329

CR 160

CR 100

N CR366

CR
 48

0

CR 335

CR 447

CR 301

CR
321

CR
 36

2

CR 347

CR 410

CR 430

CR 433

CR
 31

9

CR 478

CR 454

CR 482

CR
 48

7

CR 474

CR 484

CR
 32

2

CR 418

CR
398

CR 437

CR
 33

9

CR 440

CR 377

CR 415

CR 490
CR 466

CR
 36

0

CR 381

CR 337

CR 342

CR 446

CR387

CR 467

CR 423

CR
 42

9

CR 353

CR 325
CR 330

CR 341

CR 413

CR 356

CR 439

CR 357

CR 345

CR 483

CR 34
9

CR 343

CR 438

CR 471

2019 2019 RROAD OAD BBOND OND PPROGRAM ROGRAM PPROJECTS ROJECTS 
PPRECINCT 4 - RECINCT 4 - CCOMMISSIONEROMMISSIONER  BBOLESOLES

359   Corridor E4 (CR 302 to Future SH29) 
360   Corridor E5 (IH 35 to CR 302)
369   Bartlett Street Project (Cottrell Street)
371   Corridor E3 (Future SH 29 to Chandler Rd) 
372   Corridor E2 (Chandler Rd to US 79) 
373   Coupland Street Project (S. Broad & Muery Streets)
374   Thrall Street Project - S Bounds Street
375   CR 129 (South of Brushy Creek to North of the South Williamson County Line)
376   CR 134/CR 132 Extension (Hutto Arterial)
377   CR 112 Widening (FM 1460/A.W. Grimes to CR 117)
378   CR 112 Widening (CR 117 to CR 110)
380   MoKan (University Boulevard to SH 45)
381   Old Settlers Boulevard (North Red Bud Lane/CR 122 to CR 110)
463   Southeast Loop (Corridor E1) (CR 138 to CR 137)
486   Granger Project - Davilla Street Culvert

Under Construction/Bidding
463a Southeast Loop (Corridor E1) Demolition Phase 1

In Design

£¤79

30



CR 110 Middle (Limmer Loop to CR 107)
Project No. 1809-261 Original Contract Price = $8,910,862.73

Letting Award Notice To Begin Substantial Work Total Bid Days Total
Proceed Work Completion Accepted Days Added Days

12/14/2018 2/5/2019 4/26/2019 5/6/2019 10/20/2020 390 144 534

Invoice Beginning Ending Days Current Invoice Current Total % ($) % Time

Number Date Date Charged Invoice Total Retainage Retainage Used Used
1 5/6/2019 5/31/2019 26 $719,064.06 $719,064.06 $79,896.01 $79,896.01 9 5
2 6/1/2019 6/30/2019 30 $327,805.09 $1,046,869.15 $36,422.78 $116,318.79 13 10
3 7/1/2019 7/31/2019 31 $406,884.79 $1,453,753.94 $45,209.43 $161,528.22 17 16
4 8/1/2019 8/31/2019 31 $391,244.33 $1,844,998.27 $43,471.59 $204,999.81 22 22
5 9/1/2019 9/30/2019 30 $88,385.54 $1,933,383.81 $9,820.61 $214,820.42 23 28
6 10/1/2019 10/31/2019 31 $295,167.52 $2,228,551.33 $32,796.39 $247,616.81 27 34
7 11/1/2019 11/30/2019 30 $424,033.35 $2,652,584.68 $47,114.82 $294,731.63 32 39
8 12/1/2019 12/31/2019 31 $511,268.18 $3,163,852.86 $56,807.57 $351,539.20 38 45
9 1/1/2020 1/31/2020 31 $385,342.62 $3,549,195.48 $42,815.85 $394,355.05 42 51
10 2/1/2020 2/29/2020 29 $514,688.36 $4,063,883.84 $57,187.60 $451,542.65 49 56
11 3/1/2020 3/31/2020 31 $344,124.14 $4,408,007.98 $38,236.01 $489,778.66 53 62
12 4/1/2020 4/19/2020 19 $293,737.21 $4,701,745.19 $32,637.47 $522,416.13 56 66
13 4/20/2020 5/19/2020 30 $277,306.64 $4,979,051.83 $30,811.87 $553,228.00 60 71
14 5/20/2020 6/24/2020 36 $726,652.00 $5,705,703.83 $80,739.12 $633,967.12 68 78
15 6/25/2020 7/25/2020 31 $410,122.34 $6,115,826.17 $45,569.15 $679,536.27 73 84
16 7/26/2020 8/25/2020 31 $254,747.98 $6,370,574.15 $28,305.33 $707,841.60 76 90
17 8/26/2020 9/23/2020 29 $111,839.24 $6,482,413.39 $12,426.58 $720,268.18 77 95
18 9/24/2020 10/25/2020 27 $962,394.02 $7,444,807.41 -$568,333.33 $151,934.85 82 100
19 10/26/2020 11/25/2020 0 $88,804.62 $7,533,612.03 $1,812.34 $153,747.19 83 100
20 11/26/2020 12/27/2020 0 $50,446.95 $7,584,058.98 $1,029.53 $154,776.72 83 100
21 12/28/2020 1/31/2021 0 $33,416.21 $7,617,475.19 $681.96 $155,458.68 84 100
22 2/1/2021 2/28/2021 0 $44,523.85 $7,661,999.04 $908.65 $156,367.33 84 100
23 3/1/2021 3/31/2021 0 $547,703.24 $8,209,702.28 $11,177.62 $167,544.95 90 100
24 4/1/2021 4/30/2021 0 $69,299.54 $8,279,001.82 $1,414.28 $168,959.23 91 100

5/13/2021 Comments -

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
01 10/8/2019 $66,291.83 66,291.83$     

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
02 12/17/2019 $31,881.14 98,172.97$     

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
03 7/21/2020 $10,419.60 108,592.57$     

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
04 12/8/2020 $3,266.23 111,858.80$     

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
05 3/16/2021 ($11,737.85) 100,120.95$     

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
06 2/2/2021 $46,375.56 146,496.51$     

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
07 3/16/2021 $6,519.31 153,015.82$     

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
08 3/16/2021 $233,343.80 386,359.62$     

Adjusted Price = $9,297,222.35

3F: County Convenience. Additional work desired by the County.  This Change Order adds Traffic Control Phase 2 Step 2 to the project.  This step consists of shifting 
traffic from the existing lanes to the new lanes f rom just south of CR 112 to the north end of the project.   

3L: County Convenience. Revising safety work/measures desired by the County.  This Change Order adds a new item to pay the Contractor to repair the guard rail end 
treatment on southbound CR 110, south of CR 112. This is within the construction project limits.  

2E: Differing Site Conditions (unforseeable). Miscellaneous difference in site conditions (unforeseeable). This Change Order adds improvements to drainage and new 
side street intersections to the project. 3L: County Convenience. Revising safety work/measures desired by the County. This Change Order deletes lime from the 
pavement section, adds item to pay for police used during traffic control, and repairs damage to a signal controller and repairs potholes in the existing pavement. 4B: 
Third Party Accommodation. Third party requested work. This change order adds fittings to the Jonah Water line.  

3E: County Convenience. Reduction of future maintenance. This Change Order adds pay items to compensate the Contractor to mill and repave a portion of existing 
University Boulevard that was not called out to be overlayed in the plans.    

3F: County Convenience. Additional work desired by the County.  This Change Order adds a pay item to compensate the Contractor to remove additional structures in 
the right of way along CR 110 north of the project.      

6C: Untimely ROW/Utilities. Utilities not clear.  This Change Order adds a pay item to compensate the Contractor for extended project overhead costs caused by 
delays to the utility relocation.  

Concrete ditch riprap complete and punchlist is ongoing.

1A: Design Error or Omission. Incorrect PS&E. This Change Order revises items and quantities for the traffic signals.  3F: County Convenience. Additional work 
desired by the County. This Change Order adds items for temporary sediment control fencing (install and remove) and documents the credit to the contract for 
materials (6'x4' box culvert) furnished by the County.  

2G: Differing Site Conditions. Unadjusted utility (unforeseeable). This Change Order provides grading of the Limmer Loop ditch at CR 110, due to communication 
utility conflicts not being adjusted for the previous CR 110 South project. The ditch work must be completed, prior to construction of the requested driveway for the 
new corner store. The driveway permit has already been submitted to the County by the Developer.

31



APRIL 2021 IN REVIEW

32



CR 101 (US 79 to Chandler Road)
Project No. 2138 Original Contract Price = $13,092,842.00

Letting Award Notice To Begin Substantial Work Total Bid Days Total
Proceed Work Completion Accepted Days Added Days

10/10/2019 11/5/2019 6/26/2020 7/6/2020 540 540

Invoice Beginning Ending Days Current Invoice Current Total % ($) % Time

Number Date Date Charged Invoice Total Retainage Retainage Used Used
1 7/6/2020 7/25/2020 20 $366,881.43 $366,881.43 $40,764.60 $40,764.60 3 4
2 7/26/2020 8/30/2020 36 $2,072,374.48 $2,439,255.91 $230,263.83 $271,028.43 21 10
3 8/31/2020 9/23/2020 24 $66,831.99 $2,506,087.90 $7,425.78 $278,454.21 21 15
4 9/24/2020 10/25/2020 32 $531,044.64 $3,037,132.54 $59,004.96 $337,459.17 26 21
5 10/26/2020 11/29/2020 35 $424,017.35 $3,461,149.89 $47,113.04 $384,572.21 29 27
6 11/30/2020 12/27/2020 28 $709,324.00 $4,170,473.89 $78,813.77 $463,385.98 35 32
7 12/28/2020 1/27/2021 31 $294,970.38 $4,465,444.27 $32,774.49 $496,160.47 38 38
8 2/1/2021 2/28/2021 28 $293,948.14 $4,759,392.41 $32,660.91 $528,821.38 40 43
9 3/1/2021 3/31/2021 31 $367,172.81 $5,126,565.22 $40,796.97 $569,618.35 44 49

10 4/1/2021 4/30/2021 30 $421,691.16 $5,548,256.38 $46,854.58 $616,472.93 47 55

7/31/2020 Comments -

Adjusted Price = $13,092,842.00

The Notice to Proceed was issued 6/26/20 with Time Charges beginning on 7/6/2020.

33



Southeast Loop Demolition Phase 1 (Residential Demolition)
Project No. T1746 Original Contract Price = $125,808.07

Letting Award Notice To Begin Substantial Work Total Bid Days Total
Proceed Work Completion Accepted Days Added Days

9/23/2020 10/6/2020 12/4/2020 12/7/2020 1/15/2021 20 20

Invoice Beginning Ending Days Current Invoice Current Total % ($) % Time

Number Date Date Charged Invoice Total Retainage Retainage Used Used
1 12/11/2020 1/31/2021 20 $95,002.26 $95,002.26 $10,555.84 $10,555.84 95 100
2 2/1/2021 2/28/2021 0 $4,725.00 $99,727.26 $525.00 $11,080.84 100 100
3 3/1/2021 4/6/2021 0 $11,080.51 $110,807.77 -$11,080.84 $0.00 100 100

5/13/2021 Comments -
1/1/2021 Comments -

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
01 1/12/2021 $0.00 $0.00

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
02 4/6/2021 (15,000.00) (15,000.00)$      

Adjusted Price = $110,808.07

Substantial Completion issued for 2/2/2021.
Time charges began 12/7/2020. Contract has 20 working days.

4D: Third Party Accommodation. Other. This Change Order amends the language in Section 3 of the Services Contract, within the “Consideration and 
Compensation” paragraph. This Change Order also revises the unit price and quantity in the Contract for Item 506 6022. These revisions do not change the Contract 
amount. 

2E: Differing Site Conditions. Miscellaneous difference in site conditions (unforeseeable)(Item 9).  This Change Order provides the final balancing for the 
overrun/underrun of Contract Quantities on the project, as a result of addressing field conditions not accounted for in the original plans.

34



Williamson County
Commissioners Court

Road Bond Program
May 18, 2021



2

Precinct 1



3RM 620 at Railroad / Chisholm Trail
(IH 35 Frontage Road to Deep Wood Drive)

Anticipated Completion
Summer 2022

Partnership with TxDOT and the City of Round Rock
Original Contract Amount = $27,468,703.67
Construction is managed by TxDOT



4RM 620 at Railroad / Chisholm Trail
(IH 35 Frontage Road to Deep Wood Drive)



5RM 620 at Railroad / Chisholm Trail
(IH 35 Frontage Road to Deep Wood Drive)



6RM 620 at Railroad / Chisholm Trail
(IH 35 Frontage Road to Deep Wood Drive)



7Forest North Phase 3
Drainage Improvements

Anticipated Completion
Early 2022

Original Contract Price = $4,793,058.15
Total Change Orders to Date  = $87,744.37
Adjusted Contract Price = $4,880,802.52
Expenditures to Date = $3,042,957.22 (62%)



8Forest North Phase 3
Drainage Improvements



9Forest North Phase 3
Drainage Improvements



10Forest North Phase 3
Drainage Improvements



11O’Connor Traffic Signals
(Morgan Hill Trail, Liberty Walk, Great Oaks)

Anticipated Completion
Spring 2021

Original Contract Price = $853,503.50
Total Change Orders to Date  = $131,055.38
Adjusted Contract Price = $984,558.88
Expenditures to Date = $611,860.08 (62%)



12O’Connor Traffic Signals
(Morgan Hill Trail, Liberty Walk, Great Oaks)



13O’Connor Traffic Signals
(Morgan Hill Trail, Liberty Walk, Great Oaks)



14O’Connor Traffic Signals
(Morgan Hill Trail, Liberty Walk, Great Oaks)



15Corridor H – Sam Bass Road
(Interim Traffic Signals)

Anticipated Completion
Spring 2021

Original Contract Price = $319,866.00
Total Change Orders to Date  = $28,476.86
Adjusted Contract Price = $348,342.86
Expenditures to Date = $233,518.86 (67%)



16Corridor H – Sam Bass Road
(Interim Traffic Signals)



17Corridor H – Sam Bass Road
(Interim Traffic Signals)



18Corridor H – Sam Bass Road
(Interim Traffic Signals)



19Hairy Man Road / 
Brushy Creek Road Safety Improvements

Anticipated Completion
Winter 2021

Original Contract Price = $3,964,380.00
Total Change Orders to Date  = $0.00
Adjusted Contract Price = $3,964,380.00
Expenditures to Date = $647,914.84 (16%)



20Hairy Man Road / 
Brushy Creek Road Safety Improvements



21Hairy Man Road / 
Brushy Creek Road Safety Improvements



22Hairy Man Road / 
Brushy Creek Road Safety Improvements



23University Boulevard Widening
(IH 35 to Sunrise Road)

Anticipated Completion
Early 2022

Partnership with the City of Round Rock
Original Contract Amount = $12,135,410.45
Construction is managed by the City of Round Rock



24University Boulevard Widening
(IH 35 to Sunrise Road)



25University Boulevard Widening
(IH 35 to Sunrise Road)



26University Boulevard Widening
(IH 35 to Sunrise Road)



27

Precinct 2



28

Seward Junction Improvements

Substantially Complete
March 15, 2021

Original Contract Price = $13,270,258.10
Total Change Orders to Date  = $611,059.17
Adjusted Contract Price = $13,881,317.27
Expenditures to Date = $12,618,645.87 (91%)



29

Precinct 3



30Ronald Reagan Boulevard at IH 35 
(Bridge Replacement)

Anticipated Completion
Fall 2021

Partnership with TxDOT
Original Contract Amount = $15,048,229.93
Construction is managed by TxDOT



31Ronald Reagan Boulevard at IH 35 
(Bridge Replacement)



32Ronald Reagan Boulevard at IH 35 
(Bridge Replacement)



33Ronald Reagan Boulevard at IH 35 
(Bridge Replacement)



34Ronald Reagan at Silver Spur
Ronald Reagan at Sun City

Anticipated Completion
Spring 2021

Original Contract Price = $875,350.00
Total Change Orders to Date  = $0.00
Adjusted Contract Price = $875,350.00
Expenditures to Date = $253,336.03 (29%)



35Ronald Reagan at Silver Spur
Ronald Reagan at Sun City



36Ronald Reagan at Silver Spur
Ronald Reagan at Sun City



37Ronald Reagan at Silver Spur
Ronald Reagan at Sun City



38

Precinct 4



39CR 101
(US 79 to North of Chandler Road)

Anticipated Completion
Winter 2021

Original Contract Amount = $13,092,842.00
Total Change Orders = $0.00
Adjusted Contract Price = $13,092,842.00
Expenditures to Date = $6,164,729.30 (47%)



40CR 101
(US 79 to North of Chandler Road)



41CR 101
(US 79 to North of Chandler Road)



42CR 101
(US 79 to North of Chandler Road)



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 44.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

CR 111 (Westinghouse) ATMOS Energy Letter Agreement
Submitted By: Marie Walters, Road Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action regarding a letter agreement, dated 5/10/2021 from Atmos Energy
for road construction activities in the vicinity of an existing 12-inch diameter steel gas pipeline on CR 111
(Westinghouse Road) in Precinct 3. Project: P292  Fund Source: Road Bonds

Background
Atmos has requested execution of the included letter agreement which specifies requirements for construction
activities within Atmos Energy’s easement surrounding an existing gas pipeline. No costs are associated with this
letter of understanding.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
CR111-ATMOS-LONO 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 09:01 AM
Form Started By: Marie Walters Started On: 05/19/2021 11:37 AM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 



Page 1 of 3 

5/10/2021 

Bill Gravell Jr. 
County Judge 
710 S Main St #101  
Georgetown, TX 78626 

Re: County Road 111 
Atmos Pipeline Crossing 
Williamson County, TX 

Dear Mr. Gravell: 

It is Atmos Energy Corporation’s (Atmos Energy) understanding that changes to County 
Road 111 are proposed in Williamson County that will encroach upon Atmos Energy’s 
Line L20 (12-inch steel gas pipeline) pipeline station numbers 61+35 to 63+05. 

The CR 111 IMPROVEMENTS plans dated January 7, 2021 propose changes to the 
existing County Road 111. Sheet 60 titled PROPOSED CROSS SECTIONS indicate that 
fill is to be added on Atmos Energy’s Line L20 (12-inch steel gas pipeline) easement that 
will not exceed 60-inches above existing grade. Sheet 60 also indicates that the subgrade 
for County Road 111 will maintain a minimum of 12” of vertical clearance from Atmos 
Energy’s Line L20 (12-inch steel gas pipeline). Based on the cross sections provided in 
Sheet 60 and the TEST HOLE DATA SHEET for test hole 30 dated June 19, 2020, it is 
Atmos Energy’s understanding that the proposed County Road 111 will cross Atmos 
Energy’s Line L20 (12-inch steel gas pipeline) easement at a near 65 degree angle and 
the road surface will have a minimum vertical clearance of 36-inches from the top of 
Atmos Energy’s Line L20 (12-inch steel gas pipeline) pipeline. 

During construction, equipment shall be permitted to cross Atmos Energy’s Line L20 (12-
inch steel gas pipeline) pipeline at a designated location where the depth of cover over 
the pipelines has been verified to be a minimum of 36-inches and equipment loads do not 
exceed AASHTO HS20. A permanent paved road crossing shall be utilized for vehicles 
and equipment once available. 

Atmos Energy will not object to the construction of this portion of the proposed project if 
the following additional criteria are met: 

• An Atmos Energy representative must be present during any and all work within
Atmos Energy’s easement.  Atmos Energy representative Chris Wren (512-466-
6380) must be notified at least three (3) days (72 hours) in advance of any activities



Page 2 of 3 
 

within the vicinity of Atmos Energy facilities in order to avoid any delays in field 
activities. 
 

 Atmos Energy’s facilities must be exposed and their elevations field verified 
prior to starting any construction activity.  In the event that Atmos Energy’s 
facilities were inaccurately represented in the proposed design, construction will 
not be allowed to continue in Atmos Energy’s easement until the field-verified 
location(s) of Atmos Energy facilities have been incorporated into the project 
design and resubmitted to Atmos Energy for re-review and approval. 

 
 Mechanical excavation (and/or compaction), with the exception of the potholing 

procedure mentioned above, is not allowed within three (3) feet horizontally from 
Atmos Energy’s facilities. 

 
 Excavation (and / or compaction) closer than three (3) feet horizontally from 

Atmos Energy’s facilities must be done by hand.  
 

 All underground utility lines must be installed in a substantially straight line 
parallel to grade under Atmos Energy's facilities and maintain a minimum vertical 
separation of 24 inches between the bottom of Atmos Energy's facilities and top 
of third party line. 
 

 Positive drainage must be maintained within Atmos Energy's easement.  
Placement of any additional fill within the easement is not permitted without the 
prior written approval of Atmos Energy. 
 

 At no time may cover be removed from the easement or right-of-way without the 
prior written approval of Atmos Energy and in no case may cover over Atmos 
Energy’s facilities be reduced to less than 42 inches (top of grade to top of pipe). 
 

 Equipment crossing the easement or right-of-way during construction must be 
evaluated by Atmos Energy for external loads to determine if additional cover or 
other protective measures over the facilities are required. 

 
 Atmos Energy’s easement will be protected from washing and erosion during 

construction and/or repairs. 
 

 Equipment, materials, or excess dirt will not be stored on the easement during 
construction without the prior written approval of Atmos Energy. 

 
 Atmos Energy will not be responsible for damage to any allowed encroachments. 

 
 Atmos Energy reserves the right for future uses of this easement, including but not 

limited to, ingress and egress, reconstructing, removing, relocating, maintaining, 
operating, etc., of any of its facilities. 

 



Page 3 of 3 

 Impact/conflict analysis was based on and is limited to drawings and documents
submitted to Atmos Energy, as referenced above.  ANY change in scope of work
contained in these drawings must be resubmitted for re-review and approval.

You are not authorized to commence work until we have received a signed copy of this letter. 

If you have any questions or if I may be of additional assistance, please feel free to 
contact David Rosema, at 817-307-6069, or myself, at 979-774-2506. 

Sincerely, 

 Josh Norton 

Manager of Engineering Services 
Atmos Energy Corporation 
297 N Earl Rudder 
Bryan, TX 77802 

cc: Chris Wren 
Wyatt French 
Jerry Garcia 

Signature: 

Name: 

Title: 

Date: 

Bill Gravell Jr.

County Judge



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 45.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

SH29 at DB Wood Unintech Contract Amendment No. 7
Submitted By: Marie Walters, Road Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on Contract Amendment No. 7 to the SH 29 at
DB Wood Road Improvements contract between Williamson County and Unintech Consulting
Engineers, Inc. relating to the 2013 Road Bond Program.
Project: P237  Funding Source: Road Bonds

Background
This amendment increases Unintech’s labor rates in accordance with the executed contract, based on the
Consumer Price Index.  This will allow for the execution of a work authorization No. 3 to provide support for
pending condemnation hearings.  The current PSA amount of $1,700,000.00 will remain the same.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
SH29atDBWood-Unintech-Amendment7 
SH29atDBWood-Unintech-WA3 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 09:22 AM
Form Started By: Marie Walters Started On: 05/19/2021 03:42 PM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 



 1 

 

CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO.  7___ 

TO  

WILLIAMSON COUNTY CONTRACT FOR 

ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 

WILLIAMSON COUNTY ROAD BOND PROJECT:  

SH 29 at D.B. Wood Road Improvements  (“Project”) 
 

THIS CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO.  7  to Williamson County Contract for Engineering 

Services is by and between Williamson County, Texas, a political subdivision of the State of Texas, 

(the "County") and Unintech Consulting Engineers, Inc. (the "Engineer") and becomes effective 

as of the date of the last party’s execution below.  

 

WHEREAS, the County and the Engineer executed the Williamson County Contract for 

Engineering Services dated effective October 16, 2014 (the “Contract”);  

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 14 of the Contract, the terms of the Contract may be modified by 

a written fully executed Contract Amendment; 

 

WHEREAS, the “Compensation Cap” under Article 5 of the Contract limits the maximum amount 

payable under the Contract to $1,700,000 ; and,  

 

WHEREAS, the Rate Schedule in Exhibit D of the Contract are limited to the rates noted in said 

Exhibit D; and,  

 

WHEREAS, it has become necessary to amend the Contract.  

 

AGREEMENT 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, premises considered, the County and the Engineer agree that the Contract 

is amended as follows:  

 

I. The hourly Rates in the original Exhibit D of the Contract are hereby amended as shown 

in the attached revised Exhibit D (must be attached).  

 

All other terms of the Contract are unchanged and will remain in full force and effect.  

 

 

 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County and the Engineer have executed this Contract 

Amendment, in duplicate, to be effective as of the date of the last party’s execution below.  

 



 2 

ENGINEER:       COUNTY: 

 

By: ___________________________  By:  _________________________ 

 Signature      Signature 

 

__Kum Wing Chan, PE____________  ____________________________ 

Printed Name      Printed Name 

 

 

__Vice President________________   _____________________________ 

Title       Title 

 

 

__5/18/21      ___________________ 

Date       Date 

mawalters
MJW

mawalters
Typewritten Text
5/19/2021



Title 2021 Rate (per hour)

Project Manager $214.31

Senior Engineer $175.84

Project Engineer $148.37

Design Engineer $120.89

EIT $104.41

Drainage Engineer $142.87

Senior CADD Operator $104.41

Admin/Clerical $49.46

Survey Project Manager $175.84

Survey Technician $93.42

Survey Tech GPS/SIT $109.90

2-eMan Survey Crew $148.37

3 Man Survey Crew $175.84

Survey Admin $49.46

EXHIBIT  D

RATE SCHEDULE

Unintech Consulting Engineers, Inc.



WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 3 

 

WILLIAMSON COUNTY ROAD BOND PROJECT: 

 

SH 29 at D.B. Wood Road Intersection Improvements 

 

This Work Authorization is made pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Williamson 

County Contract for Engineering Services, being dated October 16, 2014 and entered into by 

and between Williamson County, Texas, a political subdivision of the State of Texas, (the 

"County") and Unintech Consulting Engineers, Inc. (the "Engineer"). 

 

 

Part1. The Engineer will provide the following Engineering Services set forth in Attachment 

“B” of this Work Authorization. 

 

Part 2. The maximum amount payable for services under this Work Authorization without 

modification is _$17, 861.51.   

 

Part 3.  Payment to the Engineer for the services established under this Work Authorization 

shall be made in accordance with the Contract. 

 

Part 4.  This Work Authorization shall become effective on the date of final acceptance and full 

execution of the parties hereto and shall terminate on August 31, 2021.  The Engineering 

Services set forth in Attachment “B” of this Work Authorization shall be fully completed on or 

before said date unless extended by a Supplemental Work Authorization.   

 

Part 5.  This Work Authorization does not waive the parties’ responsibilities and obligations 

provided under the Contract. 

 

Part 6.  County believes it has sufficient funds currently available and authorized for 

expenditure to finance the costs of this Work Authorization.  Engineer understands and agrees 

that County’s payment of amounts under this Work Authorization is contingent on the County 

receiving appropriations or other expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the 

exercise of reasonable administrative discretion, to continue to make payments under this 

Contract.  It is further understood and agreed by Engineer that County shall have the right to 

terminate this Contract at the end of any County fiscal year if the governing body of County 

does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by County’s budget for the fiscal year in 

question.  County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to 

Engineer. 

 

Part 7.  This Work Authorization is hereby accepted and acknowledged below. 

 

 

Continued next page 

 

 

 

 



 

 

EXECUTED this ___________day of ______________, _________________ 

 

ENGINEER:      COUNTY: 

Unintech Consulting Engineers, Inc.   Williamson County, Texas 

 

 

By:__________________________   By:____________________________ 

               Signature       Signature 

 

    Kum Wing Chan, PE                       ____________________________ 

    Printed Name      Printed Name 

      

            Vice President____________          _____________________________ 

    Title        Title 

 

 

 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS 

 

Attachment A - Services to be Provided by County 

 

Attachment B - Services to be Provided by Engineer 

 

Attachment C - Work Schedule 

 

Attachment D - Fee Schedule 

 

 

 

 

 

mawalters
MJW

mawalters
Typewritten Text
5/19/2021



 

ATTACHMENT A 

SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE COUNTY FOR  

SH 29 at D.B. Wood Intersection Improvements 

 

In general, Williamson County and its representatives to their best efforts will render services as follows: 

 

1. Name, business address, and phone number of County’s project manager. 

 

2. Assistance to the Engineer, as necessary, with obtaining data and information from other local, 

regional, State and Federal agencies required for this project. 

 

3. Provide available appropriate County data on file including plans and specifications that are 

deemed pertinent to the completion of the work required by the scope of services (including 

previous hydraulic studies, models, previous reports and studies, available existing traffic 

counts, and design year traffic projections). 

 

4. Provide available criteria and full information as to the client's requirements for the project. 

Provide examples of acceptable format for the required deliverables. 

 

5. Provide information on any meetings/discussions held with adjoining property owners that 

may impact the project. 

 

6. Provide timely reviews and decisions necessary for the Engineer to maintain the project work 

schedule. Review recommendations offered by the Engineer, progress of work, and final 

acceptance of all documents. 

 

7. Submittal of documentation and permits to regulatory agencies for review and comment, when 

specified. 

 

8. Support project development efforts with stakeholders, coordinate meetings and interface with 

stakeholders, as needed. 

 

9. Post and maintain project information for public consumption on the County website. 

 

10. Assist with Coordination between the Engineer and the County’s other consultants. 

 

11. Negotiate with all utility companies for any agreements and/or relocations required. 

 

12. Provide an agent as necessary to secure proposed ROW and relocate/remove improvements on 

proposed ROW. 

 

 



 

ATTACHMENT B 

SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE ENGINEER FOR  

SH 29 at D.B. Wood Intersection Improvements 

 

PROJECT  DESCRIPTION 

Project Limits 

The SH 29 at D.B. Wood Road Improvement project ("Project") involves improvements to 

approximately 5,000 linear feet of SH 29, 2,000 linear feet of D.B. Wood Road north of SH29, 

and 1,000 linear feet of D.B. Wood Road south of SH 29.  

 

Proposed Facility 

The proposed facility includes a dual left turn on southbound DB Wood Road, dedicated right 

turn on northbound DB Wood Road, and a deceleration/turn lane for westbound SH 29 to 

northbound D.B. Wood Road.  

Design Criteria 

Not applicable. 
 

1. CONDEMNATION HEARING EXHIBITS 
 

a. Prepare preliminary and final condemnation hearing exhibits for two ROW Parcels. 

b. Exhibits (each exhibit should include high-resolution aerial imagery): 

i. A vicinity map with an overall project layout and limits (beginning and end) 

ii. Existing and proposed typical road sections 

iii. Parent tract (including area) 

iv. Right-of-way acquisition (including parcel acquisition and remainder areas), 

v. Proposed improvements adjacent to the property.   
 

Deliverables: Preliminary and Final Condemnation Hearing Exhibits in pdf format.  
 

2. CONDEMNATION HEARINGS 

a. Engineer will attend meetings remotely with the attorney to prepare for the hearings.  

b. Engineer will attend two condemnation hearings in-person and testify as an expert witness on 

the Project to discuss matters related to drainage, grading, environmental compliance, basic 

hydrologic, hydraulic and geotechnical information. 

 

3. EXCLUSIONS: 

The following items are not included in this work authorization: 

• SURVEYING 

• PLAN PREPARATION (PS&E) SERVICES 

• BIDDING PHASE SERVICES 

• CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 

• UTILITY COORDINATION OR RELOCATION ESTIMATES 

• RIGHT OF ENTRY TO PRIVATE PROPERTIES 

  



 

ATTACHMENT C 

WORK SCHEDULE 
 

 

The start date is the date of execution of the Work Authorization and the end date is 8/31/2021.  



Attachment D - Fee Schedule - Work Authorization No. 3
(Time & Material Payment )

Highway: Sh 29 at DB wood Improvement Project
County: Williamson County
Limits:
Scope: Preparation of Hearing Exhibits and Testifying at the Hearings

SUBPROVIDER:  Unintech Consulting Engineers, Inc.

TASK DESCRIPTION Project Manage EIT

Senior CADD 

Operator Fee

CONTRACT RATE PER HOUR 214.31$      104.41$      104.41$      

Additional Services

Deposition w/paralegal (remote Meetings) 12 2,571.72$   
Attend two condemnation hearings in-person and testify 

as an expert witness 16 3,428.96$   

Prepare preliminary and final condemnation hearing 

exhibits for two ROW Parcels. (See Attachment B, Part 1) 18 8 16 6,363.42$   

Project and document Review 24 5,143.44$   

Excluded

Deliver revised ROW parcels, signed documents to the 

City of Georgetown, Williamson County and TxDOT -$            

HOURS SUB-TOTALS 70 8 16
SUBTOTAL 160 (150) $15,001.70 $835.28 $1,670.56 $17,507.54

DIRECT EXPENSES QUANTITY UNIT RATE TOTAL
MILEAGE ( One Round Trip) 220  mile 0.550$        121.00$      
CDs 1  each 1.50$          1.50$          
Certified Letter Return Receipt 1  each 6.47$          6.47$          
OVERNIGHT MAIL - OVERSIZED BOX 1  each 35.00$        35.00$        
LODGING/HOTEL (TAXES/FEES NOT INCLUDED) 1 day/person 110.00$      110.00$      
LODGING/HOTEL - TAXES AND FEES 1 day/person 20.00$        20.00$        
MEALS (EXCLUDING ALCOHOL & TIPS) (OVERNIGHT 

STAY REQUIRED) 1 day/person 60.00$        60.00$        
Type II ROW Monuments-Poured (for control points) unit 100.00$      -$            
Deed Copies sheet 2.00$          -$            

SUBTOTAL OTHER DIRECT EXPENSES 353.97$      

TOTAL  $17,861.51

Page 1 of 1 Exhibit D



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 46.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

Resolution for Condemnation
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road

Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a resolution determining the necessity and
authorizing the use of eminent domain to condemn (0.304 acres) required for the construction of
Sam Bass Road, and take appropriate action. (John W. Speck III and Glenda Neans-Speck)

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Speck Resolution 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 10:48 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 05/20/2021 10:39 AM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 



Sam Bass- Parcel 35 

00472509.DOC 

IN THE COMMISSIONERS’ COURT 
OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS 

 
RESOLUTION 

 
 WHEREAS, the Commissioners’ Court of Williamson County, Texas, has found 

and determined that in order to promote the public safety, to facilitate the safety and 

movement of traffic, and to preserve the financial investment of the public in its 

roadways, public necessity requires acquisition of fee simple title to that certain tract of 

land being 0.304 acres (Parcel 35) described by metes and bounds in Exhibit “A” owned 

by JOHN W. SPECK, III AND GLENDA NEANS-SPECK for the purpose of 

constructing, reconstructing, maintaining, and operating Corridor H (Sam Bass Rd) 

roadway improvements (“Project”), excluding all the oil, gas, and sulphur which can be 

removed from beneath said real property, without any right whatever remaining to the 

owner of such oil, gas, and sulphur of ingress to or egress from the surface of said real 

property for the purpose of exploring, developing, or mining of the same, as a part of the 

improvements to the Project, at such locations as are necessary and that such 

constructing, reconstructing, maintaining, and operating shall extend across and upon, 

and will cross, run through, and be upon the hereinafter described real properties; and 

 WHEREAS, the Commissioners’ Court of Williamson County, Texas, has, 

through agents employed by the said office, entered into bona fide good faith negotiations 

with the owners of the hereinafter described properties and has failed to agree with the 

owners on the compensation and damages, if any, due to said owners.  Now, therefore, 

the Commissioners’ Court of Williamson County, Texas is authorizing the use of its 

power of eminent domain to condemn property. 



 

 
 

2 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSIONERS’ COURT OF THE COUNTY 

OF WILLIAMSON, that the County Attorney or his designated agent be and he is hereby 

authorized and directed to file or cause to be filed against the owners of any interest in, 

and the holders of any lien secured by, the following described tracts of land, described in 

Exhibit “A” attached hereto, a suit in eminent domain to acquire the property interests for 

the aforesaid purposes; and 

It is the intent of the Commissioners’ Court that this resolution authorizes the 

condemnation of all property interests required to complete the construction and 

maintenance of the Project and associated public purposes.  If it is later determined that 

there are any errors in the descriptions contained herein or if later surveys contain more 

accurate revised descriptions, the County Attorney is authorized to have such errors 

corrected or revisions made without the necessity of obtaining a new resolution of the 

Commissioners’ Court authorizing the condemnation of the corrected or revised Property. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Attorney or his designated agent 

be and he is hereby authorized and directed to incur such expenses and to employ such 

experts as he shall deem necessary to assist in the prosecution of such suit in eminent 

domain, including, but not limited to, appraisers, engineers, and land use planners or 

other required expert consultants. 

 Adopted this ______ day of __________________________, 2021. 

 
      ____________________________ 
      Bill Gravell, Jr. 
      Williamson County Judge 



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

County: Williamson                        Page 1 of 5 

Parcel No.: 35                                         May 4, 2020 

Highway: C.R. 175 (Sam Bass Road)        

Limits:  From: F.M. 1431 

To: 1,000’ East of Wyoming Springs Drive 

 
 

FN 46132                                                  SAM Job No. 38216 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION FOR PARCEL 35 
 
DESCRIPTION OF A 0.304 ACRE (13,230 SQ. FT.) PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN THE J.H. DILLARD 
SURVEY, ABSTRACT 179, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A 1.056 ACRE TRACT OF 
LAND, DESCRIBED IN A CORRECTION DEED JOHN W. SPECK, III AND GLENDA NEANS-SPECK, 
RECORDED JANUARY 29, 2004 IN DOCUMENT NO. 2004007194, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF 
WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.W.C.TX.); SAID 0.304 ACRE (13,230 SQ. FT.) PARCEL, AS SHOWN 
ON A PLAT PREPARED BY SAM, LLC, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY METES AND 
BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
COMMENCING at a 5/8-inch iron rod found 502.74 feet left of County Road 175 (Sam Bass Road) Engineer’s 
Centerline Station (E.C.S.) 322+06.13 on the east line of a 1.05 acre tract of land, described in a deed to John W. 
Speck, III and Glenda Neans-Speck, recorded in Document No. 2003020095, O.P.R.W.C.TX., for the northwest 
corner of a 2.546 acre tract of land, described in a deed to Community Christian Church of Round Rock, Texas, 
recorded in Volume 1799, Page 1, Official Records of Williamson County, Texas (O.R.W.C.TX.); 
 
THENCE S 27°43’04” W, with the common line of said 2.546 acre tract and said 1.05 acre tract, a distance of 
425.90 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod with an aluminum cap stamped “WILLIAMSON COUNTY” (Surface Coordinates: 
N=10,169,574.41, E=3,111,995.60) set 78.64 feet left of Sam Bass Road E.C.S. 321+67.05 on the proposed 
north right-of-way line of Sam Bass Road, for the northeast corner and the POINT OF BEGINNING of the parcel 
described herein; 
 
1) THENCE S 27°43’04” W, departing the proposed north right-of-way line of said Sam Bass Road, with the 
common line of said 1.056 acre tract and said 2.546 acre tract, a distance of 58.85 feet to a calculated point on 
the existing north right-of-way line of Sam Bass Road, a variable width right-of-way, no record information found, 
for the southwest corner of said 2.546 acre tract, same being the southeast corner of said 1.056 acre tract and the 
parcel described herein; 

 
2) THENCE N 67°27’04” W, departing the common line of said 1.056 acre tract and said 2.546 acre tract, with the 
existing north right-of-way line of said Sam Bass Road, a distance of 200.60 feet to a calculated point on the 
existing east right-of-way line of Deer Trail Circle, a 50 foot wide right-of-way easement, recorded in Volume 624, 
Page 808, D.R.W.C.TX.; 
 
3) THENCE N 65°58’59” W, departing the intersection of the existing north right-of-way line of said Sam Bass 
Road and existing east right-of-way line of said Deer Trail Circle, over and across said Deer Trail Circle, a 
distance of 25.62 feet to a calculated point on the centerline of said Deer Trail Circle, for the southwest corner of 
said 1.056 acre tract and the parcel described herein; 
 
THENCE with the centerline of said Deer Trail Circle, the following two (2) courses and distances numbered 4-5: 

4) N 36°37’20” E, a distance of 47.20 feet to a calculated point, said point being the beginning of a curve 

to the left, and  



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

County: Williamson                        Page 2 of 5 

Parcel No.: 35                                         May 4, 2020 

Highway: C.R. 175 (Sam Bass Road)        

Limits:  From: F.M. 1431 

To: 1,000’ East of Wyoming Springs Drive 

 
 

FN 46132                                                  SAM Job No. 38216 

5) With said curve to the left, an arc distance of 30.34 feet, through a central angle of 07°19’49”, having a 

radius of 237.12 feet, and a chord that bears N 32°57’25” E, a distance of 30.32 feet to a calculated point 

103.23 feet left of Sam Bass Road E.C.S. 319+56.43 on the proposed north right-of-way line of said Sam 

Bass Road, for the northwest corner of the parcel described herein; 

6) THENCE S 65°10’15” E, departing the centerline of said Deer Trail Circle, with the proposed north right-of-way 
line of said Sam Bass Road, over and across said Deer Trail Circle, a distance of 25.07 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod 
with an aluminum cap stamped “WILLIAMSON COUNTY” set 101.21 feet left of Sam Bass Road E.C.S. 
319+81.42 on the existing east right-of-way line of said Deer Trail Circle, from which a 1/2-inch iron rod found, 
bears with a curve to the left, an arc distance of 94.44 feet, through a central angle of 20°38’36”, having a radius 
of 262.12 feet, and a chord that bears N 18°32’38” E, a distance of 93.93 feet; 
 
THENCE departing the existing east right-of-way line of said Deer Trail Circle, continuing with the proposed north 

right-of-way line of said Sam Bass Road, over and across said 1.056 acre tract, the following two (2) courses and 

distances numbered 7-8: 

7) S 20°53’49” E, a distance of 30.12 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod with an aluminum cap stamped 

“WILLIAMSON COUNTY” set 78.51 feet left of Sam Bass Road E.C.S. 320+01.23, said point being the 

beginning of a curve to the right, and  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS SPACE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

County: Williamson                        Page 3 of 5 

Parcel No.: 35                                         May 4, 2020 

Highway: C.R. 175 (Sam Bass Road)        

Limits:  From: F.M. 1431 

To: 1,000’ East of Wyoming Springs Drive 

 
 

FN 46132                                                  SAM Job No. 38216 

8) With said curve to the right, an arc distance of 168.89 feet, through a central angle of 02°44’58”, having 
a radius of 3,519.69 feet, and a chord that bears S 69°13’19” E, a distance of 168.87 feet to the POINT 
OF BEGINNING, and containing 0.304 acres (13,230 sq. ft.) of land, more or less of which 0.044 acre 
(1,905 sq. ft.) lies within the existing right-of-way of Deer Trail Circle.. 

 
 
This property description is accompanied by a separate plat of even date. 
 
Bearing Basis: 
All bearings shown are based on the Texas Coordinate System, Central Zone, NAD 83/2011. All distances shown 
are surface and may be converted to grid by dividing by a Surface Adjustment Factor of 1.00012. Units: U.S. 
Survey Feet. 
  
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS    § 
     §                    KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS     § 
 
 
That I, Scott C. Brashear, a Registered Professional Land Surveyor, do hereby certify that the above description 
is true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief and that the property described herein was determined 
by a survey made on the ground under my direction and supervision. 
 
WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL at Austin, Travis County, Texas, on the date shown below. 
 
 
 
 
SURVEYING AND MAPPING, LLC     ________________________________ 
4801 Southwest Pkwy                                                                      Scott C. Brashear                      Date 
Building Two, Suite 100       Registered Professional Land Surveyor 
Austin, Texas 78735       No. 6660 – State of Texas 
TX. Firm No. 10064300 



RBell
Polygon

RBell
Callout
0.134 ac.





   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 47.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

Resolution for Condemnation
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road

Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a resolution determining the necessity and
authorizing the use of eminent domain to condemn (0.030 acres) required for the construction of
Sam Bass Road, and take appropriate action. (Jason Hatfield and Kasey Hatfield as
Co-Trustees of the JHK Trust)

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Hatfield Resolution 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 10:48 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 05/20/2021 10:42 AM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 



Sam Bass- Parcel 52 

IN THE COMMISSIONERS’ COURT 
OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS 

RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS, the Commissioners’ Court of Williamson County, Texas, has found 

and determined that in order to promote the public safety, to facilitate the safety and 

movement of traffic, and to preserve the financial investment of the public in its 

roadways, public necessity requires acquisition of fee simple title to that certain tract of 

land being 0.030 acres (Parcel 52) described by metes and bounds in Exhibit “A” owned 

by JASON HATFIELD AND KASEY HATFIELD AS CO-TRUSTEES 

OF THE JHK TRUST for the purpose of constructing, reconstructing, 

maintaining, and operating Corridor H (Sam Bass Rd) roadway improvements 

(“Project”), excluding all the oil, gas, and sulphur which can be removed from beneath 

said real property, without any right whatever remaining to the owner of such oil, gas, 

and sulphur of ingress to or egress from the surface of said real property for the purpose 

of exploring, developing, or mining of the same, as a part of the improvements to the 

Project, at such locations as are necessary and that such constructing, reconstructing, 

maintaining, and operating shall extend across and upon, and will cross, run 

through, and be upon the hereinafter described real properties; and 

WHEREAS, the Commissioners’ Court of Williamson County, Texas, has, 

through agents employed by the said office, entered into bona fide good faith negotiations 

with the owners of the hereinafter described properties and has failed to agree with the 

owners on the compensation and damages, if any, due to said owners.  Now, therefore, 

the Commissioners’ Court of Williamson County, Texas is authorizing the use of its 

power of eminent domain to condemn property. 

00472511.DOC 



 

 
 

2 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSIONERS’ COURT OF THE COUNTY 

OF WILLIAMSON, that the County Attorney or his designated agent be and he is hereby 

authorized and directed to file or cause to be filed against the owners of any interest in, 

and the holders of any lien secured by, the following described tracts of land, described in 

Exhibit “A” attached hereto, a suit in eminent domain to acquire the property interests for 

the aforesaid purposes; and 

It is the intent of the Commissioners’ Court that this resolution authorizes the 

condemnation of all property interests required to complete the construction and 

maintenance of the Project and associated public purposes.  If it is later determined that 

there are any errors in the descriptions contained herein or if later surveys contain more 

accurate revised descriptions, the County Attorney is authorized to have such errors 

corrected or revisions made without the necessity of obtaining a new resolution of the 

Commissioners’ Court authorizing the condemnation of the corrected or revised Property. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Attorney or his designated agent 

be and he is hereby authorized and directed to incur such expenses and to employ such 

experts as he shall deem necessary to assist in the prosecution of such suit in eminent 

domain, including, but not limited to, appraisers, engineers, and land use planners or 

other required expert consultants. 

 Adopted this ______ day of __________________________, 2021. 

 
      ____________________________ 
      Bill Gravell, Jr. 
      Williamson County Judge 



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

County: Williamson              Page 1 of 4 

Parcel No.: 52                                     March 26, 2021 

Highway: C.R. 175 (Sam Bass Road)        

Limits:  From: F.M. 1431 

To: 1,000’ East of Wyoming Springs Drive 
 
 

FN 45952                                                  SAM Job No. 38216 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION FOR PARCEL 52 
 
 
DESCRIPTION OF A 0.030 ACRE (1,288 SQ. FT.) PARCEL LOCATED IN THE J.H. DILLARD SURVEY, 
ABSTRACT 179, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF LOT 19, GREAT OAKS 
SUBDIVISION, A SUBDIVISION OF RECORD IN CABINET B, SLIDE 372, PLAT RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON 
COUNTY, TEXAS (P.R.W.C.TX.), DESCRIBED IN A DEED TO THE JHK TRUST, RECORDED APRIL 11, 2016 
IN DOCUMENT NO. 2016030052, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
(O.P.R.W.C.TX.); SAID 0.030 ACRE (1,288 SQ. FT.) PARCEL, AS SHOWN ON A PLAT PREPARED BY SAM, 
LLC, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY METES AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
COMMENCING at a 1/2-inch iron rod found 22.12 feet right of County Road 175 (Sam Bass Road) Engineer’s 
Centerline Station (E.C.S.) 334+05.69 on the existing south right-of-way line of County Road 175 (Sam Bass 
Road) a variable width right-of-way, no record information found, for the northeast corner of Lot 17 of said Great 
Oaks Subdivision, described in a deed to Chad Frers and Brandi Frers, recorded in Document No. 2008057823, 
O.P.R.W.C.TX., same being the northwest corner of Lot 18 of said Great Oaks Subdivision, described in a deed 
to Chad Taylor and Jennifer Taylor, recorded in Document No. 2009040031, O.P.R.W.C.TX.; 
 
THENCE S 57°41’08” E, departing the common line of said Lot 17 and said Lot 18, with the existing south right-
of-way line of said Sam Bass Road, a distance of 158.93 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod with an aluminum cap 
stamped “WILLIAMSON COUNTY” (1/2-inch iron rod found replaced with 5/8-inch iron rod with an aluminum cap 
stamped “WILLIAMSON COUNTY”) (Surface Coordinates: N=10,168,884.75, E=3,113,214.32) set 17.36 feet 
right of Sam Bass Road E.C.S. 335+65.60 on the proposed south right-of-way line of Sam Bass Road, for the 
northeast corner of said Lot 18, same being the northwest corner of said Lot 19 and POINT OF BEGINNING of 
the parcel described herein;  
 
1) THENCE S 57°41’08” E, departing the proposed south right-of-way line of said Sam Bass Road, continuing 
with the existing south right-of-way line of said Sam Bass Road and the north line of a 5-feet wide Road Widening 
Easement show on said Great Oaks subdivision plat, a distance of 204.16 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod found, for the 
northwest corner of Lot WW of said Great Oaks Subdivision, described in a deed to TAL/TEX Inc., recorded in 
Volume 1301, Page 850, O.P.R.W.C.TX., now known as Aquasource Utility, Inc., by merger recorded in 
Document No. 2001082279, O.P.R.W.C.TX., same being the northeast corner of said Lot 19 and the parcel 
described herein; 
 
2) THENCE S 32°31’56” W, departing the existing south right-of-way line of said Sam Bass Road, with the 
common line of said Lot 19 and said Lot WW, crossing at a distance of 4.94 feet the south line of said 5-feet wide 
Road Widening Easement, and continuing for a total distance of 10.97 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod with an 
aluminum cap stamped “WILLIAMSON COUNTY” set 19.00 feet right of Sam Bass Road E.C.S. 337+70.01 on 
the proposed south right-of-way line of said Sam Bass Road, for the southeast corner of the parcel described 
herein; 
 



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

County: Williamson              Page 2 of 4 

Parcel No.: 52                                     March 26, 2021 

Highway: C.R. 175 (Sam Bass Road)        

Limits:  From: F.M. 1431 

To: 1,000’ East of Wyoming Springs Drive 
 
 

FN 45952                                                  SAM Job No. 38216 

3) THENCE N 55°04’08” W, departing the common line of said Lot 19 and said Lot WW, with the proposed south 
right-of-way line of said Sam Bass Road, over and across said Lot 19, crossing at a distance of 131.78 feet the 
south line of said 5-feet wide Road Widening Easement, and continuing for a total distance of 204.33 feet to a 
5/8-inch iron rod with an aluminum cap stamped “WILLIAMSON COUNTY” set 19.00 feet right of Sam Bass Road 
E.C.S. 335+65.68, for the southwest corner of the parcel described herein; 
 
4) THENCE N 32°12’52” E, continuing with the proposed south right-of-way line of said Sam Bass Road, a 
distance of 1.65 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING, and containing 0.030 acre (1,288 sq. ft.) of land, more or 
less. 
 
 
 
 
This property description is accompanied by a separate plat of even date. 
 
 
 
Bearing Basis: 
All bearings shown are based on the Texas Coordinate System, Central Zone, NAD 83/2011. All distances shown 
are surface and may be converted to grid by dividing by a Surface Adjustment Factor of 1.00012. Units: U.S. 
Survey Feet. 
  
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS    § 
     §                    KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS  § 
 
 
That I, Scott C. Brashear, a Registered Professional Land Surveyor, do hereby certify that the above description 
is true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief and that the property described herein was determined 
by a survey made on the ground under my direction and supervision. 
 
WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL at Austin, Travis County, Texas, on the date shown below. 
 
 
 
 
SURVEYING AND MAPPING, LLC     ________________________________ 
4801 Southwest Pkwy                                                                     Scott C. Brashear.                          Date 
Building Two, Suite 100       Registered Professional Land Surveyor 
Austin, Texas 78735       No. 6660 – State of Texas 
TX. Firm No. 10064300 









   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 48.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

CR 366 Contract
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road

Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a real estate contract with Daryl R. Neans for
right of way needed on the CR 366 project (Parcel 6). Funding Source: Road Bonds P296

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Neans Contract 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 11:01 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 05/20/2021 10:44 AM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 



























dchilds
Text Box
EXHIBIT "B"



dchilds
Text Box
EXHIBIT "B"



dchilds
Text Box
EXHIBIT "B"







Notice of Confidentiality Rights:  If you are a natural person, you may remove or strike any of the 
following information from this instrument before it is filed for record in the public records: your 
Social Security Number or your Driver's License Number. 
 

 
Form ROW-N-14 
(Rev. 07/13) 
Page 1 of 3 
 

*N14*  

DEED 
CR366/FM 397 Intersection Right of Way 

 
TxDOT ROW CSJ:   0320-04-028 
 
Parcel No.:  6 
 
Grantor(s), whether one or more:   

 
 Daryl R. Neans 
 
Grantor’s Mailing Address (including county): 
 
_____________________________ 
_____________________________ 
______________________ County 
 
 
Grantee:   
 
 The State of Texas, acting by and through the Texas Transportation Commission 
 
Grantee’s Authority: 
 
 The Texas Transportation Commission is authorized under the Texas Transportation Code to purchase land 

and such other property rights (including requesting that counties and municipalities acquire highway right of 
way) deemed necessary or convenient to a state highway or turnpike project to be constructed, reconstructed, 
maintained, widened, straightened, or extended, or to accomplish any purpose related to the location, 
construction, improvement, maintenance, beautification, preservation, or operation of a state highway or 
turnpike project. 

 
 The Texas Transportation Commission is also authorized under the Texas Transportation Code, Chapter 203 

to acquire or request to be acquired such other property rights deemed necessary or convenient for the 
purposes of operating a state highway or turnpike project, with control of access as necessary to facilitate the 
flow of traffic and promote the public safety and welfare on both non-controlled facilities and designated 
controlled access highways and turnpike projects. 

 
Grantee's Mailing Address (including county): 
 
Texas Department of Transportation 
125 E. 11th Street 
Austin, Texas 78701 
Travis County 
 

dchilds
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT "C"



Form ROW-N-14 
(Rev. 07/13) 
Page 2 of 3 
 
Consideration: 
 
 The sum of Ten and no/100 Dollars ($10.00) and other good and valuable consideration to Grantor in hand 

paid by Williamson County, Texas, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, and for which no lien is 
retained, either expressed or implied. 

 
Property: 
 
 All of that certain tract or parcel of land in Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly described in 

the attached Exhibit A (the “Property”). 
 
Reservations from and Exceptions to Conveyance and Warranty: 
 
 This conveyance is made by Grantor and accepted by Grantee subject to the following:  
                 

1. Visible and apparent easements not appearing of record. 
 

2. Any discrepancies, conflicts, or shortages in area or boundary lines or any encroachments or any 
overlapping of improvements which a current survey would show.  

 
3. Easements, restrictions, reservations, covenants, conditions, oil and gas leases, mineral 

severances, and encumbrances for taxes and assessments (other than liens and conveyances) 
presently of record in the Official Public Records of Williamson County, Texas, that affect the 
property, but only to the extent that said items are still valid and in force and effect at this time. 

 
Grantor reserves all of the oil, gas, sulfur in and under the Property but waives all rights of ingress and 
egress to the surface thereof for the purpose of exploring, developing, mining or drilling for same; 
however, nothing in this reservation shall affect the title and rights of the Grantee, its successors and 
assigns, to take and use all other minerals and materials thereon, therein and thereunder. 
 
Grantor is retaining title to the following improvements (“Retained Improvements”) located on the 
Property, to wit:  NONE 
 
 Access on and off Grantor’s remaining property to and from the State highway facility shall be permitted 
except to the extent that such access is expressly prohibited by the provisions set out in Exhibit “A”.  Grantor 
acknowledges that such access on and off the State highway facility is subject to regulation as may be 
determined by the Texas Department of Transportation to be necessary in the interest of public safety or by 
applicable local municipal or county zoning, platting or permitting requirements. 
 

 
GRANTOR, for the Consideration and subject to the Reservations from Conveyance and the Exceptions to 
Conveyance and Warranty, grants, sells and conveys to Grantee the Property, together with all and singular 
the rights and appurtenances thereto in anywise belonging, to have and to hold it to Grantee and Grantee’s 
successors and assigns forever.  Grantor binds Grantor and Grantor’s heirs, successors and assigns to Warrant 
and Forever Defend all and singular the Property to Grantee and Grantee’s successors and  assigns against 
every person whomsoever lawfully claiming or to the claim the same or any part thereof, except as to the 
Reservations from Conveyance and the Exceptions to Conveyance and Warranty. 

 
 
EXECUTED on the date(s) of acknowledgement indicated below. 
 
 



Form ROW-N-14 
(Rev. 07/13) 
Page 3 of 3 
 
GRANTOR: 
  
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Daryl R. Neans 
 
 
 
 
 
 
               
 

 
 

Acknowledgement 
 
 
 

State of Texas 
 
County of ________________ 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on         
   by Daryl R. Neans, in the capacity and for the purposes and consideration recited herein.  
 
 
 
 
               
        Notary Public—State of Texas 
 



Parcel 6.1 

NEANS(6)--SW Deed to Wilco for 0.5140 ac. CR366 remainder (DC 5.17.21 clean) (00472317xA08F8).doc 

 DEED 
 

 
THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
 § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 
 
NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY RIGHTS: IF YOU ARE A NATURAL PERSON, YOU MAY 
REMOVE OR STRIKE ANY OF THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION FROM THIS 
INSTRUMENT BEFORE IT IS FILED IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS: YOUR SOCIAL 
SECURITY NUMBER OR YOUR DRIVER’S LICENSE NUMBER. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS: 
 
 That the DARYL R. NEANS, a single person, hereinafter referred to as Grantor, whether 
one or more, for and in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other good and 
valuable consideration to Grantor in hand paid by Williamson County, Texas, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, and for which no lien is retained, either 
expressed or implied, have this day Sold and by these presents do Grant, Bargain, Sell and 
Convey unto WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, all that certain tract or parcel of land lying 
and being situated in the County of Williamson, State of Texas, along with any improvements 
thereon, being more particularly described as follows: 
 

Being a 0.5140 acre (22,390 square foot) parcel of land out of the W. J. Baker Survey, 
ABSTRACT NO. 65, in Williamson County, Texas; said parcel of land being more 
particularly described by metes and bounds in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and made a 
part hereof. (Parcel 6.1) 

 
SAVE AND EXCEPT, HOWEVER, it is expressly understood and agreed that Grantor is 
retaining title to the following improvements located on the property described in said Exhibit 
“A” to wit:  NONE 
 
RESERVATIONS FROM AND EXCEPTIONS TO CONVEYANCE AND WARRANTY:  
 
 Visible and apparent easements not appearing of record; 
 
 Any discrepancies, conflicts, or shortages in area or boundary lines or any 
encroachments or any overlapping of improvements which a current survey would show; 
 
 Easements, restrictions, reservations, covenants, conditions, oil and gas leases, mineral 
severances, and encumbrances for taxes and assessments (other than liens and conveyances) 
presently of record in the Official Public Records of Williamson County, Texas, that affect the 
property, but only to the extent that said items are still valid and in force and effect at this time. 
 
   
 

dchilds
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT "D"



 

 2. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the property herein described and herein conveyed together with 
all and singular the rights and appurtenances thereto in any wise belonging unto Williamson 
County, Texas and its assigns forever; and Grantor does hereby bind itself, its heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors and assigns to Warrant and Forever Defend all and singular the said 
premises herein conveyed unto Williamson County, Texas and its assigns against every person 
whomsoever lawfully claiming or to claim the same or any part thereof by, through, or under 
Grantor, but not otherwise. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument is executed on this the        day of                        , 
2021. 
 
 
GRANTOR:  
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Daryl R. Neans   
 
 

 
 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
STATE OF TEXAS § 
 § 
COUNTY OF ________________ § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on this the  ___ day of         , 
2021 by Daryl R. Neans, in the capacity and for the purposes and consideration recited therein. 
 
 
            
 
      Notary Public, State of Texas  
 



 

 3. 

 
 
 
PREPARED IN THE OFFICE OF: 
     Sheets & Crossfield, PLLC 
     309 East Main 
     Round Rock, Texas 78664     
 
GRANTEE’S MAILING ADDRESS: 
     Williamson County, Texas 
     Attn: County Auditor 
     710 Main Street, Suite 101 
     Georgetown, Texas 78626     
 
AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: 
      
 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 49.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

Interlocal Agreement
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road

Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an Interlocal Agreement Regarding Design
and Installation of Temporary Traffic Signal with the Liberty Hill ISD.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
LHISD Agreement 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 11:15 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 05/20/2021 10:46 AM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT REGARDING
DESIGN AND INSTALLATION OF TEMPORARY TRAFFIC SIGNAL

THE STATE OF TEXAS
KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS:

O
N
O
n
Y
O

COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON

THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into between the
Liberty Hill ISD (the “LHISD”) and Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of
Texas (the “County”. In this Agreement, the LHISD and the County are sometimes
individually referred to as “a Party” and collectively referred to as “the Parties”.

WHEREAS,the LHISD desires to pay for the design and installation of a temporary
traffic signal at the intersection of Ronald Reagan Blvd. and Santa Rita Blvd. (the “LHISD
Project”); and

WHEREAS, the County desires to cooperate with the LHISD to facilitate the
construction ofthe LHISD Project; and

NOW, THEREFORE,in consideration of the foregoing premises and the mutual
promises and agreements of the Parties contained in this Agreement, the Parties agree as follows:

L
PURPOSE

11 General. The purpose of this Agreement is to provide for the County’s
installation of the LHISD Project at the approximate location shown on Exhibit “A.

1.02 Installation of LHISD Project. The County shall install the LHISD Project. The
Parties agree that the LHISD Project is temporary, and that a permanenttraffic signal will be
installed by the County at a future date

IL.
CONSTRUCTION OF LHISD PROJECT

2.01 General. The Parties mutually acknowledge and agree that the County shall,
subject to the terms sated herein, construct all physical improvements that constitute the LHISD
Project.

2.02 Design and Installation of LHISD Project. The County shall be responsible for
design andinstallation of the LHISD project. The LHISDshall be solely responsible for payment
of all costs related to the design and installation of the LHISD Project.

406491 THC

CR 200 ILA Georgetown



2.03 Permits. The County shall be responsible for obtaining permits, if any, required
for the LHISD Project.

2.04 Maintenance. The County will maintain the LHISD Project upon completion,
until a permanentsignalis installed.

I.
LHISD OBLIGATION

3.01 LHISD Project Design and Construction Costs. The LHISD shall be
responsible for 100% ofall costs related to the design and installation of the LHISD Project,
currently estimated at $290,000. The County shall submit invoices to LHISD forcosts related to
the design of and installation. Payments shall be due 30 days after the LHISD has received
invoices for the LHISD Project from the County.

IV.
DISPUTES

4.01. Material Breach; Notice and Opportunity to Cure.

(a) In the event that one Party believes that another Party has materially breached one
of the provisions of this Agreement, the non-defaulting Party will make written demand to cure
and give the defaulting Party up to 30 days to cure such material breach or, if the curative action
cannot reasonably be completed within 30 days, the defaulting Party will commencethe curative
action within 30 days and thereafter diligently pursue the curative action to completion.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, any matters specified in the default notice which may be cured
solely by the payment of money must be cured within 10 days after receipt of the notice. This
applicable time period must pass before the non-defaulting Party may initiate any remedies
available to the non-defaulting party due to such breach.

(b) Any non-defaulting Party will mitigate direct or consequential damage arising
from any breachor default to the extent reasonably possible underthe circumstances.

(c) The Parties agree that they will negotiate in good faith to resolve any disputes and
may engage in non-binding mediation,arbitration or otheralternative dispute resolution methods
as recommendedbythe lawsof the State of Texas.

4.02 Equitable Relief. In recognition that failure in the performance of the Parties’
respective obligations could not be adequately compensated in money damagesalone,the Parties
agrees that after providing notice and an opportunity to cure in accordance with Section 4.01
above, the Parties shall have the right to request any court, agency or other governmental
authority of appropriate jurisdiction to grant any and all remedies which are appropriate to assure
conformance to the provisions of this Agreement. The defaulting Party shall be liable to the
other for all costs actually incurred in pursuing such remedies, including reasonable attorney's



fees, and for any penalties or fines as a result of the failure to comply with the terms including,
without limitation, the right to obtain a writ of mandamus or an injunction requiring the
governing body of the defaulting party to levy and collect rates and charges or other revenues
sufficient to pay the amounts owed under this Agreement.

4.03 Agreement’s Remedies Not Exclusive. ‘The provisions of this Agreement
providing remedies in the event of a Party’s breach are not intended to be exclusive remedies.
The Parties retain, except to the extent released or waived by the express terms of this
Agreement, all rights at law and in equity to enforce the terms of this Agreement.

V.
GENERAL PROVISIONS

5.01 Authority. This Agreement is made in part under the authority conferred in
Chapter 791, Texas Government Code.

5.02 Severability. The provisions of this Agreement are severable and, if any
provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid for any reason by a court or agency of
competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Agreement will not be affected and this Agreement
will be construed as if the invalid portion had never been containedherein.

5.03 Payments from Current Revenues. Any payments required to be made by a
Party under this Agreement will be paid from current revenues or other funds lawfully available
to the Party for such purpose.

5.04 Cooperation. The Parties agree to cooperate at all times in good faith to
effectuate the purposes and intent of this Agreement.

5.05 Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the Parties
regarding the subject matter hereof and supersedesall prior or contemporaneous understandings
or representations, whether oral or written, regarding the subject matter and only relates to those
portions of the County Project shown in the Project Plans.

5.06 Amendments. Any amendmentof this Agreement must be in writing and will be
effective if signed by the authorized representatives ofthe Parties.

5.07 Applicable Law; Venue. This Agreement will be construed in accordance with
Texas law. Venuefor any action arising hereunderwill be in Williamson County, Texas.

5.08 Notices. Any notices given under this Agreement will be effective if (i)
forwarded to a Party by hand-delivery;(ii) transmitted to a Party by confirmed telecopy;or(iii)
deposited with the U.S. Postal Service, postage prepaid, certified, to the address of the Party
indicated below:

LHISD: Liberty Hill ISD
301 Forrest Street

Liberty Hill , TX 78642



COUNTY: Williamson County
710 Main Street, Suite 101

Georgetown, Texas 78626

5.09 Counterparts; Effect of Partial Execution. This Agreement may be executed
simultaneously in multiple counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original, but all of
which will constitute the same instrument.

5.10 Authority. Each Party represents and warrants that it has the full right, power
and authority to execute this Agreement.

(SIGNATURES ONFOLLOWING PAGE)



ATTEST:

LIBERTY HILL ISD:

 

County Clerk

 

By: ath»
 

Printed Name: Steven Snell_
Title: Superintendent

Date: May 11, 2021

WILLIAMSON COUNTY:

By:
 

Printed Name: Bill Gravell, Jr.

Title: County Judge

Date:
 



 

 

 

2
4

ft

(S
OS
O
O

OS
OS
O
S
O
O
O
O
,

      
 

 

    

  

    

«) 5
SANTA RITA BOULEVARD Y, > dg

$ 124 1t
a} C

fo

NOT TO SCALE

 

y
s
c

R
O
N
A
L
D
R
E
A
G
A
N
B
O
U
L
E
V
A
R
D

J
y

e
e
>

   
  LEGEND

& TRAFFIC FLOW

RONALD REAGAN BOULEVARD
& SANTA RITA BOULEVARD

 
      



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 50.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

Executive Session
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road

Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Executive Session

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss real estate matters (EXECUTIVE SESSION as per VTCA Govt. Code sec. 551.072
Deliberation Regarding Real Estate Property if deliberation in an open meeting would have a
detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations with third person.)

A.    Real Estate Owned by Third Parties
   Preliminary discussions relating to proposed or potential purchase or lease of property owned
by third parties
    a)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for SW 183 and SH 29 Loop. 
    b)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 176 at RM 2243
    c)    Discuss the acquisition of real property: CR 278
    d)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for County Facilities.
    e)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for Seward Junction SE and SW Loop. 
    f)     Discuss the acquisition of real property for SH 29 @ DB Wood.
    g)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 366. 
    h)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for N. Mays.
    i)     Discuss Somerset Road Districts No. 3 & 4 reimbursements for acquisition &
construction of Reagan Blvd.
    j)     Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 111.
    k)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for Corridor H
    l)     Discuss the acquisition of real property for future SH 29 corridor. 
    m)   Discuss the acquisition of real property for the expansion of Ronald Reagan at IH 35.
    n)    Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor C.
    o)    Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor F.
    p)    Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor D.
    q)    Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for SE Loop/Corridor A. 
    r)     Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Reagan extension.
    s)    Discuss the acquisition of real property near Justice Center. 
    t)     Discuss the acquisition of drainage/detention easements for real property North of
WMCO Juvenile Detention Center
    u)    Discuss the acquisition of the MKT Right of Way
    v)    Discuss acquisition of drainage easement in relation to County Road 176
B.   Property or Real Estate owned by Williamson County
      Preliminary discussions relating to proposed or potential sale or lease of property owned by
the County
    a)    Discuss County owned real estate containing underground water rights and interests.
    b)    Discuss possible uses of property owned by Williamson County on Main St. between 3rd
and 4th Streets. (formerly occupied by WCCHD)



    c)    Discuss property usage at Longhorn Junction
    d)    Discuss the sale of excess ROW at San Gabriel Parkway and Mel Mathis Ave. 
    e)    Discuss county owned property located at Ed Schmidt Boulevard Hutto, Texas
    f)     Discuss the sale of property located at 900 S Main St., Taylor, 76574
C.   Discuss the Williamson County Reimbursement Agreement for Construction of San Gabriel
Blvd. and New Hope Road with the City of Leander and TIRZ #1
D.   Discuss the Cobb Cavern Conservation Easement Amendment

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 11:17 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 05/20/2021 10:48 AM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 51.        
Meeting Date: 05/25/2021  

Economic Development
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road

Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Executive Session

Information
Agenda Item
Discussion regarding economic development negotiations pursuant to Texas Government
Code, Section 551.087:
    a)    Business prospect(s) that may locate or expand within Williamson County.
    b)    Project Crystal
    c)    Project Winston
    d)    Project Solo
    e)    Project Stamp
    f)     Project Cutting Edge

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 05/20/2021 11:26 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 05/20/2021 10:49 AM
Final Approval Date: 05/20/2021 


	Agenda
	AI_26642_Line Item Transfer
	AI_26646_Line Item Transfer
	AI_26656_Line Item Transfer
	AI_26676_Property Tax Refunds – Over 2500 – Thru 05/20/2021
	       ATT_050621-052021 Refunds Over 2500
	AI_26681_Compensation Items
	       ATT_Merit Report
	       ATT_Merit LIT
	AI_26688_Justice of the Peace 4 April 2021 Monthly Report
	       ATT_JP4 EOM APRIL 2021
	AI_26672_County Attorney April 2021 Monthly Report
	       ATT_April report
	AI_26664_Donation from Vested Interest in K9's
	AI_26657_SO Vehicle Purchase
	       ATT_Lake Country Chevrolet Inc
	AI_26653_Knox Box Donations 5.25.21
	       ATT_Knox Box Fair Market Value
	Market Value-Distrib VFDs

	       ATT_Asset Status Change Form 5.17.21
	       ATT_Asset Status Change Form (2) 5.17.21
	AI_26684_Scott & White Extension CARES Funding
	       ATT_Baylor Scott and White Extension CARES Funds
	AI_26659_Advertisement T4302 Animal Shelter Pharm & Supplies
	AI_26650_Facilities Resource - Pre-Trial office furniture
	       ATT_Facilities Resource - Pre-Trial
	AI_26673_Authorize Service Agreement for fencing at River Ranch Park
	       ATT_Service Agreement
	Services Contract (Fence Install) 5.18.21
	I.
	As described in the attached Statement of Work/Quote, dated April 9, 2021, which is designated Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein as if copied in full.
	II.
	III.
	IV.
	V.
	A. As described in the attached Statement of Work Proposal/Quote, dated April 9, 2021, which is incorporated herein as if copied in full; and
	B. Any required insurance certificates evidencing required coverages.
	VI.
	VIII.
	IX.
	X.
	XII.
	XIII.

	Signature
	Services Contract (Fence Install) 5.18.21

	       ATT_Vendor Quote
	AI_26674_Authorize addendum form to the service agreement for commercial trash pickup at River Ranch Park
	       ATT_Signed Addendum Form
	AI_26675_Authorize amendment with BenefitFocus.com; RFP T2590 Web Based Enrollment System
	       ATT_Addendum no. 1
	AI_26649_KC Engr 2965 WA5 CR 307
	       ATT_KC Engr 2965 WA5 CR 307
	20210429-Attachment C - Work Schedule.pdf
	Table 1

	20210429-Attachment D - Fee Schedule.pdf
	Fee Proposal

	Preliminary-Overall.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Overall


	Preliminary-Intersection.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Intersection



	AI_26651_Walker 2586 WA3 CR 255 ROW Topo 
	       ATT_Walker 2586 WA3 CR 255 ROW Topo 
	AI_26652_Diamond 2586 WA4 CR 201
	       ATT_Diamond 2586 WA4 CR 201
	AI_26677_Authorize issuing T4320 IFB County Road Paving (CR 401, 402, 404)
	AI_26680_Authorize issuing T4327 Great Oaks Bridge Project
	AI_26696_Final plat for the Dove Meadows Estates on 406 subdivision – Pct 4
	       ATT_final plat - Dove Meadows Estates on 406
	HPSCANNER1367
	HPSCANNER136

	AI_26697_Final plat for the Boggy Creek Acres subdivision – Pct 4
	       ATT_final plat - Boggy Creek Acres
	HPSCANNER1361368
	HPSCANNER1361369

	AI_26698_Final plat for the Star Ranch Parcel 32 subdivision – Pct 4
	       ATT_final plat - Star Ranch Parcel 32
	2883_01
	2883_02

	AI_26662_GHS Golf Resolution
	       ATT_GHS Golf Resolution
	AI_26654_Request for Qualifications for Strategic Plan Consulting Services
	       ATT_Williamson County Strategic Plan Consulting Services Procurement Overview
	       ATT_Slides - Strategic Plan Consulting Services RFQ Overview
	What is a strategic plan?������
	What is a strategic plan?���A strategic plan provides guidance to an organization by establishing where they are �now, where they want to be, how to get there, and if they have arrived. A strategic plan �identifies the mission and vision of the organization – why they exist – and establishes �values that the organization will hold to as it moves forward �(Williamson County Adopted Budget Fiscal Year 2020-2021, p. 36).��Captures strategic thinking and expresses a clear mission �Defines guiding principles�Articulates a compelling vision for the target year  �Establishes goals and measurable implementation�Includes key assignments �Routinely referenced to track and report progress�����
	������
	������
	������
	How do we start?��Create scope of work�Determine scoring criteria on 100-point scale�Determine selection committee�Advertise RFQ opportunity�Receive responses�Evaluate responses�Determine short list for interview purposes�Interview short-listed candidates�Make final selection�Negotiate contract�Begin strategic planning project������
	Which people participate in creating the plan?��The entire organization can participate in assisting with the strategic plan.  ��All departments and Elected Officials can be represented.����������
	������

	AI_26699_2021 PM 2.5 emission reduction and planning measures for Williamson County 
	       ATT_PM 2.5 reduction and planning form 2021
	       ATT_Proposed PM 2.5 Measures from CAPCOG CAC
	       ATT_Public Comments at CAPCOG CAC Feb. 10, 2021
	       ATT_Executive Summary of PM 2.5 proposed measures document from CAPCOG
	AI_26670_Tax Collection Agreement
	       ATT_MUD No. 19C
	AI_26671_Tax Collection Agreement
	       ATT_MUD No. 19E
	AI_26647_SO Donation Rev BA 5.25.21
	AI_26648_SO Donation BA Exp 5.25.21
	AI_26669_Policy Exception
	       ATT_Position changes
	AI_26636_Tax Exemptions
	AI_26644_Tax Exemption
	AI_26689_Tax Exemption 
	AI_26683_Williamson County Child Advocacy Center Addition (P530) Building Funding
	AI_26679_Service Contract for restroom building delivery and installation at Southwest Regional Park
	       ATT_Agreement and Proposal
	Contract - signed
	A. As described in the attached Price Proposal (Model# PS-022-CE), dated April 29, 2021 which is incorporated herein as if copied in full;
	B. Project Ref #10894-3/31/2021 - 2 Floor Plan;
	C. BuyBoard: Contract #592-19; and
	D. Any required insurance certificates evidencing required coverages.

	Southwest Reg. Park Proposal 4-29-21

	AI_26686_2019 Park Bond Transfer
	AI_26469_DOI Projects and Issues
	AI_26658_May 2021 Construction Summary Report
	       ATT_May_2021_CSR
	       ATT_May_2021_Monthly_Update
	AI_26663_CR 111 (Westinghouse) ATMOS Energy Letter Agreement
	       ATT_CR111-ATMOS-LONO
	AI_26678_SH29 at DB Wood Unintech Contract Amendment No. 7
	       ATT_SH29atDBWood-Unintech-Amendment7
	       ATT_SH29atDBWood-Unintech-WA3
	AI_26690_Resolution for Condemnation
	       ATT_Speck Resolution
	AI_26691_Resolution for Condemnation
	       ATT_Hatfield Resolution
	AI_26692_CR 366 Contract
	       ATT_Neans Contract
	AI_26693_Interlocal Agreement
	       ATT_LHISD Agreement
	AI_26694_Executive Session
	AI_26695_Economic Development

		2021-05-06T10:52:12-0500
	Margaret Teinert


		2021-05-06T10:53:00-0500
	Margaret Teinert


		2021-05-06T10:54:15-0500
	Margaret Teinert


		2021-05-19T06:05:40-0700
	Digitally verifiable PDF exported from www.docusign.com


		2021-05-18T16:10:47-0500
	Kum Wing Chan




